
CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE 
8301 WESTVIEW 
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77055 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2020 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING @ 6:30 PM 

  
TAB 

Regular Council Meeting October 20, 2020 1 

 

 

 

On Tuesday, October 20, 2020, the City Council of the City of Hilshire Village, Texas will 
hold a Regular City Council Meeting at 6:30 PM, including a Public Hearing at 7:00 PM, at 
the City Hall located at 8301 Westview, Houston, Texas 77055.  In accordance with the 
order of the Office of the Governor issued on March 16, 2020, as amended, the meeting will 
be conducted via telephonic conference (Zoom).  Any person may participate and address 
the City Council at the meeting or public hearing by Zoom, telephone, personal appearance 
at City Hall, or by writing.  
 
Join the meeting on Zoom:   You will be able to join the meeting by clicking on or entering the 
following link and entering the Meeting ID and password below:  
 
Join Zoom Meeting Time: Oct 20, 2020 06:30 PM Central Time  
 
https://zoom.us/j/97504509169?pwd=TGxHS0gxa3dlcHdGVG5LSDZXM2Uvdz09 
 
Meeting ID: 975 0450 9169 
Passcode: 885658 
 
You are also able to join the meeting telephonically by dialing any of the following number and 
entering the meeting ID and password:  +1 346-248-7799(local);  
 
 

This written notice, the meeting agenda, and the agenda packet, are posted online at  

 http://www.hilshirevillagetexas.com 

            The public will be permitted to offer public comments in person or electronically as 

provided by the agenda and as permitted by the presiding officer during the meeting.  IF YOU 

WOULD LIKE TO SEND YOUR COMMENTS PRIOR TO THE MEETING PLEASE SEND 

TO susan.blevins@hilshirevillagetexas.com 

A recording of the telephonic meeting will be made, and will be available to the public in 

accordance with the Open Meetings Act upon written request.  The matters to be discussed and 

acted on at the meeting are shown on the agenda below: 

If you need extra instructions for the use of Zoom please call prior to one (1) hour before 

meeting (713-973-1779). 

 

 

 

 

https://zoom.us/j/97504509169?pwd=TGxHS0gxa3dlcHdGVG5LSDZXM2Uvdz09
http://www/
mailto:susan.blevins@hilshirevillagetexas.com


CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE 
8301 WESTVIEW 
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77055 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2020 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING @ 6:30 PM 

  
TAB 

Regular Council Meeting October 20, 2020 2 

 

 

 

 

 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING STARTS AT 6:30 PM 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

 
1.1 Invocation (Mayor Pro Tem Maddock) 
1.2 Pledge of Allegiance 
1.3 Roll Call 

 
2. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS: (Time Limit- 3 minutes) 

 
This is an opportunity for citizens to speak to Council relating to agenda and non- 
agenda items. Comments are limited up to three minutes. If the topic the speaker 
wishes to address is on the agenda, the speaker can either speak at this time or defer 
comments until such time the item is discussed. 
Speakers are required to address council at the microphone and give their name and 
address prior to voicing their concerns. 
Note: To comply with provisions of the Open Meetings Act, the City Council may not 
deliberate on items discussed under this agenda item. Items that cannot be referred to 
the City staff for action may be placed on a future City Council agenda. 
A copy of any prepared remarks or notes to be used and/or distributed by the speaker 
must be presented to the City Secretary prior to the beginning of the meeting. 
 

 
3. REPORTS TO COUNCIL: 

 
3.1 Council Member Carey’s was sworn into office by City Secretary on 10-14-20 .... 1 

 
3.2 Police Report  ....................................................................................................... 2 

Incident Report September 
Up to date Incident Report for October 

 
3.3 Building Officials Report (Kevin Taylor/Evan DuVall)  .......................................... 3 

 
If there are no objections from Council, the City Building Official is excused 
 

3.4 Inframark’s Report on Flushing of fire hydrants .................................................... 4 
 

3.5 Engineers Report: (City Engineer Efrain Him) ...................................................... 5 



CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE 
8301 WESTVIEW 
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77055 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2020 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING @ 6:30 PM 

  
TAB 

Regular Council Meeting October 20, 2020 3 

 

 

1220 Archley Drive 
1221 Archley Drive 
1317 Bridle Spur Lane 
8116 Bromley Road 
1331 Friarcreek Lane 
1330 Glourie Drive 
24 Hickory Shadows 
5 Hilshire Grove Lane 
1313 Pine Chase Drive 
1217 Pine Chase Drive 
1322 & 1324 Pine Chase Grove and 1327 Glourie Drive 
1323 Pine Chase Grove 
1210 Ridgeley Drive 
1310 Ridgeley Drive 
8314 Creekstone Circle and 1241 Archley Drive 
Water and Sanitary Sewer Services for 1330 Glourie and 3 Empty Lots 
Comcast Aerial Line to Service Big Little School 
Annual Ditch Cleaning and Maintenance Plan 
Pine Chase Grove Cul-De-Sac Improvements 
Harris County Initiative – Development of Minimum Standards 
 

4. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: 
 

4.1 Discussion and possible approval of the City of Hilshire Village Ordinance 
Number 803-2020 amending Chapter 3, Article 300, Flood Prevention 
Damage and Chapter 9, Subdivisions of its code of ordinances to amend 
its standards for design and construction of storm water conveyance and 
detention systems, to require storm water detention for certain projects, 
and to prohibit certain development within the 500 year plain; providing a 
penalty of up to $2,000.00 per violation per day; and making other 
provisions related thereto.(City Engineer Him and City Attorney Bounds) 
Back up Material .................................................................................................. 6 

Ordinance  ........................................................................................................... 7 
 

4.2 Discussion and possible action to authorize City Staff to select a contractor to 
construct/install the water and sanitary sewer services for 1330 Glourie Drive and 
three (3) nearby/adjacent empty lots for a Not to Exceed amount of $50,000. (City 
Engineer Him) ...................................................................................................... 8  

If there are no objections from Council, the City Engineer is excused  

4.3 Approving a change in one (1) signatory for the financial institutions to replace Council 



CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE 
8301 WESTVIEW 
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77055 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2020 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING @ 6:30 PM 

  
TAB 

Regular Council Meeting October 20, 2020 4 

 

 

Member Swanson to be Council Member Gordy and approving Resolution # 2020-207 
appointing the signatory for a one (1) year term. (City Administrator Blevins)  ................. 9 

4.4 Discussion and authorization of City Council to authorize Spring Valley Police 
Department to enforce Ordinance Number 792-2019 in regards to overnight parking 
(Mayor Herron and City Administrator Blevins). ............................................................. 10 

4.5 Discussion and authorization of City Council to authorize the extension of a 7-day limit to 
14 days for a POD for use at the Food Pantry located at 7901 Westview to be used for 
Thanksgiving meals (ordinance 773-2019). (City Administrator Blevins) ........................ 11 

 
    4.6 Discussion and authorization to City Staff on CRF Grant and what type of computers  
          Council would like the City to purchase. (City Administrator Blevins) ............................ 12 
 

4.7 Discussion and Possible nomination and appointment for Alternate Board of Adjustment 
Member and Board Position for the Hilshire Village Cultural Education Finance 
Facility Corporation. (Mayor Herron and City Administrator Blevins) 

Board of Adjustment Position Resumes................................................... 13 
HVCEFFC Position Resumes .................................................................. 14 

 
Recess the Regular Council Session 
 

5. CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION: City Council reserves the right to adjourn into 
executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss 
any of the matters on this agenda as authorized by Texas Government Code, 
Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney) Sections 551.074 (Personnel 
Matters) and Sections (Security Devices or Security Audits). 

 
a. None at the time of Posting. 

 
5.1 City Council may deliberate and consider any actions necessary on any items 
discussed in the Executive Session.  (NONE AT THE TIME AGENDA POSTED) 
 

Reconvene the Regular Council Session 
 
6. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: 

 

If there are no objections from Council, the City Attorney is excused 
 
7. REPORTS TO COUNCIL: (Con’t) 

 
7.1 Fire Commissioner ............................................................................................. 15 
7.2 Mayor Herron  
7.3 City Administrator ............................................................................................... 16 



CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE 
8301 WESTVIEW 
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77055 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2020 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING @ 6:30 PM 

  
TAB 

Regular Council Meeting October 20, 2020 5 

 

 

Complaint & Issues Report 
Consent Agenda 
City Office  

 
7.4 Treasurer...................................................................................................................... 17 

Investments 
 

8. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

The consent agenda is a meeting method many government councils use to help make 
meetings more efficient and meaningful to the members of the audience. All matters 
within the consent agenda have been distributed to each member of the City Council 
for review and study and are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion of 
the Council with no separate discussion. If separate discussion is desired, that item 
may be removed from the consent agenda and placed on the Regular Agenda by 
request of a member of City Council. The expenditures listed in the consent agenda 
are items already approved in the current city budget. 

 
8.1 Disbursements: Summary, Deposits .................................................................. 18 
8.2 Approving the Minutes from the Regular Council Meeting and Public Hearing, 

September 15, 2020. .......................................................................................... 19 
8.3 Approving the Minutes from The Special Council Meeting, September 21, 2020 

 ........................................................................................................................... 20 
8.4 Approving the Minutes from the Special Council Meeting, Workshop, Executive 

Session, September 21, 2020. ........................................................................... 21 
8.5 Approving Check Register for September 2020 ................................................. 22 
8.6 Approving Quarterly Investment Report ............................................................. 23 

 
9. ADDITIONAL COUNCIL COMMENTS:   
 
10. FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS:   
 
11. ANNOUNCEMENTS:   

 
12. ADJOURNMENT: 

 
 

NOTE: Agenda items may not necessarily be considered in the order that they appear. With regard to any item, Council may take 
various actions, including but not limited to rescheduling an item in its entirety or for particular action at a future date or time. 

NOTE: IN THE EVENT A QUORUM OF THE CITY COUNCIL IS NOT PRESENT, THE REPORTING MEMBERS WHO ARE 
PRESENT WILL MEET AS A SUB-COMMITTEE, FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSE ONLY, REGARDING THE ABOVE AGENDA 
ITEM(S). 

City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss 
any of the matters listed above as authorized by Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 



CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE 
8301 WESTVIEW 
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77055 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2020 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING @ 6:30 PM 

  
TAB 

Regular Council Meeting October 20, 2020 6 

 

 

551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 

551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices), 551.087 (Economic Development), and 

551.086 (Certain Public Power Utilities: Competitive Matters). Following the executive session, if any, City Council may 
act in open session on any item discussed in the executive session. 

I, Susan Blevins, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting and Agenda for the City Council of the City of Hilshire 
Village was posted in a place convenient and readily accessible October 16, 2020 at 3:00 p.m. 

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or 
interpretative service must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Hall at 713-973-1779 or FAX -
713-973-7793 for further information. 







Calls - By Type
09\01\2020

 thru 09\30\2020
Zone is: HILSHIRE VILLAGE

SPRING VALLEY POLICE DEPARTMENT

6 ACCIDENT 1
22 ALARM 3
23 AMBULANCE CALL 2
43 ASSIST OUTSIDE AGENCY 1

135 BUSINESS CHECK 8
64 FUEL SPILL 1
68 HOUSE CHECK 1
70 INFORMATION 3
86 PUBLIC RELATIONS 1
99 STALLED VEHICLE 1

104 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 1
11 TRAFFIC STOP 17

111 VEHICLE BLOCKING ROADWAY 5
117 WELFARE CONCERN 2

Type Description # Of Calls

Total 47

1 1 of10/01/2020 09:06



Council Meeting October 20, 2020 

MONTHLY BUILDING REPORT 
 

September 2020 
 

 
Plan Review:  Six (6):  24 Hickory Shadows – Swimming Pool 
    8 Hilshire Grove – Interior Renovation 
    1220 Archley Dr – Drainage Amendment 
    1220 Archley – Generator  
    1301 Glourie Dr – Generator 
    1302 Glourie Dr – Generator 
 
 
Permits: Fourteen (14): 
 
Demolition: 1  Sign:  
Remodel / Add-On:   Roof:  
New Construction: 1  Fence: 1 
Accessory Building:   Tree Removal: 3 
Electrical: 3  Irrigation:  
HVAC: 2  Drainage:  
Plumbing: 3  Swimming Pool:  
Fire Sprinklers:   Swimming Pool Demo:  
30-Day Dumpster:   Other:   
 
Inspections:   Thirty-Two (32) 
  
Red Tag Stop Work Orders Issued:   None 
 
Building Finals / Certificates of Occupancy:  1217 Pine Chase Drive – CO Issued  
 
Change of Occupancy Use:   None 
 
Extended Permit Request:   None 



Date
Permit 

Number
Address Issued To

 Amount 
Received 

Description / Scope
# of 

Inspections

9/1/20 HV-20-075E 6 Hilshire Grove Ln John Moore Services  $        160.00 Electrical Panel Replacement 1

9/3/20 HV-20-076T 2 Hilshire Grove Garcia Professional Tree Service  $               -   Tree Removal, min requirement satisfied 0

9/4/20 HV-20-077T 1203 Wirt Rd Houston Tree Service  $               -   Tree Removal 0

9/8/20 HV-20-028SP 24 Hickory Shadows (Homeowner) Melissa Blakeslee  $        350.00 Swimming Pool Plans 0

9/8/20 HV-20-028SPD 24 Hickory Shadows (Homeowner) Melissa Blakeslee  $     1,000.00 Drainage Plans 0

9/15/20 HV-20-078T 8210 Mallie Ct Davey Tree Service  $               -   Dead Tree Removal 1

9/11/20 HV-20-059B 1330 Glourie Dr Modern Concept Construction  $     8,553.08 New SFR Construction 9

9/16/20 HV-20-079GE 1302 Glourie Dr Generator Supercenter  $        205.00 Generator & Electrical 2

9/16/20 HV-20-079GP 1302 Glourie Dr Texas Select Plumbing  $        180.00 Generator Plumbing 1

9/11/20 HV-19-068M 7915 S Villa Cir Premier A/C & Heating  $        405.00 New SFR HVAC 3

9/17/20 HV-20-080F 2 Hilshire Grove Rodolfo Fence  $        175.00 Fence Replacement 1

9/18/20 HV-20-081M 5 Hilshire Oaks John Moore Services  $        160.00 HVAC Replacement 1

9/23/20 HV-20-082E 7901 Westview Dr Modern System Concepts  $        160.00 Fire Panel Replacement 1

9/29/20
HV-20-
083DEMO

1210 Ridgeley Dr Dennis Williams Co, Inc  $        330.00 Demolition of SFR 1

9/30/20 HV-20-083P 1210 Ridgeley Dr Coastal Bend Plumbing  $        180.00 Sewer Disconnect 1

9/29/20 HV-20-067P 1111 Guinea Dr Katy Plumbing  $        180.00 Water re-pipe 1

CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE PLAN REVIEW AND PERMIT LOG - September 2020

Council Meeting October 20, 2020



DATE TIME

INSPECTIO
N 

REQUEST 
DATE

LOG NO. ADDRESS PERMIT NO. TYPE OF REQUEST P OR F DATE INSPECTOR

9/1 12:00 PM 9/2 20-205 1217 Pine Chase Dr HV-18-099P Plumbing Final Pass 9/2 BBG
9/1 12:00 PM 9/2 20-206 1217 Pine Chase Dr HV-18-099F Perimeter Fence Final Pass 9/2 BBG
9/1 12:00 PM 9/2 20-207 1217 Pine Chase Dr HV-20-005G Generator Final Pass 9/2 BBG
9/2 12:00 PM 9/3 20-208 6 Hilshire Grove Ln HV-20-075E Electrical Meter Release Pass 9/3 BBG
9/2 3:35 PM 9/3 20-209 7915 S Villa Circle HV-19-068P Gas Test Pass 9/3 BBG
9/3 4:30 PM 9/4 20-211 1217 Pine Chase Dr HV-18-099D Drainage Final Pass 9/4 Javier Vasquez
9/9 12:23 PM 9/10 20-212 1217 Pine Chase Dr HV-18-099M HVAC Final Fail 9/10 BBG
9/9 12:23 PM 9/10 20-213 1217 Pine Chase Dr HV-18-099B Building Final Fail 9/10 BBG

9/10 12:00 PM 9/11 20-214 8009 Anadell St N/A Parking Pad Consult N/A 9/11 Evan DuVall
9/15 10:52 AM 9/16 20-215 12 Hickory Shadows HV-20-074F Fence Final Pass 9/16 BBG
9/11 12:00 PM 9/16 20-216 2 Pine Creek HV-18-066P Plumbing Final Cancelled on site 9/16 BBG
9/15 1:30 PM 9/16 20-217 7915 S Villa Circle HV-19-068M HVAC Rough In Pass 9/16 BBG
9/15 12:00 PM 9/16 20-218 8108 Bromley HV-20-046F Fence Section Replacement Final Pass 9/16 BBG
9/15 12:00 PM 9/16 20-219 8116 Bromley HV-20-057F Fence Section Replacement Final Pass 9/16 BBG
9/16 12:00 PM 9/17 20-220 2 Pine Creek Ln HV-18-066P Gas Test Pass 9/18 BBG
9/18 11:00 AM 9/21 20-221 5 Hilshire Oaks Ct HV-20-081M HVAC Replacement Final Pass 9/21 BBG
9/21 10:00 AM 9/23 20-222 7906 N Villa Ct HV-20-034B Wind Straps Pass 9/23 BBG
9/15 12:00 PM 9/16 20-223 1217 Pine Chase HV-18-099FS Fire Sprinkler Final Fail 9/16 Fire Marshal
9/19 12:00 PM 9/21 20-224 2 Pine Creek HV-18-066P Gas Test Pass 9/21 BBG
9/22 12:00 PM 9/22 20-225 1217 Pine Chase HV-18-099FS Fire Sprinkler Final Reinspection Pass 9/22 Rusty Kattner
9/23 12:00 PM 9/24 20-226 1217 Pine Chase Dr HV-18-099M HVAC Final Pass 9/24 BBG
9/23 12:00 PM 9/24 20-227 1217 Pine Chase Dr HV-18-099B Building Final Pass 9/24 BBG
9/23 12:00 PM 9/24 20-228 1217 Pine Chase Dr HV-18-099T Tree Final Pass 9/24 BBG
9/24 12:17 PM 9/25 20-229 7915 S Villa Circle HV-19-068M HVAC Final Pass 9/25 BBG
9/25 9:30 AM 9/28 20‐230 8116 Bromley Dr HV‐18‐062 Drainage Final Pending 9/28 Javier Vasquez
9/25 12:00 PM 9/25 20-231 7903 Hilshire Green HV-20-048R Roof Final Pass 9/25 BBG
9/25 12:00 PM 9/25 20-232 7903 Hilshire Green HV-20-064M Electrical Panel Final Pass 9/25 BBG
9/25 1:45 PM 9/28 20-233 7906 N Villa Ct HV-20-034B Nail Pattern Cancelled 9/28 N/A
9/29 10:17 AM 9/30 20-234 7906 N Villa Ct HV-20-034B Nail Pattern Pass 9/30 BBG
9/29 2:50 PM 9/30 20-235 1330 Glourie Dr HV-20-059B Pre-Construction Inspection - Building Official Pass 9/30 BBG
9/29 2:50 PM 9/30 20-236 1330 Glourie Dr HV-20-059B Pre-Construction Inspection - Engineer Pass 9/30 Javier Vasquez

9/29 2:50 PM 9/30 20-237 1330 Glourie Dr HV-20-059B Pre-Construction Inspection - Arborist
Pass with 

corrections
9/30 Cary Moran

INSPECTION LOG - September 2020

Council Meeting October 20, 2020



Building Official's Construction Site Inspection Log

Address Date Inspector's Comments

9/7 No violations noted
9/13 No violations noted
9/20 No violations noted in front or side of property
9/27 No violations noted
9/7 No violations noted
9/13 No violations noted
9/20 No violations noted
9/27 No violations noted
9/7 No violations noted
9/13 No violations noted
9/20 No violations noted

9/7
Warning given: grass height above city ordinance; please cut grass. Please dispose of trash and 
debris into trash container and clean property of trash.

9/13
No changes since last week; violation given for: grass height above city ordinance; please cut 
grass. Please dispose of trash and debris into trash container and clean property of trash.

9/20
Violation given for: grass height above city ordinance; please cut grass and dispose of trash and 
debris into trash container and clean debris from property .

9/27 Cleaned up job site, no violations 

9/7 Need to clean up pile of debris and cut grass to maintain control of Vermin, snakes and insects. 

9/13 No changes
9/20 no changes 
9/27 No changes 
9/7 Warning given: Repair Falling Vinyl and Fencing 
9/13 No violations 
9/20 Mud in the street and right-of-way. Must keep right of way clean from mud. **warning**
9/27 No violations 

1306 Bridle Spur St

1023 Ridgeley Dr

1111 Guinea Dr

1217 Pine Chase Dr

1220 Archley Dr

1226 Glourie Dr

Council Meeting October 20, 2020 Page 1



Building Official's Construction Site Inspection Log

Address Date Inspector's Comments

  

9/7 No violations noted
9/13 No violation noted
9/20 No violations noted
9/27 No violations, watch grass height 
9/7 Starting soon
9/13 Starting Soon
9/20 Have not begun construction 
9/27 Starting Soon
9/7 No violations noted
9/13 No violations noted
9/20 No violations noted
9/27 No violations noted
9/7 No violations noted
9/13 No violations noted
9/20 No violations noted
9/27 No violations noted
9/7 No violation noted
9/13 Warning given to repair silt fencing and fencing must run all around jobsite
9/20 No violations noted
9/27 No violations 
9/7 No violation noted
9/13 No violations noted
9/20 No violations noted
9/27 No violations 
9/7 No violations noted
9/13 No violations noted
9/20 No violations noted
9/27 No violations 

8302 Creekstone Cir

1306 Glourie Dr

1330 Glourie Dr

14 Hilshire Grove Ln

2 Pine Creek Ln

7906 N Villa

7915 S Villa

Council Meeting October 20, 2020 Page 2



 

 

 

  
hdrinc.com 4828 Loop Central Drive, Suite 800 

Houston, Texas 77081 
T 713-622-9264   F 713-622-9265 
Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-754 
 

 

 
October 16, 2020 
 
 
Mayor and City Council  
City of Hilshire Village 
8301 Westview Drive 
Houston, Texas 77055 
 
Re: Engineer's Report for October 20, 2020 Council Meeting 
 HDR Job No. 20-005   
 
 
Dear Mayor and Council Members: 
 
HDR Engineering, Inc. (HDR) is pleased to submit this report on engineering related issues 
from September 12, 2020 to October 16, 2020. 
 

1. On-Going Services (20-005): 
 

a. 1220 Archley Drive – 
 

 On September 14, 2020, HDR reviewed and returned to the City the drainage 
plan amendment for 1220 Archley Drive. The drainage plan was amended to 
revise the proposed driveway under the recently updated and adopted 
Driveway and Lot Impervious Coverage Cover Ordinances. The drainage plan 
amendment was approved with exceptions noted. 

 
b. 1221 Archley Drive – 

  
 On September 22, 2020, HDR performed a site visit to 1221 Archley and met 

Mrs. Carla Martinez (property owner) to review the drainage and erosion 
concerns in her backyard. 

 
 Some of her retaining stone panels along Spring Branch Creek and within the 

150-ft wide Harris County Flood Control District (HCFCD) drainage easement 
are beginning to fail and fall into the creek. 

 
 Based on this field visit assessment, it appears that over time, runoff along the 

property and towards the creek has created erosion issues, causing the bank 
wall along the creek to begin to fail and lean into the creek. 

 
 The property owner was informed that HCFCD has jurisdiction over the creek 

and that any proposed erosion control improvements will need to be submitted 
to HCFCD and the City for concurrent review and approval. 



  

 

Page 2 of 7 
 

c. 1317 Bridle Spur Lane – 
 

 On September 24, 2020, HDR met in the field with Mr. Jeffrey Klam (property 
owner) to discuss his proposed backyard improvements and the City’s drainage 
and impervious coverage requirements. Mr. Klam will be submitting plans to 
the City for review and approval.  

 
d. 8116 Bromley Road – 

 
 The drainage plan for the proposed residential dwelling addition/extension at 

8116 Bromley was approved by the City on July 5, 2018; however, the 
Contractor did not pull a permit, so a cover and final drainage inspection were 
not performed. 

 
 On September 30, 2020, HDR performed a drainage final inspection at 8116 

Bromley. During this inspection it was noted that the proposed supplemental 
grate inlet/catch basin and storm sewer pipe did not appear to have been 
installed per the approved drainage plans; however, the area appears to be 
draining adequately through the existing drainage system installed during the 
initial construction of the residential dwelling. 

 
 HDR is currently coordinating with the City and property owner on the as-built 

drainage plan requirements. 
 

e. 1331 Friarcreek Lane – 
 

 On October 12, 2020, HDR received the existing conditions survey and 
schematic of the proposed patio and deck improvements at 1331 Friarcreek 
Lane from Mr. Brian Weatherall (Oden Design & Contracting – Contractor). 
HDR is currently coordinating and reviewing this information with Mr. 
Weatherall. 

 
f. 1330 Glourie Drive – 

 
 On September 30, 2020, HDR performed a pre-construction field visit to 1330 

Glourie Drive. Contractor was advised to clean up trash/debris around the lot. 
It was also noted that the Contractor has caused rutting along the City right-of-
way (i.e. east side of Glourie Drive) that shall be corrected/restored prior to 
completing construction. No other issues were identified. 

 
g. 24 Hickory Shadows Drive – 

 
 On September 28, 2020, HDR reviewed and returned to the City the pool 

drainage plan for 24 Hickory Shadows Drive. The drainage plan was approved 
with exceptions noted. 

 
  



  

 

Page 3 of 7 
 

h. 5 Hilshire Grove Lane – 
 

 On September 22, 2020, the City received a report from Mr. Peter Batarse 
(property owner) of drainage issues (i.e. water ponding) behind his garage at 5 
Hilshire Grove Lane. 

 
 On September 22, 2020, HDR performed a site visit to 5 Hilshire Grove Lane, 

and the lots directly behind his property and under construction at 7902 and 
7906 North Villa Ct. to assess the situation.  

 
 Based on this site visit, HDR determined that the rough grade of the 7906 North 

Villa Ct. property is not allowing the rear of the lot to drain properly and it is 
diverting its storm water runoff to the backyard of 5 and 6 Hilshire Grove Lane. 
Also, the amount of rain experienced in the past two (2) days associated with 
TS Beta has saturated the ground to the point that it cannot absorb any more 
water and it is ponding, instead of percolating through the ground as usual. 

 
 7902 North Villa Ct. does not appear to be causing the drainage issue at 5 

Hilshire Grove Lane. 
 
 HDR recommended that the Contractor for 7906 North Villa Ct. be notified of 

the issue and provide corrections to the grade of the lot to allow the property to 
drain towards the street. The City informed the Contractor and Building 
Official accordingly. 

 
i. 1313 Pine Chase Drive – 

 
 On October 2, 2020, HDR performed a second site visit to 1313 Pine Chase 

Drive and met with Mrs. Nancy Taub (property owner) to assess the drainage 
issues experienced in the backyard. 

 
 Based on this site visit, HDR has confirmed that the drainage issues 

experienced at 1313 Pine Chase Drive are not caused by the recently completed 
drainage improvements at 1315 Pine Chase Drive. 

 
 The existing lot grading at 1313 Pine Chase Drive has become non-uniform 

over time with some areas showing signs of ground over saturation/ponding. 
The area near the common property line of 1315 Pine Chase was dry and 
appeared to be generally higher in elevation than other portions of the lot.  

 
 The majority of the backyard also generally drains to the southwest, and not to 

the north (i.e. 1315 Pine Chase Drive), to an existing easement that drains 
towards the Bromley Road north ditch. 

 
  



  

 

Page 4 of 7 
 

j. 1217 Pine Chase Drive – 
 

 On September 24, 2020, HDR reviewed and returned to the City the as-built 
drainage plan for 1217 Pine Chase Drive. The as-built drainage plan was 
approved with exceptions noted. 

 
k. 1322 & 1324 Pine Chase Grove and 1327 Glourie Drive – 

 
 HDR coordinated with the City and Mr. Scott Bounds (City Attorney – Olson 

& Olson) on the record research of the 10-ft utility easement at 1322 Pine Chase 
Grove. 

 
 On September 25, 2020, Mr. Bounds provided a copy of the 10-ft utility 

easement dedication to the City and HDR for review. Upon review of the 
easement documentation, it was confirmed that the perpetual easement was 
dedicated to the City in 1988 for the construction, operation, maintenance, 
inspection, replacement, etc. of utilities. 

 
 On October 2, 2020, HDR met with three (3) Contractors to discuss the 

feasibility of trenchless construction over open cut construction in order to 
preserve the existing trees along this easement. Only one (1) Contractor 
expressed concerns in installing the new 6-inch sanitary sewer line by 
trenchless construction; however, he agreed that it was feasible.  

 
 Since the plumber’s video provided by Mr. Brock Griffiths (1324 Pine Chase 

Grove) did not have a linear footage and was not ran through the entire sewer 
line due to camera cable limitations, HDR recommended a Pre-TV Inspection 
be performed to confirm the actual location of all services tied-in to this line, 
as well as, the location of the 45 degree bend within the Glourie Drive right-
of-way as the sewer line turns down to connect to the existing 8-inch sanitary 
sewer running along the Glourie Drive east right-of-way. This information will 
be critical to determine the limits of construction and prepare the quote form 
so all Contractors invited to participate provide an equal and balance quote for 
this work. 

 
 In the interest of time, HDR recommended the City to engage the services of 

InfraMark (City’s Operations and Maintenance Company) to perform the Pre-
TV Inspection of the sewer line under their current contract. The CCTV 
Inspection crew was performing this work on October 12, 2020. 

  
 Once HDR receives the Pre-TV Inspection video, we will review it and prepare 

exhibits, details and a quote form for the sanitary sewer replacement work in 
order to request quotes from Contractors and present them to City Council at 
the November 2020 Council Meeting for review and approval. 

 
  



  

 

Page 5 of 7 
 

l. 1323 Pine Chase Grove – 
 

 DonMar Grading, Inc. (Contractor) completed the ditch restoration, re-grading 
and cleaning at 1323 Pine Chase Grove. However, during TS Beta, an 
approximately 15-ft long stretch of sodding along the street bank side sloughed 
in since the sod was placed only a few days prior to TS Beta and did not have 
enough time to get its roots set. 

 
 The Contractor will be visiting the site today to assess this issue and addressing 

it next week, weather permitting. 
 

m. 1210 Ridgeley Drive – 
 

 On October 7, 2020, HDR attended a Virtual Pre-Development Meeting with 
the City, Property Owners (Robert Garner and Jayne Owen) and Designer 
(Steven Allen Designs) to discuss the City’s impervious coverage and drainage 
requirements, as well as the construction limitations due to the ravine traversing 
the south side of the property and the finger of the ravine in the front of the 
property. 

 
n. 1310 Ridgeley Drive – 

 
 On September 29, 2020, the City received a report of potential non-permitted 

construction activities taking place at 1310 Ridgeley Drive. 
 

 The City and HDR are aware, based on previous communications, that Mr. 
Clint Collins (property owner) has hired an engineer to design and obtain 
approvals from HCFCD and the City on the proposed retaining walls/erosion 
control measures to mitigate the erosion issues experienced in his backyard due 
to the HCFCD gulley/ravine traversing on the east and south ends of the lot. 

 
 HDR contacted Mr. Clint and his engineer via-email to inquire about the 

activities taking place at 1310 Ridgeley Drive. Mr. Clint confirmed that they 
were just taking boring samples to assist in the design of the proposed retaining 
walls/erosion control measures. HDR had no objections to this work. 

 
o. 8314 Creekstone Circle and 1241 Archley Drive – 

 
 TLC Construction Contract Services (Contractor) addressed the erosion issues 

on the culverts at 8314 Creekstone Circle and 1241 Archley Drive, under the 
warranty terms of the Archley Drive Reconstruction Project 

 
 HDR has not inspected the corrective work yet, but will schedule it for next 

week and coordinate with the Contractor if there are any issues. 
 
  



  

 

Page 6 of 7 
 

p. Water and Sanitary Sewer Services for 1330 Glourie and 3 Empty Lots – 
 

 On October 2, 2020, HDR met with three (3) Contractors to discuss and request 
quotes to construct/install the sanitary sewer and water line services for 1330 
Glourie Drive, as well as, the remaining three (3) empty lots recently re-platted 
by the Holy Cross Church.  

 
 As of October 16, 2020, HDR has only received one (1) out of the three (3) 

quotes requested from Contractors but expect the remaining quotes to be 
submitted shortly. HDR will review and submit all quotes received to the City 
for final review and approval. 

 
 An Action Item has been included in the October 20, 2020 Regular Council 

Meeting Agenda for City Council to authorize City Staff to select a Contractor 
to perform this work contingent upon the quote not exceeding $50,000, 
otherwise, the normal bidding/procurement process will be required for this 
work. 

 
q. Comcast Aerial Line to Service Big Little School – 

 
 On October 12, 2020, HDR reviewed Comcast’s plans for the proposed 755-

LF of overhead cable to be attached to existing CenterPoint Energy power poles 
on the Wirt Road West right-of-way. This Comcast line will service the Big 
Little School at 1203 Wirt Road. 

 
 In general, the Wirt Road right-of-way is a City of Houston right-of-way but 

the aerial lines will cross Ridgeley Drive and Hilshire Green Drive. The lines, 
as proposed, have adequate vertical clearance (i.e. 18-ft), so there are no 
objections to the proposed Comcast line installation. 

 
r. Annual Ditch Cleaning and Maintenance Plan – 

 
 DonMar Grading, Inc. (Contractor) completed the city-wide annual ditch 

cleaning and maintenance work. However, Mr. Joey Goetz (1229 Ridgeley 
Drive) reported that his ditch is still holding water, and Mr. Gary Van Liew 
(8006 Burkhart Road) reported that his sprinkler system was damaged at two 
(2) locations. 

 
 The Contractor will be visiting the site today to assess these issues and 

addressing them next week, weather permitting. 
 

s. Pine Chase Grove Cul-De-Sac Improvements – 
 

 DonMar Grading, Inc. (Contractor) completed the re-grading and sodding work 
around the Pine Chase Grove Cul-De-Sac; however, the gravel work along the 
1324 Pine Chase Grove alleyway and area in front of the backflow preventer 
flushing line and blow-off line line is still pending. 



  

 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 The Contractor will be completing the gravel work next week, weather 
permitting. 

 
t. Harris County Initiative – Development of Minimum Standards – 

 
 As previously reported during the June 16, 2020 Regular Council Meeting, the 

Harris County Engineering Department sent a letter to the City and other 
Municipalities regarding the County’s Recommendation on Minimum 
Standards for Communities in Harris County and Draining to Harris County. 

 
 Per Harris County’s letter, the purpose of this policy is to provide a minimum 

set of drainage regulations and development policies that will allow all 
municipalities in Harris County to have a consistent set of standards that 
incorporate NOAA Atlas 14 rainfall rates. The proposed standards are intended 
to preserve the capacity and purpose of the ongoing Harris County Flood 
Control District (HCFCD) Bond Projects and make Harris County more 
resilient to future flooding events. 

 
 Mr. Jonathan Steiber (Harris County Engineering Department), authorized and 

engaged the services of EHRA Engineering to review the City’s current 
ordinances and policies, and provide recommendations on minimum standards 
for drainage regulations and development policies consistent with Harris 
County’s recommendations.  

 
 On September 10, 2020, the City and HDR received an e-mail from Mr. Andy 

Palermo, P.E. (EHRA Engineering) with the recommended revisions to the 
City’s flood plain ordinances. HDR and Olson & Olson (City Attorney) have 
reviewed the information provided by Mr. Palermo and have no objections to 
these revisions/changes.  

 
 Olson & Olson has drafted the ordinance revisions for City Council review and 

approval during the October 20, 2020 Regular Council Meeting. 
 
If there are any questions concerning the information contained in this report, we will be glad 
to discuss them with you. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
HDR Engineering, Inc. 

 
Efrain A. Him, P.E. 
Project Manager  
 
cc: Files (20-005) 



P
IN

E
 C

H
A

S
E

 D
R

IV
E

BROMLEY STREET

1315 Pine Chase

1313 Pine Chase

1305 Pine Chase

Drainage Path

LEGEND

Existing
Drainage Path

Drainage Inlet

Property
Perimeter

P
IN

E
 C

H
A

S
E

G
R

O
V

E

1305 Pine Chase

Approximate
Area of Ponding

A site visit was performed on July 31, 2020 and October 2, 2020, at the
residence of 1313 Pine Chase and 1315 Pine Chase to review the
drainage of the lots potentially impacted by the recent improvements at
1315 Pine Chase.  

After review of the property at 1313 Pine Chase, it was determined that
the existing lot grading has become nonuniform over time with some
areas showing signs of ponding. The area near the common property line
of 1315 Pine Chase appeared to be generally higher in elevation than
other portions of the lot.  A majority of the rear lot also generally drains to
the southwest to an existing easement that drains towards Bromley
Street (see inset).  It is also noted that during heavy storm events, the
ground will become over saturated, resulting in the ponding experienced
on the lot as well as sheet flow of water along the ground surface to a
point of conveyance.

From review of the recent improvements at 1315 Pine Chase, the
improvements do not indicate that existing drainage flow is being blocked
from 1313 Pine Chase.  

For any existing drainage issues at 1313 Pine Chase, it is suggested that
the lot be evaluated by a drainage engineer to provide recommendations
on regrading the lot and to potentially install a subsurface drainage
system to help with the drainage issues.

Drawing Not To Scale



 
From: Scott Bounds <SBounds@olsonllp.com>  
Sent: Friday, September 25, 2020 3:43 PM 
To: 'Him, Efrain' <Efrain.Him@hdrinc.com> 
Cc: 'Susan Blevins' <susan.blevins@hilshirevillagetexas.com>; Vasquez, Javier 
<Javier.Vasquez@hdrinc.com> 
Subject: RE: Hilshire Village 
 
Susan-  
 
It therefore appears to be a city line, the responsibility of the city, since it is in a city easement, that was 
prepared by the City, received by the City and filed by the City.  Although you could check the city 
minutes at the time to see if Council approved it, even if you do not find a council record it would be my 
opinion that it is a city line in a city easement. 
   
Scott 
713 817 0653 
 
From: Him, Efrain <Efrain.Him@hdrinc.com>  
Sent: Friday, September 25, 2020 3:11 PM 
To: Scott Bounds <SBounds@olsonllp.com> 
Cc: 'Susan Blevins' <susan.blevins@hilshirevillagetexas.com>; Vasquez, Javier 
<Javier.Vasquez@hdrinc.com> 
Subject: RE: Hilshire Village 
 
Thank you Scott. Yes, this is the easement in question at 1322 Pine Chase and it was dedicated to the 
City of Hilshire Village back in 1988. 
 
Regards, 
 
Efrain A. Him, P.E. 

Project Manager 

HDR  

4828 Loop Central Drive, Ste. 800 

 

mailto:Efrain.Him@hdrinc.com
mailto:SBounds@olsonllp.com
mailto:susan.blevins@hilshirevillagetexas.com
mailto:Javier.Vasquez@hdrinc.com












1 

Ordinance Number 803-2020 Page 1 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 803-2020 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE, TEXAS, 

AMENDING CHAPTER 3, ARTICLE 300, FLOOD PREVENTION DAMAGE, 

AND CHAPTER 9, SUBDIVISIONS, OF ITS CODE OF ORDINANCES TO 

AMEND ITS STANDARDS FOR DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF STORM 

WATER CONVEYANCE AND DETENTION SYSTEMS, TO REQUIRE 

STORM WATER DETENTION FOR CERTAIN PROJECTS, AND TO 

PROHIBIT CERTAIN DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE 500 YEAR PLAIN; 

PROVIDING A PENALTY OF UP TO $2,000.00 PER VIOLATION PER DAY; 

AND MAKING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED THERETO. 

 

WHEREAS, the Harris County Flood Control District, the Harris County Engineer, and the Harris 

County Commissioner’s Court has requested that communities in Harris County: 1) use Atlas 14 

rainfall rates for sizing storm water conveyance and detention systems, 2) require a minimum 

detention rate of 1.55 acre feet per acre detention for any new non-single family residential 

development on tracts one acre or larger; 3) use hydrograph timing as a substitution for detention 

on development projects; 4) require no net fill in the current mapped 500-year floodplain; and 5) 

required the minimum finished floor elevation of new habitable structures be established at or 

waterproofed to the 500-year floodplain elevation in order to assist the County in flood control; 

and  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Hilshire Village, Texas, finds that the measures 

requested are reasonable and prudent;  

Now, therefore,  

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE, 

TEXAS, THAT: 

  SECTION 1:  Chapter 3, Article 3.300, Section 3.301, of the Code of Ordinances, 

City of Hilshire Village, Texas, is hereby amended, by adding definitions, to be placed in 

alphabetical order, of “area of moderate flood hazard”, “five-hundred-year floodplain elevation”, 

and “moderate flood hazard area”, to read as follows: 

 “Area of moderate flood hazard shall mean the land between the limits of the base flood 

and the 0.2-percent-annual-chance (or 500-year) flood. They are shown on flood maps as zones 

labeled with the letters B or X (shaded). 

 Five-hundred (500) year floodplain elevation shall mean the elevation of surface water 

resulting from a flood that has a 0.2-percent chance of equaling or exceeding that level in any 

given year. The 500-year floodplain elevation is shown on the flood insurance rate map for zones 

B and X (shaded). 



2 

Ordinance Number 803-2020 Page 2 
 

 Moderate flood hazard area. See area of moderate flood hazard.” 

SECTION 2:  Chapter 3, Article 3.300, Sections 3.302 through 3.304 of the Code of Ordinances, 

City of Hilshire Village, Texas, are amended to read as follows: 

“Sec. 3.302. - Lands to which this article applies.  

This article shall apply to all areas of special flood hazard and moderate flood hazard area 

within the jurisdiction of the city.  

Sec. 3.303. - Basis for establishing the areas of special flood hazard and moderate flood hazard.  

The areas of special flood hazard and moderate flood hazard identified by the Federal 

Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) in a scientific and engineering report entitled "Flood 

Insurance Study—Harris, County, Texas and Incorporated Areas" dated June 9, 2014, with 

accompanying flood insurance rate maps and flood boundary-floodway maps (FIRMs and 

FBFMs) and any revisions thereto are hereby adopted by reference and declared to be a part of 

this article.  

Sec. 3.304. - Establishment of development permit.  

It shall be unlawful for any person to commence new construction, substantial 

improvements, or any other development within an area of special flood hazard and/or moderate 

flood hazard within the jurisdiction of the city without having first received a development 

permit therefor issued in accordance with this article, to ensure conformance with the provisions 

of this article.” 

 

SECTION 3.  Chapter 3, Article 3.300, Subsections 3.328(6) and 3.28(11) of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Hilshire Village, Texas, are amended to read as follows: 

“(6)    Variances may be issued for new construction and substantial improvements to be erected 

on a lot of one-half acre or less in size contiguous to and surrounded by lots with existing 

structures constructed below the base flood level or 500-year floodplain elevation, provided 

the relevant factors in section 26-134(b) of this article have been fully considered. As the lot 

site increases beyond the one-half acre, the technical justification required for issuing the 

variance shall be increased proportionately.  

11)  Variances may be issued for new construction and substantial improvements and for other 

development necessary for the conduct of a functionally dependent use provided that (i) the 

criteria outlined in subsections (1) through (11) above are met; and (ii) the structure or other 

development is protected by methods that minimize flood damage during the base flood and/or 

the 500-year flood and creates no additional threats to public safety.” 



3 

Ordinance Number 803-2020 Page 3 
 

SECTION 4.  Chapter 3, Article 3.300, Sections 3.335 through 3.337 of the Code Ordinances of 

the City of Hilshire Villager are amended to read as follows: 

“Sec. 3.335. - General standards.  

In all areas of special flood hazard and moderate flood hazard, the following provisions shall 

be required for all new construction and substantial improvements:  

(1)  All new construction or substantial improvements shall be designed (or modified) and 

adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the structure 

resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy;  

(2)  All new construction or substantial improvements shall be constructed by methods and 

practices that minimize flood damage;  

(3)  All new construction or substantial improvements shall be constructed with materials 

resistant to flood damage;  

(4)  All new construction or substantial improvements shall be constructed with electrical, 

heating, ventilation, plumbing, and air conditioning equipment and other service facilities 

that are designed and/or located so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating 

within the components during conditions of flooding;  

(5)  All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or 

eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the system;  

(6)  All new and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or 

eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the system and discharge from the systems into 

floodwater; and  

(7)  On-site waste disposal systems shall be located to avoid impairment to them or 

contamination from them during flooding.  

(8)    Compensating floodplain mitigation will be required for any fill placed below the base 

flood elevation and/or 500-year floodplain elevation for any new construction or 

substantial improvements. 

Sec. 3.336. - Specific standards.  

In all areas of special flood hazard and moderate flood hazard where base flood elevation 

and 500-year floodplain elevation data has been provided as set forth in section 3.303, section 

3.326(1)(h), or section 3.337(3), the following provisions are required:  

(1)  Residential construction. New construction and substantial improvement of any 

residential structure shall have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated to one (1) 

foot above the base flood elevation or at or above the 500-year floodplain elevation, 

whichever is higher. A registered professional engineer, architect, or land surveyor shall 

submit a certification to the floodplain administrator that the standard of this subsection 

as proposed in section 3.327(a)(1) above is satisfied.  



4 

Ordinance Number 803-2020 Page 4 
 

(2)  Nonresidential construction. New construction and substantial improvements of any 

commercial, industrial, or other nonresidential structure shall either have the lowest floor 

(including basement) elevated to one (1) foot above the base flood elevation or at or above 

the 500-year floodplain elevation, whichever is higher or, together with attendant utility 

and sanitary facilities, be designed so that below the 500-year floodplain elevation the 

structure is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water and 

with structural components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and 

hydrodynamic loads and effects of buoyancy. A registered professional engineer or 

architect shall develop and/or review structural design, specifications, and plans for the 

construction, and shall certify that the design and methods of construction are in 

accordance with accepted standards of practice as outlined in this subsection. A record of 

such certification that includes the specific elevation (in relation to mean sea level) to 

which such structures are floodproofed shall be maintained by the floodplain 

administrator.  

(3)  Enclosures. New construction or substantial improvements, with fully enclosed areas 

below the lowest floor that are usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access, or 

storage in an area other than a basement and which are subject to flooding, shall be 

designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls by allowing 

for the entry and exit of floodwaters. Designs for meeting this requirement must either be 

certified by a registered professional engineer or architect and meet or exceed the 

following minimum criteria:  

(a)  A minimum of two (2) openings having a total net area of not less than one (1) 

square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding shall be 

provided;  

(b)  The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one (1) foot above grade; and  

(c)  Openings shall not be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or 

devices unless that they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters.  

(4)  Manufactured homes.  

(a)  All manufactured homes to be placed within zone A on a community's FHBM or 

FIRM shall be installed using methods and practices which minimize flood damage. 

For the purposes of this requirement, manufactured homes shall be elevated and 

anchored to resist flotation, collapse, or lateral movement. Methods of anchoring 

may include, but are not limited to, the use of over-the-top or frame ties to ground 

anchors. This requirement is in addition to applicable state and local anchoring 

requirements for resisting wind forces.  

(b)  Manufactured homes that are placed or substantially improved within zones A1-

30, AH, and X (shaded) on the community's FIRM on sites:  

1.  Outside of a manufactured home park or subdivision;  

2.  In a new manufactured home park or subdivision;  

3.  In an expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision; or  



5 

Ordinance Number 803-2020 Page 5 
 

4.  In an existing manufactured home park or subdivision on which a manufactured 

home has incurred substantial damage as a result of a flood, shall be elevated on 

a permanent foundation such that the lowest floor of the manufactured home is 

elevated to or above the base flood elevation or to or above the 500-year 

floodplain elevation, whichever is higher, and shall be securely anchored to an 

adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral 

movement.  

(c)  Manufactured homes placed or substantially improved on sites within an existing 

manufactured home park or subdivision within zones A1-30, AH, AE, and X 

(shaded) on the community's FIRM that are not subject to the provisions of 

subsection (4) b.4 of this section shall be elevated so that either:  

1.  The lowest floor of the manufactured home is at or above the base flood 

elevation or at or above the 500-year floodplain elevation, whichever is higher; 

or  

2.  The manufactured home chassis is supported by reinforced piers or other 

foundation elements of at least equivalent strength that are no less than thirty-

six (36) inches in height above grade and securely anchored to an adequately 

anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement.  

(5)  Recreational vehicles. Recreational vehicles placed on sites within zones A1-30, AH, 

and AE on the community's FIRM shall either:  

(a)  Be on the site for fewer than one hundred eighty (180) consecutive days;  

(b)  Be fully licensed and ready for highway use; or  

(c)  Meet the permit requirements of section 3.327 hereof and the elevation and 

anchoring requirements for manufactured homes in subsection (4) of this section. A 

recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, 

is attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and security devices, and 

has no permanently attached additions.  

(6)  Accessory structures. The construction of such structure must satisfy the following 

standards in unnumbered and numbered A zones:  

(a)  Structure is low valued and represents a minimal investment.  

(b)  Structure shall be small in size, not exceed six hundred (600) square feet in size.  

(c)  Structure shall be unfurnished on the interior.  

(d)  Structure can be used only for parking and limited storage.  

(e)  Structure shall not be used for human habitation (including work, sleeping, living, 

cooking, or restroom areas).  

(f)  Service facilities such as electrical and heating equipment must be elevated to or 

above the BFE or floodproofed.  

(g)  Structure is constructed and place on building site so as to offer the minimum 

resistance to the flow of floodwaters.  



6 

Ordinance Number 803-2020 Page 6 
 

(h)  Structure is designed to have low flood damage potential, i.e., constructed with 

flood resistance materials.  

(i)  Structure is firmly anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, and lateral movement.  

(j)  Floodway requirements must be met in the construction of the structure.  

(k)  Openings to relieve hydrostatic pressure during a flood shall be provided below the 

BFE.  

No accessory structures are allowed in V zones except for "disposable" sheds. If 

constructed, fill cannot be used for structural support and the areas below the BFE must remain 

free of obstruction or be constructed with non-supporting breakaway walls, open latticework, or 

insect screening. All accessory structures are to be located so as not to cause damage to adjacent 

and nearby structures.  

Sec. 3.337. - Standards for subdivision proposals.  

(1)  All subdivision proposals, including manufactured home parks and subdivisions, shall 

comply with sections 3.316, 3.317, and 3.318 of this article.  

(2)  All proposals for the development of subdivisions, including manufactured home parks and 

subdivisions, shall meet floodplain development permit requirements of section 3.304, section 

3.327, and the provisions of this article.  

(3)  Base flood elevation and 500-year floodplain elevation data shall be provided for subdivision 

proposals and other proposed development, including manufactured home parks and 

subdivisions, which is greater than fifty (50) lots or five (5) acres, whichever is less, if not 

otherwise provided pursuant to section 3.303 or section 3.326(1)(h) of this article.  

(4)  All subdivision proposals, including manufactured home parks and subdivisions, shall have 

adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards.  

(5)  All subdivision proposals, including manufactured home parks and subdivisions, shall have 

public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems located and 

constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage.  

SECTION 5: Chapter 9, Article 9.100, Subsection 9.109(g) of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of Hilshire Village, Texas, is amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 9.109. Requirements for the Subdivision and Re-Subdivision of Land. 

“(g) Drainage. Drainage easements shall be dedicated in the locations required by the city engineer. 

All subdivisions, re-subdivisions and new development shall provide adequate storm drainage 

in accordance with all city and county drainage requirements. At a minimum, all new 

development greater than one acre shall be designed such that: 1) localized conveyance 

systems (storm sewer systems and roadside ditches) and detention basins shall be designed 

utilizing Atlas 14 rainfall (can refer to Harris County or City of Houston rainfall calculations); 

2) the minimum detention storage rate shall be 0.55 acre-feet per acre; and 3) hydrograph 

timing shall not be used as a substitution for detention.” 

 



7 

Ordinance Number 803-2020 Page 7 
 

SECTION 6. Severability.  In the event any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, 

provision, sentence, or part of this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or 

circumstance shall for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any 

part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City 

Council of Hilshire Village, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same 

notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, or 

whether there be one or more parts. 

SECTION 7. Repeal.  All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict or inconsistent 

herewith are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby repealed. 

SECTION 8. Notice, Penalty and Effective Date.  The City Secretary is directed to give notice of 

the enactment of this ordinance as provided by Section 52.011 of the Texas Local Government 

Code.  Upon publication, any person who shall violate any provision of this Ordinance shall be 

deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in an amount not to exceed 

$2,000.00 as provided in Section 1.106. 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this ____ day of _________, 2020. 

 

 

                                                            

       ______________________________ 

ATTEST:      Russell Herron, Mayor 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Susan Blevins, City Secretary 



HARRIS COUNTY 
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY ENGINEER 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: July 9, 2020 

TO: File 

FROM: John R. Blount, p_i= 1()/2 
County Engineer U · -

CC: Russell A. Poppe, P.E. 

1001 Preston, Suite 500 
Houston, Texas 77002 

(713) 755-5370 

Executive Director, Harris County Flood Control District 

SUBJECT: Coastal and Stillwater Floodplain Clarification - May 19, 2020 
Commissioners Court Action Concerning Requirement Minimum 
Standards for Communities in Harris County and Draining to Harris 
County 

On May 19, 2020, Harris County Commissioners Court recommended that all cities 
within Harris County and those entities outside of Harris County that drain to Harris 
County adopt five minimum standards in their drainage and/or floodplain regulations 
prior to December 31 , 2020 in order to continue participating in partnership projects with 
Harris County. 

The intent of the initiative is to ensure that minimum flood protection measures are in 
place that take into consideration the changes brought about by the new understanding 
of rainfall rates in the NOAA Atlas 14 study so as to create a more resilient community. 
However, Atlas 14 rainfall changes do not significantly impact flood risk in coastal and 
stillwater areas. Therefore, the following clarification shall be made to the approved 
Court letter as it applies to coastal and stillwater areas as defined below: 

1. Minimum Measure #1 : Use Atlas 14 rainfall rates for sizing storm water 
conveyance and detention systems: Atlas 14 shall be required to size localized 
storm water conveyance systems, such as storm sewers and roadside ditches, 
and size detention systems that outfall into the localized storm water 
conveyance systems. Atlas 14 rainfall shall not be a minimum requirement for 
detention for developments that directly outfall into a stream or body of water 
impacted by coastal flooding (i.e. tidal impacts, Stillwater elevation, storm 
surge). 

c: \users\ edeleon \appdata \local \microsoft\ windows \inetcache \ content.outlook\ whggy5 
36\coastal and stillwater clarification.doc 



HARRIS COUNTY 
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY ENGINEER 1001 Preston, Suite 500 

Houston, Texas 77002 
(713) 755-5370 

2. Minimum Measure #2: Require a minimum detention rate of 0.55 acre feet per 
acre detention for any new development on tracts one acre or larger. However, a 
single family residential structure and accessory buildings proposed on an 
existing lot is exempt from providing detention. This minimum measure shall be 
applied to all areas that require detention based on the clarification Minimum 
Measure #1. If an area is exempt from providing detention based on Minimum 
Measure #1, this measure does not apply. 

3. Minimum Measure #3: Prohibit the use of hydrograph timing as a substitution for 
detention on any project, unless it directly outfalls into Galveston Bay. The 
measure shall not apply for any developments that directly outfall into a stream 
or body of water impacted by coastal flooding (i.e. tidal impacts, Stillwater 
elevation, storm surge). 

4. Minimum Measure #4: Require no net fill in the current mapped 500-year 
floodplain, except in areas identified as coastal zones only. As this requirement 
clearly states, this should not be required in coastal areas. It also makes sense 
that this requirement should not be required in stillwater areas as well. 

5. Minimum Measure #5: Require the minimum Finished Floor Elevation (FFE) of 
new habitable structures be established at or waterproofed to the 500-year 
floodplain elevation as shown on the effective Flood Insurance Study. The Flood 
Insurance Study does not show a 500-year elevation for coastal areas, hence 
coastal areas are exempt from this requirement. However, stillwater areas show 
a 500-year floodplain that is not based on riverine conditions but rather based 
surge and wave action. Therefore, stillwater areas shall also be exempted from 
this requirement. Rather, local governments shall be required, at a minimum, to 
meet FEMA requirements for FFEs in these zones. 

Further background and information to determine if a floodplain is coastal or stillwater is 

as follows: 
Coastal communities face a range of flooding hazards that include storm surge, waves, 
and erosion. Elevated water levels at the coast is a main reason for coastal flooding . 
Elevated water levels allow floodwaters and waves to travel further inland than they 
would otherwise. The elevated water level observed during a flood event is typically 
called the Stillwater Elevation (SWEL). The SWEL tells us how high floodwaters could 
rise during a flood event due to storm surge, tides, wave setup, or other factors that 
cause increases in water levels. This elevation does not include the additional heights 

of the waves. 

c: \users\ edeleon \appdata \local \microsoft\ windows \inetcache \ content.outlook\ whggy5 
36 \ coastal and stillwater clarification.doc 



HARRIS COUNTY 
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY ENGINEER 1001 Preston, Suite 500 

Houston, Texas 77002 
(713) 755-5370 

The coastal SFHA is where the source of flooding consists of coastal hazards such as 
storm surge and waves. On the FIRM, the coastal SFHA is designated by Zones VE, 
AE, and AO. Each flood zone area is bounded by a solid white boundary line and is 
assigned a single, typically whole-foot, BFE. Coastal BFEs apply to the entire area 
between the white boundary lines. Coastal BFEs are shown as values in parentheses 
under the zone labels ... i.e. if the BFE were 10 feet, the BFE label would read (EL 10) 
under a VE or AE designation. The Limit of Coastal Floodplain is marked on a flood 
map with a white line to show the location where, for BFEs, flooding from riverine flood 
sources becomes greater than flooding from coastal flood sources. Typically, on the 
coastal side of the line, static, whole-foot BFEs are shown while on the riverine side of 
the line, BFEs are marked at cross sections and BFE lines. 

The below example shows an area containing a Coastal Zone AE with whole-foot BFEs. 
For Zone AE flood zones within a coastal community, it indicates areas that have at 
least a 1-percent-annual-chance of being flooded , but where wave heights are less than 
3 feet. On the flood map, Zone X (shaded) areas are shown with a light orange color. 
While no flood elevations will be shown on the flood map for this zone, information 
about the 0.2-percent-annual-chance SWELs and wave hazards may be found in the 
FIS report for coastal areas (which would be labeled on the flood profiles) . It should be 
noted that the Zone X (shaded) areas determined by coastal flooding are not associated 
with riverine flooding or stream modeling. These areas should be considered 
separately when applying Harris County Minimum Standards, since these elevations are 
not determined by riverine modeling . 

The source used to obtain the information provided above is from the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) document, "An Introduction to FEMA Coastal 
Floodplain Mapping." 

c: \users\ edeleon \appdata \local \microsoft\ windows \inetcache \ content.outlook\ whggy5 
36\coastal and stillwater clarification.doc 



HARRIS COUNTY 
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY ENGINEER 1001 Preston, Suite 500 

Houston, Texas 77002 
(713) 755-5370 

c: \users\ edeleon \appdata \local \microsoft \ windows \inetcache \ content.outlook\ whggy5 
36\coastal and stillwater clarification.doc 



ARTICLE 3.300. - FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION[2]  

Footnotes:  

--- (2) ---  

Editor's note— Ordinance No. 697, adopted March 18, 2014, deleted Art. 3.300 in its entirety, and 
enacted a new Art. 3.300 as set out herein. The former article pertained to similar subject matter. For prior 
history, see Appendix B: Ordinance Disposition Table.  

State Law reference— Responsibilities to establish flood hazard regulations, V.T.C.A., Water Code, Sec. 
15.316.  

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY  

Sec. 3.301. - Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Accessory structure shall mean structures which are on the same parcel of property as the principle 
structure and the use of which is incidental to the use of the principle structure (such as garages and 
storage sheds).  

Alluvial fan flooding shall mean flooding occurring on the surface of an alluvial fan or similar landform 
that originates at the apex and is characterized by high-velocity flow, active processes of erosion, 
sediment transport and deposition, and unpredictable flow paths.  

Apex shall mean a point on an alluvial fan or similar landform below which the flow path of the major 
stream that formed the fan becomes unpredictable and alluvial fan flooding can occur.  

Appurtenant structure shall mean a structure which is on the same parcel of property as the principal 
structure to be insured and the use of which is incidental to the use of the principal structure.  

Area of future conditions flood hazard shall mean the land area that would be inundated by the one 
(1) percent or greater annual chance (one hundred-year) flood based on future conditions hydrology.  

Area of shallow flooding shall mean a designated AO, AH, AR/AO, AR/AH or VO zone on a 
community's flood insurance rate map (FIRM) with a one (1) percent chance or greater annual chance of 
flooding to an average depth of one (1) to three (3) feet where a clearly defined channel does not exist, 
where the path of flooding is unpredictable, and where velocity flow may be evident. Such flooding is 
characterized by ponding or sheet flow.  

Area of special flood hazard shall mean the land in the floodplain within a community subject to a 
one (1) percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year. The area may be designated as zone A 
on the flood hazard boundary map (FHBM). After detailed ratemaking has been completed in preparation 
for publication of the FIRM, zone A usually is refined into zone A, AE, AH, AO, A1-99, VO, V1-30, VE, V, 
A99, AR, AR/A1-30, AR/AE, AR/AO, AR/AH, or AR/A.  

Area of moderate flood hazard shall mean the land between the limits of the base flood and the 0.2-

percent-annual-chance (or 500-year) flood. They are shown on flood maps as zones labeled with the 

letters B or X (shaded). 

Base flood shall mean the flood having a one (1) percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in 
any given year.  

Basement shall mean any area of a building having its floor subgrade (below ground level) on all 
sides.  

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 10 pt

Formatted: Normal, Justified, Indent: First line:  0.3"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 10 pt



Breakaway wall shall mean a wall that is not part of the structural support of the building and is 
intended through its design and construction to collapse under specific lateral loading forces, without 
causing damage to the elevated portion of the building or supporting foundation system.  

Critical feature shall mean an integral and readily identifiable part of a flood protection system, 
without which the flood protection provided by the entire system would be compromised.  

Development shall mean any manmade change in or to improved or unimproved real estate, 
including, but not limited to, the construction or alteration of buildings or other structures, mining, 
dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation, drilling operations, or storage of equipment or materials.  

Elevated building shall mean, for insurance purposes, a non-basement building, which has its lowest 
elevated floor, raised above ground level by foundation walls, shear walls, posts, piers, pilings, or 
columns.  

Existing construction shall mean, for the purposes of determining rates, structures for which the start 
of construction commenced before the effective date of the FIRM or before June 9, 2014, for FIRMs 
effective before that date. Existing construction may also be referred to as "existing structures."  

Existing manufactured home park or subdivision shall mean a manufactured home park or 
subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes 
are to be affixed (including, at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either 
final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed before the effective date of the floodplain 
management regulations adopted by the city.  

Expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision shall mean the preparation of 
additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which manufactured homes are to 
be affixed (including the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or 
the pouring of concrete pads).  

Five-hundred (500) year floodplain elevation shall mean the elevation of surface water resulting from 
a flood that has a 0.2-percent chance of equaling or exceeding that level in any given year. The 500-year 
floodplain elevation is shown on the flood insurance rate map for zones B and X (shaded). 

Flood or flooding shall mean a general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of 
normally dry land areas from:  

(1)  The overflow of inland or tidal waters; or  

(2)  The unusual and rapid accumulation of runoff of surface waters from any source.  

Flood elevation study shall mean an examination, evaluation and determination of flood hazards and, 
if appropriate, corresponding water surface elevations, or an examination, evaluation and determination 
of mudslide (i.e., mudflow) and/or flood-related erosion hazards.  

Flood insurance rate map (FIRM) shall mean an official map of a community, on which the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) has delineated both the areas of special flood hazard and the 
risk premium zones applicable to the city.  

Floodplain or floodprone area shall mean any land area susceptible to being inundated by water from 
any source (see definition of flooding).  

Floodplain management shall mean the operation of an overall program of corrective and preventive 
measures for reducing flood damage, including, but not limited to, emergency preparedness plans, flood 
control works, and floodplain management regulations.  

Floodplain management regulations shall mean zoning ordinances, subdivision regulations, building 
codes, health regulations, special purpose ordinances (such as a floodplain ordinance, grading ordinance 
and erosion control ordinance) and other applications of police power. The term describes such state or 
local regulations, in any combination thereof, which provide standards for the purpose of flood damage 
prevention and reduction.  

Flood protection system shall mean those physical structural works for which funds have been 
authorized, appropriated, and expended and which have been constructed specifically to modify flooding 



in order to reduce the extent of the areas within the city subject to a "special flood hazard" and the extent 
of the depths of associated flooding. Such a system typically includes hurricane tidal barriers, dams, 
reservoirs, levees, or dikes. These specialized flood modifying works are those constructed in 
conformance with sound engineering standards.  

Floodproofing shall mean any combination of structural and nonstructural additions, changes, or 
adjustments, that reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate or improved real property, water and 
sanitary facilities, structures, and/or their contents.  

Floodway (regulatory floodway) shall mean the channel of a river or other watercourse and the 
adjacent land areas that must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively 
increasing the water surface elevation more than a designated height.  

Functionally dependent use shall mean a use that cannot perform its intended purpose unless it is 
located or carried out in close proximity to water. The term includes only docking facilities that are 
necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship building and ship repair 
facilities, but does not include long term storage or related manufacturing facilities.  

Highest adjacent grade shall mean the highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to 
construction next to the proposed walls of a structure.  

Historic structure shall mean any structure that is:  

(1)  Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained by the 
department of interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as meeting the 
requirements for individual listing on the National Register;  

(2)  Certified or preliminary determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to the 
historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined by the 
secretary to qualify as a registered historic district;  

(3)  Individually listed on the state inventory of historic places by a state historic preservation 
program which has been approved by the Secretary of the Interior; or  

(4)  Individually listed on an inventory of historic places in communities with historic preservation 
programs that have been certified either:  

(a)  By an approved state program as determined by the Secretary of the Interior; or  

(b)  Directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states without approved programs.  

Levee shall mean a manmade structure, usually an earthen embankment, designed and constructed 
in accordance with sound engineering practices, to contain, control, or divert the flow of water so as to 
provide protection from temporary flooding.  

Levee system shall mean a flood protection system that consists of a levee, or levees, and 
associated structures, such as closure and drainage devices, which are constructed and operated in 
accordance with sound engineering practices.  

Lowest floor shall mean the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement). An 
unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, suitable solely for parking or vehicles, building access or storage 
in an area other than a basement area is not considered a building's lowest floor; provided such 
enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of the applicable nonelevation design 
requirement of section 60.3 of the National Flood Insurance Program regulations (44 CFR 60.3).  

Manufactured home shall mean a structure transportable in one (1) or more sections, which is built 
on a permanent chassis and is designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when connected 
to the required utilities. The term "manufactured home" does not include a recreational vehicle.  

Manufactured home park or subdivision shall mean a parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land divided 
into two (2) or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale.  



Mean sea level shall mean, for purposes of the National Flood Insurance Program, the North 
American Vertical Datum (NAVD88) of 1988 or other datum, to which base flood elevations shown on a 
community's FIRM are referenced.  

Moderate flood hazard area. See area of moderate flood hazard. 

New construction shall mean, for the purpose of determining insurance rates, structures for which 
the start of construction commenced on or after the effective date of an initial FIRM or after June 10, 
2014, whichever is later, and includes any subsequent improvements to such structures. For floodplain 
management purposes, new construction shall mean structures for which the start of construction 
commenced on or after the effective date of a floodplain management regulation adopted by the city and 
includes any subsequent improvements to such structures.  

New manufactured home park or subdivision shall mean a manufactured home park or subdivision 
for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be 
affixed (including, at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site 
grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after the effective date of floodplain 
management regulations adopted by the city.  

Recreational vehicle shall mean a vehicle which is:  

(1)  Built on a single chassis;  

(2)  Four hundred (400) square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projections;  

(3)  Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light-duty truck; and  

(4)  Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living quarters for 
recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use.  

Regulatory floodway shall mean the channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land 
areas that must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the 
water surface elevation more than a designated height.  

Riverine shall mean relating to, formed by, or resembling a river (including tributaries), stream, brook, 
etc.  

Special flood hazard area . See area of special flood hazard .  

Moderate flood hazard area . See area of moderate flood hazard . 

Start of construction (for other than new construction or substantial improvements under the Coastal 
Barrier Resources Act [P.L. 97-348 (16 U.S.C. 3501 et seq.)]), shall include substantial improvement and 
shall mean the date the building permit is issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement is within one hundred eighty 
(180) days of the permit date. The actual start means either the first placement of permanent construction 
of a structure on a site, such as the pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles, the construction of 
columns, or any work beyond the stage of excavation; or the placement of a manufactured home on a 
foundation. Permanent construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading, and 
filling; nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include excavation for 
basement, footings, piers or foundations, or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it include the 
installation on the property of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling 
units or not part of the main structure. For a substantial improvement, the actual start of construction shall 
mean the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a building, whether or not that 
alteration affects the external dimensions of the building.  

Structure shall mean, for floodplain management purposes, a walled and roofed building, including a 
gas or liquid storage tank, that is principally above ground, as well as a manufactured home.  

Substantial damage shall mean damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of 
restoring the structure to its before damaged condition would equal or exceed fifty (50) percent of the 
market value of the structure before the damage occurred.  

Formatted: Font: Italic



Substantial improvement shall mean any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other 
improvement of a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds fifty (50) percent of the market value of 
the structure before start of construction of the improvement. This includes structures that have incurred 
substantial damage, regardless of the actual repair work performed. The term does not, however, include 
either:  

(1)  Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local health, 
sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local code enforcement 
official and which are the minimum necessary conditions; or  

(2)  Any alteration of a historic structure provided that the alteration will not preclude the structure's 
continued designation as a historic structure.  

Variance shall mean a grant of relief to a person from a requirement of this article when specific 
enforcement would result in unnecessary hardship. A variance, therefore, permits construction or 
development in a manner otherwise prohibited by this article. (For full requirements, see section 60.6 of 
the National Flood Insurance Program regulations (44 CFR 60.6).)  

Violation shall mean the failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the 
community's floodplain management regulations. A structure or other development without the elevation 
certificate, other certifications, or other evidence of compliance required in section 60.3(b)(5), (c)(4), 
(c)(10), (d)(3), (e)(2), (e)(4), or (e)(5) of the National Flood Insurance Program Regulations is presumed to 
be in violation until such time as that documentation is provided.  

Water surface elevation shall mean the height, in relation to the North American Vertical Datum 
(NAVD88) of 1988 (or other datum, where specified), of floods of various magnitudes and frequencies in 
the floodplains of coastal or riverine areas.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 

Sec. 3.302. - Lands to which this article applies.  

This article shall apply to all areas of special flood hazard and moderate flood hazard area within the 
jurisdiction of the city.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 

Sec. 3.303. - Basis for establishing the areas of special flood hazard and moderate flood hazard.  

The areas of special flood hazard and moderate flood hazard identified by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) in a scientific and engineering report entitled "Flood Insurance Study—
Harris, County, Texas and Incorporated Areas" dated June 9, 2014, with accompanying flood insurance 
rate maps and flood boundary-floodway maps (FIRMs and FBFMs) and any revisions thereto are hereby 
adopted by reference and declared to be a part of this article.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 

Sec. 3.304. - Establishment of development permit.  

It shall be unlawful for any person to commence new construction, substantial improvements, or any 
other development within an area of special flood hazard and/or moderate flood hazard within the 
jurisdiction of the city without having first received a development permit therefor issued in accordance 
with this article, to ensure conformance with the provisions of this article.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 



Sec. 3.305. - Compliance.  

No structure or land shall hereafter be located, altered, or have its use changed without full 
compliance with the terms of this article and other applicable regulations.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 

Sec. 3.306. - Abrogation and greater restrictions.  

This article is not intended to repeal, abrogate, or impair any existing easements, covenants, or deed 
restrictions. However, where this article and another ordinance, easement, covenant, or deed restriction 
conflict or overlap, whichever imposes the more stringent restrictions shall prevail.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 

Sec. 3.307. - Interpretation.  

In the interpretation and application of this article, all provisions shall be:  

(1)  Considered as minimum requirements;  

(2)  Liberally construed in favor of the city council; and  

(3)  Deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted under state statutes.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 

Sec. 3.308. - Warning and disclaimer or liability.  

The degree of flood protection required by this article is considered reasonable for regulatory 
purposes and is based on scientific and engineering considerations. On rare occasions, greater floods 
can and will occur and flood heights may be increased by manmade or natural causes. This article does 
not infer that land outside the areas of special flood hazard or uses permitted within such areas will be 
free from flooding or flood damages. This article shall not create liability on the part of the community or 
any official or employee thereof for any flood damages that result from reliance on this article or any 
administrative decision lawfully made thereunder.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 

Secs. 3.309—3.314. - Reserved. 

DIVISION 2. - STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDINGS OF FACT, PURPOSE AND METHODS  

Sec. 3.315. - Statutory authorization.  

The legislature of the State of Texas has, in V.T.C.A., Water Code, § 16.311 et seq., delegated the 
responsibility to local governmental units to adopt regulations designed to minimize flood losses.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 

Sec. 3.316. - Findings of fact.  



(1)  The flood hazard areas of the city are subject to periodic inundation which results in loss of life and 
property, health, and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and governmental services, and 
extraordinary public expenditures for flood protection and relief, all of which adversely affect public 
health, safety, and general welfare.  

(2)  These flood losses are created by the cumulative effect of obstructions in floodplains which cause 
an increase in flood heights and velocities, and by the occupancy of flood hazard areas by uses 
vulnerable to floods and hazardous to other lands because they are inadequately elevated, 
floodproofed, or otherwise protected from flood damage.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 

Sec. 3.317. - Statement of purpose.  

It is the purpose of this article to promote public health, safety, and general welfare and to minimize 
public and private loss due to flood conditions in specific areas by provisions designed to:  

(1)  Protect human life and health;  

(2)  Minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control projects;  

(3)  Minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with flooding and generally 
undertaken at the expense of the general public;  

(4)  Minimize prolonged business interruptions;  

(5)  Minimize damage to public facilities and utilities such as water and gas mains, electric,  
telephone, and sewer lines, streets, and bridges located in floodplains;  

(6)  Help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and development of floodprone 
areas in such a manner as to minimize future flood blight areas; and  

(7)  Ensure that potential buyers are notified that property is in a flood area.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 

Sec. 3.318. - Methods of reducing flood losses.  

In order to accomplish its purposes, this article employs the following methods:  

(1)  Restrict or prohibit uses that are dangerous to health, safety, or property in times of flood or 
cause excessive increases in flood heights or velocities;  

(2)  Require that uses vulnerable to floods, including facilities which serve such uses, be protected 
against flood damage at the time of initial construction;  

(3)  Control the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural protective barriers, 
which are involved in the accommodation of floodwaters;  

(4)  Control filling, grading, dredging, and other development which may increase flood damage; 
and  

(5)  Prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers which will unnaturally divert floodwaters or 
which may increase flood hazards to other lands.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 

Secs. 3.319—3.324. - Reserved. 



DIVISION 3. - ADMINISTRATION  

Sec. 3.325. - Designation of the floodplain administrator.  

The mayor is hereby appointed the floodplain administrator to administer and implement the 
provisions of this article and other appropriate sections of 44 CFR (National Flood Insurance Program 
Regulations) pertaining to floodplain management.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 

Sec. 3.326. - Duties and responsibilities of the floodplain administrator.  

(1)  Duties and responsibilities of the floodplain administrator shall include, but not be limited to, the 
following:  

(a)  Maintain and hold open for public inspection all records pertaining to the provisions of this 
article.  

(b)  Review permit applications to determine whether a proposed building site, including the 
placement of manufactured homes, will be reasonably safe from flooding.  

(c)  Review, approve, or deny all applications for development permits required by this article.  

(d)  Review permits for proposed development to ensure that all necessary permits have been 
obtained from those federal, state, or local governmental agencies (including section 404 of the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1344) from which prior 
approval is required.  

(e)  Where interpretation is needed as to the exact location of the boundaries of the areas of 
special flood hazard (for example, where there appears to be a conflict between a mapped 
boundary and actual field conditions), the floodplain administrator shall make the necessary 
interpretation.  

(f)  Notify, in riverine situations, adjacent communities and the state coordinating agency (which is 
the Texas Natural Resources Conservation Commission), prior to any alteration or relocation of 
a watercourse, and submit evidence of such notification to the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency.  

(g)  Ensure that the flood-carrying capacity within the altered or relocated portion of any 
watercourse is maintained.  

(h)  When base flood elevation data has not been provided in accordance with section 3.303, the 
floodplain administrator shall obtain, review an reasonably utilize any base flood elevation data 
and floodway data available from a federal, state, or other source, in order to administer the 
provisions of this article.  

(i)  When a regulatory floodway has not been designated, the floodplain administrator must require 
that no new construction, substantial improvements, or other development (including fill) shall 
be permitted within zones A1-30 and AE on the community's FIRM, unless it is demonstrated 
that the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing 
and anticipated development, will not increase the water surface elevation of the base flood 
more than one (1) foot at any point within the community.  

(j)  Under the provisions of 44 CFR 65.12 of the National Flood Insurance Program regulations, the 
city may approve certain development in zones A1-30, AE and AH on the city's FIRM, which 
increases the water surface elevation of the base flood by more than one (1) foot, provided the 
city first completes all of the provisions required by Section 65.12 of 44 CFR.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 



Sec. 3.327. - Permit procedures.  

(a)  Application for a floodplain development permit shall be presented to the floodplain administrator on 
forms furnished by him/her and may include, but not be limited to, plans in duplicate drawn to scale 
showing the location, dimensions, and elevation of proposed landscape alterations, existing and 
proposed structures, including the placement of manufactured homes, and the location of the 
foregoing in relation to areas of special flood hazard. Additionally, the following information shall be 
required:  

(1)  Elevation (in relation to mean sea level), of the lowest floor (including basement) of all new and 
substantially improved structures;  

(2)  Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any nonresidential structure shall be 
floodproofed;  

(3)  A certificate from a registered professional engineer or architect that the nonresidential 
floodproofed structure shall meet the floodproofing criteria of section 3.336(2) of this article;  

(4)  Description of the extent to which any watercourse or natural drainage will be altered or 
relocated as a result of proposed development;  

(5)  Maintain a record of all such information in accordance with section 3.326(1) above.  

(b)  Approval or denial of a development permit by the floodplain administrator shall be based on all of 
the provisions of this article and the following relevant factors:  

(1)  The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage;  

(2)  The susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood damage and the effect of 
such damage on the individual owner;  

(3)  The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands to the injury of others;  

(4)  The compatibility of the proposed use with existing and anticipated development;  

(5)  The safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency vehicles;  

(6)  The costs of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions including 
maintenance and repair of streets and bridges, and public utilities and facilities such as sewer, 
gas, electrical, and water systems;  

(7)  The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise, and sediment transport of the floodwaters 
and the effects of wave action, if applicable, expected at the site;  

(8)  The necessity to the facility of a waterfront location, where applicable;  

(9)  The availability of alternative locations, not subject to flooding or erosion damage,  for the 
proposed use;  

(10)  The relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive plan for that area;  

(11)  The impact to adjacent and neighboring properties, as it relates to drainage and flood damage 
potential, reasonably expected as a result of the proposed development.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 

Sec. 3.328. - Variance procedures.  

(1)  The city council shall hear and render judgment on requests for variances from the requirements of 
this article.  



(2)  The city council shall hear and render judgment on an appeal only when it is alleged there is an 
error in any requirement, decision, or determination made by the floodplain administrator in the 
enforcement or administration of this article.  

(3)  Any person or persons aggrieved by the decision of the city council may appeal such decision t o a 
court of competent jurisdiction.  

(4)  The floodplain administrator shall maintain a record of all actions involving an appeal and shall 
report variances to the Federal Emergency Management Agency upon request.  

(5)  Variances may be issued for the reconstruction, rehabilitation or restoration of structures listed on 
the National Register of Historic Places or the State Inventory of Historic Places, without regard to 
the procedures set forth in the remainder of this article.  

(6)  Variances may be issued for new construction and substantial improvements to be erected on a lot 
of one-half acre or less in size contiguous to and surrounded by lots with existing structures 
constructed below the base flood level or 500-year floodplain elevation, provided the relevant factors 
in section 26-134(b) of this article have been fully considered. As the lot site increases beyond the 
one-half acre, the technical justification required for issuing the variance shall be increased 
proportionately.  

(7)  Upon consideration of the factors noted above and the intent of this article, the city council may 
attach such conditions to the granting of variances as it deems necessary to further the purpose and 
objectives of this article (section 3.317).  

(8)  Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if any increase in flood levels during 
the base flood discharge would result.  

(9)  Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of historic structures upon a determination 
that the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a 
historic structure and the variance is the minimum necessary to preserve the historic character and 
design of the structure.  

(10)  Prerequisites for granting variances are as follows:  

(a)  Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the minimum 
necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief.  

(b)  Variances shall only be issued upon: (i) showing a good and sufficient cause; (ii) a 
determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship to the 
applicant; and (iii) a determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased 
flood heights, additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, create 
nuisances, cause fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict with existing local laws or 
ordinances.  

(c)  Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice that the structure will 
be permitted to be built with the lowest floor elevation below the base flood elevation, and that 
the cost of flood insurance will be commensurate with the increased risk resulting from the 
reduced lowest floor elevation.  

(11)  Variances may be issued for new construction and substantial improvements and for other 
development necessary for the conduct of a functionally dependent use provided that (i) the cr iteria 
outlined in subsections (1) through (11) above are met; and (ii) the structure or other development is 
protected by methods that minimize flood damage during the base flood and/or the 500-year flood 
and creates no additional threats to public safety.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 

Secs. 3.329—3.334. - Reserved. 

DIVISION 4. - PROVISIONS FOR FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION  



Sec. 3.335. - General standards.  

In all areas of special flood hazard and moderate flood hazard, the following provisions shall be 
required for all new construction and substantial improvements:  

(1)  All new construction or substantial improvements shall be designed (or modified) and 
adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the structure resulting 
from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy;  

(2)  All new construction or substantial improvements shall be constructed by methods and 
practices that minimize flood damage;  

(3)  All new construction or substantial improvements shall be constructed with materials resistant 
to flood damage;  

(4)  All new construction or substantial improvements shall be constructed with electrical, heating, 
ventilation, plumbing, and air conditioning equipment and other service facilities that are 
designed and/or located so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating within the 
components during conditions of flooding;  

(5)  All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate 
infiltration of flood waters into the system;  

(6)  All new and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate 
infiltration of floodwaters into the system and discharge from the systems into floodwater; and  

(7)  On-site waste disposal systems shall be located to avoid impairment to them or contamination 
from them during flooding.  

(8)   Compensating floodplain mitigation will be required for any fill placed below the base flood 
elevation and/or 500-year floodplain elevation for any new construction or substantial 
improvements. 

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 

Sec. 3.336. - Specific standards.  

In all areas of special flood hazard and moderate flood hazard where base flood elevation and 500-
year floodplain elevation data has been provided as set forth in section 3.303, section 3.326(1)(h), or 
section 3.337(3), the following provisions are required:  

(1)  Residential construction. New construction and substantial improvement of any residential 
structure shall have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated to one (1) foot above the 
base flood elevation or at or above the 500-year floodplain elevation, whichever is higher. A 
registered professional engineer, architect, or land surveyor shall submit a certification to the 
floodplain administrator that the standard of this subsection as proposed in section 3.327(a)(1) 
above is satisfied.  

(2)  Nonresidential construction. New construction and substantial improvements of any 
commercial, industrial, or other nonresidential structure shall either have the lowest floor 
(including basement) elevated to one (1) foot above the base flood elevation or at or above the 
500-year floodplain elevation, whichever is higher or, together with attendant utility and sanitary 
facilities, be designed so that below the base flood level500-year floodplain elevation the 
structure is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water and with 
structural components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and 
effects of buoyancy. A registered professional engineer or architect shall develop and/or review 
structural design, specifications, and plans for the construction, and shall certify that the design 
and methods of construction are in accordance with accepted standards of practice as outlined 
in this subsection. A record of such certification that includes the specific elevation (in relation to 



mean sea level) to which such structures are floodproofed shall be maintained by the floodplain 
administrator.  

(3)  Enclosures . New construction or substantial improvements, with fully enclosed areas below 
the lowest floor that are usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access, or storage in an 
area other than a basement and which are subject to flooding, shall be designed to 
automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls by allowing for the entry and 
exit of floodwaters. Designs for meeting this requirement must either be certified by a registered 
professional engineer or architect and meet or exceed the following minimum criteria:  

(a)  A minimum of two (2) openings having a total net area of not less than one (1) square inch 
for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding shall be provided;  

(b)  The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one (1) foot above grade; and  

(c)  Openings shall not be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or 
devices unless that they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters.  

(4)  Manufactured homes.  

(a)  All manufactured homes to be placed within zone A on a community's FHBM or FIRM 
shall be installed using methods and practices which minimize flood damage. For the 
purposes of this requirement, manufactured homes shall be elevated and anchored to 
resist flotation, collapse, or lateral movement. Methods of anchoring may include, but are 
not limited to, the use of over-the-top or frame ties to ground anchors. This requirement is 
in addition to applicable state and local anchoring requirements for resisting wind forces.  

(b)  Manufactured homes that are placed or substantially improved within zones A1-30, AH, 
and AE, and X (shaded) on the community's FIRM on sites:  

1.  Outside of a manufactured home park or subdivision;  

2.  In a new manufactured home park or subdivision;  

3.  In an expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision; or  

4.  In an existing manufactured home park or subdivision on which a manufactured home 
has incurred substantial damage as a result of a flood, shall be elevated on a 
permanent foundation such that the lowest floor of the manufactured home is elevated 
to or above the base flood elevation or to or above the 500-year floodplain elevation, 
whichever is higher, and shall be securely anchored to an adequately anchored 
foundation system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement.  

(c)  Manufactured homes placed or substantially improved on sites within an existing 
manufactured home park or subdivision within zones A1-30, AH, and AE, and X (shaded) 
on the community's FIRM that are not subject to the provisions of subsection (4)b.4 of  this 
section shall be elevated so that either:  

1.  The lowest floor of the manufactured home is at or above the base flood elevation or 
at or above the 500-year floodplain elevation, whichever is higher; or  

2.  The manufactured home chassis is supported by reinforced piers or other foundation 
elements of at least equivalent strength that are no less than thirty-six (36) inches in 
height above grade and securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation 
system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement.  

(5)  Recreational vehicles. Recreational vehicles placed on sites within zones A1-30, AH, and AE 
on the community's FIRM shall either:  

(a)  Be on the site for fewer than one hundred eighty (180) consecutive days;  

(b)  Be fully licensed and ready for highway use; or  



(c)  Meet the permit requirements of section 3.327 hereof and the elevation and anchoring 
requirements for manufactured homes in subsection (4) of this section. A recreational 
vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, is attached to the 
site only by quick disconnect type utilities and security devices, and has no permanently 
attached additions.  

(6)  Accessory structures. The construction of such structure must satisfy the following standards in 
unnumbered and numbered A zones:  

(a)  Structure is low valued and represents a minimal investment.  

(b)  Structure shall be small in size, not exceed six hundred (600) square feet in size.  

(c)  Structure shall be unfurnished on the interior.  

(d)  Structure can be used only for parking and limited storage.  

(e)  Structure shall not be used for human habitation (including work, sleeping, living, cooking, 
or restroom areas).  

(f)  Service facilities such as electrical and heating equipment must be elevated to or above 
the BFE or floodproofed.  

(g)  Structure is constructed and place on building site so as to offer the minimum resistance 
to the flow of floodwaters.  

(h)  Structure is designed to have low flood damage potential, i.e., constructed with flood 
resistance materials.  

(i)  Structure is firmly anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, and lateral movement.  

(j)  Floodway requirements must be met in the construction of the structure.  

(k)  Openings to relieve hydrostatic pressure during a flood shall be provided below the BFE.  

No accessory structures are allowed in V zones except for "disposable" sheds. If constructed, fill 
cannot be used for structural support and the areas below the BFE must remain free of obstruction or be 
constructed with non-supporting breakaway walls, open latticework, or insect screening. All accessory 
structures are to be located so as not to cause damage to adjacent and nearby structures.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 

Sec. 3.337. - Standards for subdivision proposals.  

(1)  All subdivision proposals, including manufactured home parks and subdivisions, shall comply with 
sections 3.316, 3.317, and 3.318 of this article.  

(2)  All proposals for the development of subdivisions, including manufactured home parks and 
subdivisions, shall meet floodplain development permit requirements of section 3.304, section 3.327, 
and the provisions of this article.  

(3)  Base flood elevation and 500-year floodplain elevation data shall be provided for subdivision 
proposals and other proposed development, including manufactured home parks and subdivisions, 
which is greater than fifty (50) lots or five (5) acres, whichever is less, if not otherwise provided 
pursuant to section 3.303 or section 3.326(1)(h) of this article.  

(4)  All subdivision proposals, including manufactured home parks and subdivisions, shall have 
adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards.  

(5)  All subdivision proposals, including manufactured home parks and subdivisions, shall have public 
utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems located and constructed to 
minimize or eliminate flood damage.  



(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 

Sec. 3.338. - Standards for areas of shallow flooding (AO/AH zones).  

Located within the areas of special flood hazard established in section 3.303 are areas designated 
as shallow flooding. These areas have special flood hazards associated with flood depths of one (1) to 
three (3) feet where a clearly defined channel does not exist, where the path of flooding is unpredictable, 
and where velocity flow may be evident. Such flooding is characterized by ponding or sheet flow; 
therefore, the following provisions apply:  

(1)  All new construction and substantial improvements of residential structures shall have the 
lowest floor (including basement) elevated above the highest adjacent grade at least as high as 
the depth number specified in feet on the community's FIRM (at least two (2) feet if no depth 
number is specified).  

(2)  All new construction and substantial improvements of nonresidential structures shall:  

(a)  Have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated above the highest adjacent grade at 
least as high as the depth number specified in feet on the community's FIRM (at least two 
(2) feet if no depth number is specified); or  

(b)  Together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, be designed so that below the base 
flood depth in an AO zone or below the base flood elevation in an AH zone, level the 
structure is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water and 
with structural components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic 
loads of effects of buoyancy.  

(3)  A registered professional engineer or architect shall submit a certification to the floodplain 
administrator that the standards of this section, as proposed in section 3.327(a)(1), are satisfied.  

(4)  Within zone AH or AO, adequate drainage paths shall be provided around structures on slopes, 
to guide flood waters around and away from proposed structures.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 

Sec. 3.339. - Floodways.  

Floodways located within areas of special flood hazard established in section 3.303 are areas 
designated as floodways. Since the floodway is an extremely hazardous area due to the velocity of 
floodwaters that carry debris, potential projectiles, and erosion potential, the following provisions shall 
apply:  

(1)  Encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements, and other 
development, shall be prohibited within the adopted regulatory floodway unless it has been 
demonstrated through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed in accordance with 
standard engineering practices that the proposed encroachment would not result in any 
increase in flood levels within the city or adjacent areas during the occurrence of the base flood 
discharge.  

(2)  If subsection (1) above is satisfied, all new construction and substantial improvements shall 
comply with all applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of this article.  

(3)  Under the provisions of 44 CFR 65.12 of the National Flood Insurance Program regulations, 
the city may permit encroachments within the adopted regulatory floodway that would result in 
an increase in base flood elevations, provided the city first applies for a conditional FIRM and 
floodway revision through FEMA.  

(Ordinance 697, adopted March 18, 2014, Section 1) 



Chapter 9 - SUBDIVISIONS 

ARTICLE 9.100. - SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS[1]  

 

Footnotes:  

--- (1) ---  

Editor's note— Ord. No. 729, Section 1 (App. A), adopted June 28, 2016, amended Art. 9.100 in its 
entirety to read as herein set out. Former Art. 9.100, §§ 9.101—9.119, pertained to similar subject matter. 
For prior history, see Appendix B: Ordinance Disposition Table.  

State Law reference— Regulation of subdivision and property development, V.T.C.A., Local 
Government Code, Chapter 212; extraterritorial jurisdiction of municipalities in counties that regulate 
subdivisions, V.T.C.A., Local Government Code, Sec. 242.001; extension of subdivision rules to 
extraterritorial jurisdiction, V.T.C.A., Local Government Code, Sec. 212.003; recording of plats, V.T.C.A., 
Property Code, Sec. 12.002.  

Sec. 9.101. - Compliance Required, Purpose.  

Compliance with this chapter is required prior to approval of plats or acceptance of any public 
dedications. This chapter is adopted to provide for the clear recordation of ownership of land, 
requirements for subdivision plats and public improvements, it applies to any new subdivision, re-
subdivision or merger of lots. The regulations are intended to:  

(1)  Preserve and protect the public health, safety, and general welfare, and to preserve and 
protect property values and the quality of life within the city limits;  

(2)  Ensure that adequate public facilities and services are available concurrently with development 
and there is sufficient capacity to serve the proposed development;  

(3)  Guide public and private policy and action to provide adequate and efficient transportation, 
water, sewer, and other public requirements and facilities; and  

(4)  Establish reasonable standards of infrastructure design and procedures for land development 
to further the orderly layout and use of land, and to ensure proper legal descriptions and 
monumenting of land within the city.  

(Ordinance 729, adopted 6/28/16, Section 1 (App. A)) 

Sec. 9.102. - Plat Required; Exemptions.  

(a)  An owner of any tract of land within the city limits of Hilshire Village, who divides the tract into two 
(2) or more parts for the purpose of laying out any subdivision or creating lots for building or 
development, shall cause a plat to be made, and submitted to the city for review and approval and 
filing in accordance with this chapter. A plat shall accurately describe all of the tract by metes and 
bounds, and locate the tract with respect to an original corner of the original survey of which it is a 
part, giving dimensions the proposed subdivision, and the dimensions of all streets, alleys,  squares, 
parks, or other portions intended to be dedicated to public use or for the use of the purchasers or 
owners of lots.  

(b)  A subdivision of land into parcels of not less than five (5) acres each and not involving new streets 
and/or utilities shall be exempt from this chapter.  

(Ordinance 729, adopted 6/28/16, Section 1 (App. A)) 



Sec. 9.103. - Rules, Regulations and Requirements Subject to Change.  

The rules, regulations and requirements governing the subdivision of land are subject to change, 
amendment or alteration, when the city council, in its judgment, deems changes to be in the best interest 
of the public after taking into account comments from citizens and other interested parties at a public 
hearing.  

(Ordinance 729, adopted 6/28/16, Section 1 (App. A)) 

Sec. 9.104. - Application for Plat Approval.  

(a)  An application for a plat, must be executed by the applicant, to comply with the provisions of this 
article.  

(b)  Upon the recommendation of the city engineer, an applicant may be allowed to submit a subdivision 
plat application in two phases: A preliminary plat, for the purpose of obtaining approval of a 
development concept prior to undertaking all detailed engineering and surveying requirements, and 
containing the information deemed necessary for such preliminary determination by the city 
engineer. A final plat, containing all information required by this chapter and necessary for recording 
in Harris County Records. Both the preliminary and the final plat must be approved by a vote of the 
city council.  

(c)  A plat and engineering/construction plans of the proposed subdivision or re-subdivision, containing 
the information specified in this chapter must be submitted to the city administrator, along with the 
following information:  

(1)  The line and grades of proposed streets, sanitary sewers, water lines, storm sewers, drainage 
ditches, drainage easements, utility easements, aerial easements, and the course and location 
of the existing pipelines or pipeline easements. These plans shall be drawn to conform with the 
requirements adopted by the city.  

(2)  The proposed location of sewerage disposal facilities.  

(3)  The source of water supply.  

(4)  Monumentation and other requirements listed in Chapter 212 of the Texas Local Government 
Code, and as established by the city engineer.  

(5)  A certificate of each tax collector of a political subdivision in which the property is located must 
accompany the plat application, showing all taxes owing to the state, county, school district, city, 
and any other political subdivision have been paid in full.  

(6)  A certificate from an abstractor, or written opinion from the attorney of the developer, must be 
attached, showing ownership of property and liens against the same.  

(7)  Payment of application fee.  

(8)  Location of storm drainage outfall or discharge.  

(Ordinance 729, adopted 6/28/16, Section 1 (App. A)) 

Sec. 9.105. - Duties of City Engineer.  

(a)  When a complete application is submitted, the city administrator will forward all documents to the 
city engineer who will review the construction drawings and specifications submitted and will inspect 
the site of the subdivision to insure that the plans and plat are in conformance with sound 
engineering practices. No construction shall commence until said drawings and specifications are 
approved in writing by the city engineer.  



(b)  During the course of the construction of the subdivision, the city engineer shall make periodic 
inspections of the site to insure that construction is in accordance with the said plans and 
specifications as approved.  

(c)  If the city engineer needs outside assistance in performing his duties under this article, he shall 
present a summary of the assistance required with an estimate of the cost to the city council for 
approval.  

(Ordinance 729, adopted 6/28/16, Section 1 (App. A)) 

Sec. 9.106. - Duty to Follow Plans as Presented.  

It shall be the duty of the developer or his engineers to ensure that the layout of streets, 
improvements, and lots, and the construction of all improvements subject to inspection by the city 
engineer, follow the plans as presented with the approved final subdivision plat.  

(Ordinance 729, adopted 6/28/16, Section 1 (App. A)) 

Sec. 9.107. - Bond Requirement for Construction and Maintenance.  

All public improvements, streets, roads or other infrastructure to serve the planned uses shall be 
installed at the developer's expense. The developer is required to secure and provide to the city a 
performance bond in the amount of the total costs of improvements, and a maintenance bond to maintain 
and repair all public improvements, streets, roads, or other infrastructure for a period of one (1) year.  

Following map or plat approval, and simultaneously with the submittal of construction plans for 
improvements, the developer will furnish to the city engineer cost estimates for completion of all streets, 
roads, and other public improvements. Upon review and acceptance by the city engineer of the estimates, 
prior to the approval of construction plans, the developer will furnish the city with a signed copy of 
performance and maintenance bonds for infrastructure dedicated to the public, executed by a surety 
company authorized to do business in Texas, with an agency or home office in Harris County, Texas, 
together with a copy of the contract upon which the bond is written. The surety company shall have a 
minimum A.M. Best Rating of A+.  

(Ordinance 729, adopted 6/28/16, Section 1 (App. A)) 

Sec. 9.108. - City Council Approval of Plat or Re-plat.  

(a)  A plat or re-plat must be approved by the city council before it may be recorded with the county 
clerk. Any person desiring to have a plat or re-plat approved shall apply therefor to and file a copy 
with the city council, which shall act upon the same within seventy-five (75) days from this filing date. 
If the plat or re-plat is approved, the city council shall indicate this finding by certificate endorsed 
thereon, signed by the mayor of the city and attested to by the city secretary. The city council shall 
keep a record of denied applications and the action taken thereupon and upon demand shall certify 
its reasons for the action taken in the matter.  

(b)  The approval of any plat or re-plat shall not be deemed an acceptance of the proposed dedication, 
and shall not impose any duty upon the city concerning the maintenance or improvement of any 
dedicated parts until the proper authorities of the city shall make actual appropriation of the same by 
entry, use or improvement.  

(c)  If any plat or re-plat is disapproved by the city council, it is also a refusal by the city of the offered 
dedication shown thereon.  

(d)  Upon request of a person submitting a subdivision plat or re-plat, and after receiving the 
recommendation of its city engineer, the city fire marshal, and other entities as may be appropriate, 



the council may vary or modify the technical construction requirements or right-of-way widths, after 
finding that the variation or modification will protect the public health safety and welfare as well or 
better than the standards contained in this chapter.  

(Ordinance 729, adopted 6/28/16, Section 1 (App. A)) 

Sec. 9.109. - Requirements for the Subdivision and Re-Subdivision of Land.  

(a)  No Private Streets. Private streets are prohibited.  

(b)  Lots Size and Dimensions. Each platted tract in a subdivision must conform to the lot size, 
dimensions, and setback requirements of the district in which it is located. If the tract overlaps two (2) 
or more districts, the requirements of the most restrictive district will apply.  

(c)  Streets. All streets shall have a minimum right of way width of thirty (30) feet. The roadway must 
contain a paved surface of at least twenty-eight (28) feet of reinforced concrete paving with 
integrated concrete curbs and gutters, or an open ditch roadway with a paved surface of at least 
twenty (20) feet in width. Either of these options must meet all specifications required by any 
ordinance of the city, and any requirements of the city engineer.  

(d)  Cul-de-sac Streets. All local streets that do not have an outlet, i.e., dead end streets, shall have 
paved circular turnarounds at the ends, of at least eighty feet in diameter. The maximum length of 
any cul-de-sac local street shall not exceed five hundred fifty (550) feet, measured along the 
centerline of the street plus the radius of the cul-de-sac.  

(e)  Off-Street Parking. All lots shall provide a minimum of two (2) off street parking spaces, nine (9) by 
twenty (20) feet each, in addition to a two-car private garage.  

(f)  Easements. Parallel ten-foot utility easements shall be required on both sides of any street unless 
the city engineer determines that existing easements are sufficient and that a narrower easement will 
be sufficient for the use of utilities. If reasonably required by any utility, an adequate aerial easement 
shall also be provided.  

(g)  Drainage. Drainage easements shall be dedicated in the locations required by the city engineer. All 
subdivisions and re-subdivisionsnew development shall provide adequate storm drainage in 
accordance with all city and county drainage requirements. At a minimum, all new development 
greater than one acre shall be designed such that: 1) localized conveyance systems (storm sewer 
systems and roadside ditches) and detention basins shall be designed utilizing Atlas 14 rainfall (can 
refer to Harris County or City of Houston rainfall calculations); 2) the minimum detention storage rate 
shall be 0.55 acre-feet per acre; and 3) hydrograph timing shall not be used as a substitution for 
detention. 

(h)  Water and Sanitary Systems and/or Storm Sewer Systems. Adequate water and sewer systems 
shall be designated and constructed at the sub-divider's expense to serve all land, in accordance 
with the requirements of the city engineer.  

(i)  Fire Hydrants. All water systems shall have fire hydrants located and installed to meet all 
requirements of the National Fire Code and the city fire department pertaining to fire hydrant 
installation and type, and not more than five hundred feet from any lot.  

(j)  Street Lights. The subdivision plan must include street lights that are consistent with all City of 
Hilshire Village requirements that are in force at the time of the application.  

(Ordinance 729, adopted 6/28/16, Section 1 (App. A)) 

Sec. 9.110. - Pavement Requirements for Streets and Roads.  

Commented [A1]: Recommendation  



Any streets, roads, and drainage in the re-plat must meet the specifications for pavement in force at 
the time of the re-plat application. All curve data shall be shown on plats.  

(Ordinance 729, adopted 6/28/16, Section 1 (App. A)) 

Sec. 9.111. - Requirements for Storm Drainage on Road with Open Ditches.  

(a)  Minimum grade for open ditches shall be 0.10%.  

(b)  Ditches shall handle a minimum two-year City of Houston storm event frequency.  

(c)  Side slopes of ditch shall not be steeper than 2(H) to 1 (V).  

(d)  Road side ditches shall not exceed four (4) feet in depth.  

(e)  Culverts:  

(1)  Designed to carry ditch discharge and not less than eighteen-inch diameter pipe; or  

(2)  In the event the minimum eighteen-inch diameter culvert cannot be installed due to the existing 
physical constraints in the area, the city may consider and grant a variance to implement an 
alternative solution to the problem, upon review and recommendation by the city engineer, if the 
drainage in the area will not be adversely affected.  

(f)  Outfalls from ditches into natural drainage ways shall enter at the grade of the natural drainage 
channel. If necessary, drop type outfall structures shall be used to prevent erosion.  

(g)  If the developer proposes to construct major structures, such as box culverts or bridges, across 
drainage channels, those structures shall conform to plans and specifications of the city engineer.  

(Ordinance 729, adopted 6/28/16, Section 1 (App. A)) 

Sec. 9.112. - Inspection.  

(a)  To insure conformance with the final subdivision plat and plans as approved by the city council, the 
city engineer or his representatives will inspect the subdivision during the construction and after 
construction is completed.  

(b)  The city engineer will report his findings and note variations from the plans and make 
recommendations and require actions that will insure compliance with the submitted plans. If the 
developer fails to follow these recommendations, the subdivision will not be accepted by the city.  

(c)  At the expiration of a minimum of one (1) year following original approval of the subdivision by city 
council, the developer will notify the city council by letter that construction of improvements in the 
subdivision has been completed in accordance with the plans and specifications previously 
submitted to the city council, and that these improvements have been maintained at his expense for 
a period of one (1) year following the completion of the construction of the roads, streets and 
drainage facilities. The letter shall further formally request that the city accept for ma intenance the 
roads, streets and drainage facilities with the subdivision or re-subdivision.  

(d)  Final inspection will be made, and recommendation by the city engineer will be submitted to the city 
council to accept or reject subdivision or re-subdivision for maintenance of streets, roads and 
drainage facilities.  

(e)  The city council will act to accept or reject the roads, streets and drainage facilities for maintenance; 
and release the bond referred to above.  

(Ordinance 729, adopted 6/28/16, Section 1 (App. A)) 



Sec. 9.113. - Developer to Pay all Contract Service Costs and Other Related Costs.  

(a)  The developer shall pay all contract service costs and other related costs incurred by the city during 
the review and approval process associated with the subdivision of property. These costs shall 
include all engineering costs, legal fees, building official costs, publication costs, and any other 
actual related expenses incurred by the city.  

(b)  At the conclusion of the city's review and approval process for each subdivision, all city contractors 
required to review documents for the plat process shall present a bill to the city council based on the 
usual rates for providing contracted services.  

(c)  Upon approval by the city council, the bill will be forwarded to the developer for payment.  

(d)  The developer shall make one total payment to the city for all combined city contractor service costs 
and other related costs incurred by the city during the review and approval process. Payments are 
due within thirty (30) days from the date that the bill is presented to the developer.  

(Ordinance 729, adopted 6/28/16, Section 1 (App. A)) 

Sec. 9.114. - Discrepancies in Plans to Constitute Bond Forfeiture.  

Any discrepancies found between construction and plans and specifications of same shall be 
promptly corrected by the developers. In the event of failure to promptly correct, the developer shall forfeit 
the amount of his performance bond to the extent required to correct the discrepancies.  

(Ordinance 729, adopted 6/28/16, Section 1 (App. A))  

ROADWAY TYPES AND MINIMUM DISTANCES. CUL-DE-SACS HAVE A MINIMUM DIAMETER OF 
80 FEET. EITHER ROADWAY OPTION REQUIRES A RIGHT OF WAY (ROW) OF A MINIMUM OF 30 

FEET.  



 





1 

Ordinance Number 803-2020 Page 1 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 803-2020 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE, TEXAS, 

AMENDING CHAPTER 3, ARTICLE 300, FLOOD PREVENTION DAMAGE, 

AND CHAPTER 9, SUBDIVISIONS, OF ITS CODE OF ORDINANCES TO 

AMEND ITS STANDARDS FOR DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF STORM 

WATER CONVEYANCE AND DETENTION SYSTEMS, TO REQUIRE 

STORM WATER DETENTION FOR CERTAIN PROJECTS, AND TO 

PROHIBIT CERTAIN DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE 500 YEAR PLAIN; 

PROVIDING A PENALTY OF UP TO $2,000.00 PER VIOLATION PER DAY; 

AND MAKING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED THERETO. 

 

WHEREAS, the Harris County Flood Control District, the Harris County Engineer, and the Harris 

County Commissioner’s Court has requested that communities in Harris County: 1) use Atlas 14 

rainfall rates for sizing storm water conveyance and detention systems, 2) require a minimum 

detention rate of 1.55 acre feet per acre detention for any new non-single family residential 

development on tracts one acre or larger; 3) use hydrograph timing as a substitution for detention 

on development projects; 4) require no net fill in the current mapped 500-year floodplain; and 5) 

required the minimum finished floor elevation of new habitable structures be established at or 

waterproofed to the 500-year floodplain elevation in order to assist the County in flood control; 

and  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Hilshire Village, Texas, finds that the measures 

requested are reasonable and prudent;  

Now, therefore,  

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE, 

TEXAS, THAT: 

  SECTION 1:  Chapter 3, Article 3.300, Section 3.301, of the Code of Ordinances, 

City of Hilshire Village, Texas, is hereby amended, by adding definitions, to be placed in 

alphabetical order, of “area of moderate flood hazard”, “five-hundred-year floodplain elevation”, 

and “moderate flood hazard area”, to read as follows: 

 “Area of moderate flood hazard shall mean the land between the limits of the base flood 

and the 0.2-percent-annual-chance (or 500-year) flood. They are shown on flood maps as zones 

labeled with the letters B or X (shaded). 

 Five-hundred (500) year floodplain elevation shall mean the elevation of surface water 

resulting from a flood that has a 0.2-percent chance of equaling or exceeding that level in any 

given year. The 500-year floodplain elevation is shown on the flood insurance rate map for zones 

B and X (shaded). 



2 

Ordinance Number 803-2020 Page 2 
 

 Moderate flood hazard area. See area of moderate flood hazard.” 

SECTION 2:  Chapter 3, Article 3.300, Sections 3.302 through 3.304 of the Code of Ordinances, 

City of Hilshire Village, Texas, are amended to read as follows: 

“Sec. 3.302. - Lands to which this article applies.  

This article shall apply to all areas of special flood hazard and moderate flood hazard area 

within the jurisdiction of the city.  

Sec. 3.303. - Basis for establishing the areas of special flood hazard and moderate flood hazard.  

The areas of special flood hazard and moderate flood hazard identified by the Federal 

Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) in a scientific and engineering report entitled "Flood 

Insurance Study—Harris, County, Texas and Incorporated Areas" dated June 9, 2014, with 

accompanying flood insurance rate maps and flood boundary-floodway maps (FIRMs and 

FBFMs) and any revisions thereto are hereby adopted by reference and declared to be a part of 

this article.  

Sec. 3.304. - Establishment of development permit.  

It shall be unlawful for any person to commence new construction, substantial 

improvements, or any other development within an area of special flood hazard and/or moderate 

flood hazard within the jurisdiction of the city without having first received a development 

permit therefor issued in accordance with this article, to ensure conformance with the provisions 

of this article.” 

 

SECTION 3.  Chapter 3, Article 3.300, Subsections 3.328(6) and 3.28(11) of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Hilshire Village, Texas, are amended to read as follows: 

“(6)    Variances may be issued for new construction and substantial improvements to be erected 

on a lot of one-half acre or less in size contiguous to and surrounded by lots with existing 

structures constructed below the base flood level or 500-year floodplain elevation, provided 

the relevant factors in section 26-134(b) of this article have been fully considered. As the lot 

site increases beyond the one-half acre, the technical justification required for issuing the 

variance shall be increased proportionately.  

11)  Variances may be issued for new construction and substantial improvements and for other 

development necessary for the conduct of a functionally dependent use provided that (i) the 

criteria outlined in subsections (1) through (11) above are met; and (ii) the structure or other 

development is protected by methods that minimize flood damage during the base flood and/or 

the 500-year flood and creates no additional threats to public safety.” 



3 

Ordinance Number 803-2020 Page 3 
 

SECTION 4.  Chapter 3, Article 3.300, Sections 3.335 through 3.337 of the Code Ordinances of 

the City of Hilshire Villager are amended to read as follows: 

“Sec. 3.335. - General standards.  

In all areas of special flood hazard and moderate flood hazard, the following provisions shall 

be required for all new construction and substantial improvements:  

(1)  All new construction or substantial improvements shall be designed (or modified) and 

adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the structure 

resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy;  

(2)  All new construction or substantial improvements shall be constructed by methods and 

practices that minimize flood damage;  

(3)  All new construction or substantial improvements shall be constructed with materials 

resistant to flood damage;  

(4)  All new construction or substantial improvements shall be constructed with electrical, 

heating, ventilation, plumbing, and air conditioning equipment and other service facilities 

that are designed and/or located so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating 

within the components during conditions of flooding;  

(5)  All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or 

eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the system;  

(6)  All new and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or 

eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the system and discharge from the systems into 

floodwater; and  

(7)  On-site waste disposal systems shall be located to avoid impairment to them or 

contamination from them during flooding.  

(8)    Compensating floodplain mitigation will be required for any fill placed below the base 

flood elevation and/or 500-year floodplain elevation for any new construction or 

substantial improvements. 

Sec. 3.336. - Specific standards.  

In all areas of special flood hazard and moderate flood hazard where base flood elevation 

and 500-year floodplain elevation data has been provided as set forth in section 3.303, section 

3.326(1)(h), or section 3.337(3), the following provisions are required:  

(1)  Residential construction. New construction and substantial improvement of any 

residential structure shall have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated to one (1) 

foot above the base flood elevation or at or above the 500-year floodplain elevation, 

whichever is higher. A registered professional engineer, architect, or land surveyor shall 

submit a certification to the floodplain administrator that the standard of this subsection 

as proposed in section 3.327(a)(1) above is satisfied.  



4 

Ordinance Number 803-2020 Page 4 
 

(2)  Nonresidential construction. New construction and substantial improvements of any 

commercial, industrial, or other nonresidential structure shall either have the lowest floor 

(including basement) elevated to one (1) foot above the base flood elevation or at or above 

the 500-year floodplain elevation, whichever is higher or, together with attendant utility 

and sanitary facilities, be designed so that below the 500-year floodplain elevation the 

structure is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water and 

with structural components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and 

hydrodynamic loads and effects of buoyancy. A registered professional engineer or 

architect shall develop and/or review structural design, specifications, and plans for the 

construction, and shall certify that the design and methods of construction are in 

accordance with accepted standards of practice as outlined in this subsection. A record of 

such certification that includes the specific elevation (in relation to mean sea level) to 

which such structures are floodproofed shall be maintained by the floodplain 

administrator.  

(3)  Enclosures. New construction or substantial improvements, with fully enclosed areas 

below the lowest floor that are usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access, or 

storage in an area other than a basement and which are subject to flooding, shall be 

designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls by allowing 

for the entry and exit of floodwaters. Designs for meeting this requirement must either be 

certified by a registered professional engineer or architect and meet or exceed the 

following minimum criteria:  

(a)  A minimum of two (2) openings having a total net area of not less than one (1) 

square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding shall be 

provided;  

(b)  The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one (1) foot above grade; and  

(c)  Openings shall not be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or 

devices unless that they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters.  

(4)  Manufactured homes.  

(a)  All manufactured homes to be placed within zone A on a community's FHBM or 

FIRM shall be installed using methods and practices which minimize flood damage. 

For the purposes of this requirement, manufactured homes shall be elevated and 

anchored to resist flotation, collapse, or lateral movement. Methods of anchoring 

may include, but are not limited to, the use of over-the-top or frame ties to ground 

anchors. This requirement is in addition to applicable state and local anchoring 

requirements for resisting wind forces.  

(b)  Manufactured homes that are placed or substantially improved within zones A1-

30, AH, and X (shaded) on the community's FIRM on sites:  

1.  Outside of a manufactured home park or subdivision;  

2.  In a new manufactured home park or subdivision;  

3.  In an expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision; or  



5 

Ordinance Number 803-2020 Page 5 
 

4.  In an existing manufactured home park or subdivision on which a manufactured 

home has incurred substantial damage as a result of a flood, shall be elevated on 

a permanent foundation such that the lowest floor of the manufactured home is 

elevated to or above the base flood elevation or to or above the 500-year 

floodplain elevation, whichever is higher, and shall be securely anchored to an 

adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral 

movement.  

(c)  Manufactured homes placed or substantially improved on sites within an existing 

manufactured home park or subdivision within zones A1-30, AH, AE, and X 

(shaded) on the community's FIRM that are not subject to the provisions of 

subsection (4) b.4 of this section shall be elevated so that either:  

1.  The lowest floor of the manufactured home is at or above the base flood 

elevation or at or above the 500-year floodplain elevation, whichever is higher; 

or  

2.  The manufactured home chassis is supported by reinforced piers or other 

foundation elements of at least equivalent strength that are no less than thirty-

six (36) inches in height above grade and securely anchored to an adequately 

anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement.  

(5)  Recreational vehicles. Recreational vehicles placed on sites within zones A1-30, AH, 

and AE on the community's FIRM shall either:  

(a)  Be on the site for fewer than one hundred eighty (180) consecutive days;  

(b)  Be fully licensed and ready for highway use; or  

(c)  Meet the permit requirements of section 3.327 hereof and the elevation and 

anchoring requirements for manufactured homes in subsection (4) of this section. A 

recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, 

is attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and security devices, and 

has no permanently attached additions.  

(6)  Accessory structures. The construction of such structure must satisfy the following 

standards in unnumbered and numbered A zones:  

(a)  Structure is low valued and represents a minimal investment.  

(b)  Structure shall be small in size, not exceed six hundred (600) square feet in size.  

(c)  Structure shall be unfurnished on the interior.  

(d)  Structure can be used only for parking and limited storage.  

(e)  Structure shall not be used for human habitation (including work, sleeping, living, 

cooking, or restroom areas).  

(f)  Service facilities such as electrical and heating equipment must be elevated to or 

above the BFE or floodproofed.  

(g)  Structure is constructed and place on building site so as to offer the minimum 

resistance to the flow of floodwaters.  



6 

Ordinance Number 803-2020 Page 6 
 

(h)  Structure is designed to have low flood damage potential, i.e., constructed with 

flood resistance materials.  

(i)  Structure is firmly anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, and lateral movement.  

(j)  Floodway requirements must be met in the construction of the structure.  

(k)  Openings to relieve hydrostatic pressure during a flood shall be provided below the 

BFE.  

No accessory structures are allowed in V zones except for "disposable" sheds. If 

constructed, fill cannot be used for structural support and the areas below the BFE must remain 

free of obstruction or be constructed with non-supporting breakaway walls, open latticework, or 

insect screening. All accessory structures are to be located so as not to cause damage to adjacent 

and nearby structures.  

Sec. 3.337. - Standards for subdivision proposals.  

(1)  All subdivision proposals, including manufactured home parks and subdivisions, shall 

comply with sections 3.316, 3.317, and 3.318 of this article.  

(2)  All proposals for the development of subdivisions, including manufactured home parks and 

subdivisions, shall meet floodplain development permit requirements of section 3.304, section 

3.327, and the provisions of this article.  

(3)  Base flood elevation and 500-year floodplain elevation data shall be provided for subdivision 

proposals and other proposed development, including manufactured home parks and 

subdivisions, which is greater than fifty (50) lots or five (5) acres, whichever is less, if not 

otherwise provided pursuant to section 3.303 or section 3.326(1)(h) of this article.  

(4)  All subdivision proposals, including manufactured home parks and subdivisions, shall have 

adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards.  

(5)  All subdivision proposals, including manufactured home parks and subdivisions, shall have 

public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems located and 

constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage.  

SECTION 5: Chapter 9, Article 9.100, Subsection 9.109(g) of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of Hilshire Village, Texas, is amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 9.109. Requirements for the Subdivision and Re-Subdivision of Land. 

“(g) Drainage. Drainage easements shall be dedicated in the locations required by the city engineer. 

All subdivisions, re-subdivisions and new development shall provide adequate storm drainage 

in accordance with all city and county drainage requirements. At a minimum, all new 

development greater than one acre shall be designed such that: 1) localized conveyance 

systems (storm sewer systems and roadside ditches) and detention basins shall be designed 

utilizing Atlas 14 rainfall (can refer to Harris County or City of Houston rainfall calculations); 

2) the minimum detention storage rate shall be 0.55 acre-feet per acre; and 3) hydrograph 

timing shall not be used as a substitution for detention.” 

 



7 

Ordinance Number 803-2020 Page 7 
 

SECTION 6. Severability.  In the event any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, 

provision, sentence, or part of this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or 

circumstance shall for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any 

part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City 

Council of Hilshire Village, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same 

notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, or 

whether there be one or more parts. 

SECTION 7. Repeal.  All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict or inconsistent 

herewith are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby repealed. 

SECTION 8. Notice, Penalty and Effective Date.  The City Secretary is directed to give notice of 

the enactment of this ordinance as provided by Section 52.011 of the Texas Local Government 

Code.  Upon publication, any person who shall violate any provision of this Ordinance shall be 

deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in an amount not to exceed 

$2,000.00 as provided in Section 1.106. 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this ____ day of _________, 2020. 

 

 

                                                            

       ______________________________ 

ATTEST:      Russell Herron, Mayor 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Susan Blevins, City Secretary 



4.1 Discussion and possible action to authorize City Staff to select a contractor to 
construct/install the water and sanitary sewer services for 1330 Glourie Drive and 
three (3) nearby/adjacent empty lots for a Not to Exceed amount of $50,000. (City 
Engineer Him) ...................................................................................................... 8  

 

 

No documentation 



Resolution 2020-207 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION # 2020-207 

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE, 

TEXAS REPLACING THE DESIGNATED COUNCIL 

MEMBER AS THE CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE’S 

SIGNATORY FOR THE FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS TO 

BE COUNCIL MEMBER MIKE GORDY 

 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Hilshire 

Village, Texas, that Council Member Mike Gordy replace Council Member 

Robert Swanson as a Bank Signatory. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Hilshire 

Village, the 20th of October 2020. 

 

 

 

___________________ 

Russell Herron, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________ 

Susan Blevins, City Secretary 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 792-2019

AI\ ORDINANCE AMEI\IDING CIIAPTTR IO, TRAFtr'IC REGULATIONS. OX'
TIIE CODE OF ORDTNAI{CDS OF TTIE CTTY OX'HILSHTRE VILLAGE, TEXAS,
BY PROHIBITING STREET PARKING I'ROM 1:00 A.M. UNTIL 5:00 A.I\[
WTTIIOUT A PARKING PERMIT; PROVIDING FOR PARKING PERMITS;
PROYIDING A PENALTY IN AI{ AMOUIYT NOT TO EXCEED $2OO.OO FOR
VIOLATION OX'AIYY PROVISION OF THIS ORDINAIICE; REPEALING ALL
ORDINAI\ICES OR PARTS OF' ORDINAIICES INCONSISTDNT OR IN
CoNT'LICT HEREWTIH, AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY.

WIIEREAS, Texas Transportation Code Section 542.201 authorizes the City to enact and
enforce rules regulating traffic that do not conflict with Texas's Rules of the Road; and

WIIEREAS, the City has previously adopted traffic regulations applicable within the Crty; and

WEEREAS, the Citlr Council hereby finds and detemrines that the regulations and amendments
set forth herein are in the best interest ofthe public and are adopted in furtherance ofthe public heatth,
safety, morals, and general welfare.

BE IT ORDAII\ED BY TIIE CITY COI]NCIL OF TIIE CITY OF IIILSHIRE VILLAGE.
TEXAS:

Section 1. Chapter 10, Traffic Regulations, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Hilshire Village, Texas, is hereby amended by amending Section 10.601, Regulations Generally, to
read as follows:

Sec. 10.601. Regulations Generally.

(a) No person shall stop, par\ or leave standing any unattended vehicle upon the paved
part of any street in the City so as to impede the reasonable flow of haffic or passage of
emergency vehicles.

(b) No person shall stop, parlg or leave standing any unattended vehicle in a mamrer that
impedes the ingress or egress of a public or private driveway.

(c) Vehicles may not be parked on the street from l:00 am until 5:00 am without a valid
parking permit issued by the City.

Section 2. Chapter 10, Traffrc Regulatiors, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Hilshire Village, Texas, is hereby further amend,ed by amending Section 10.607, Further Restrictions
on Vehicle Parking, and adding Section 10.608, Temporary Parking Permit; Fees, to read as follows:

Sec. 10.607. - tr'urther Restrictions on Vehicle Parking.

(a) Number restriction. Not more than five (5) vehicles shall be parked overnight on
any residential lot so as to be visible to public view. One (1) of such vehicles may be
a dual wheel truck with single rear axle, and one of such vehicles may have visible
commercial advertising consistent with the city's sign regulations.

Ordinance No. 792:20L9 Approved December !7,2,019 Page-1-



(b) Street restrictfon. No occupant of any residential lot shall use any street within the
city for parking vehicles that are not permitted to be parked on the occupant's lot.

(c) Long-term parking restriction. No vehicle may be parked on the street from 1:00
am until 5:00 am unless a valid parking permit issued by the City is conspicuously
displayed in the lower corner ofthe front windshield on the driver's side of the vehicle.

10.608 Temporarv Parking Permit: F ees.

(a) Upon application of a person who owns or occupies a residence abutting a public
street in the City, the City Administrator may issue a temporary residential parking
permit: i) in increments of 3-days, l4-days, or 30 days, which may be renewed up to
three consecutive times; ii) for on street parking in designated areas, iii) for a specific
vehicle registration.'

(b) The City Council may impose a fee for the ternporary parking permit by
resolution.

Section 3. Any person, corporation or entity who shall violate any provision of this
Ordinance shall be deemed guilty ofa misdemeanor and upon conviction, shall be fined in an amount
not to €xceed $200.00. Each day in which any violation shall occw' or each occurrence of.any
violation, shall constitute a separate offense.

Section 4. A1l ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith are, to
the extent of such inconsistency or conflict, hereby repealed.

Section 5. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this Ordinance or
the application ofthe same to any person or circumstances shall for any reason be adjudged invalid or
held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this
Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or
unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Hilshire Village, Texas, declares that it would
have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such pad thus
declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts.

Section 6. This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adopion and publication of
this ordinance or a caption that surnmarizes the purpose of this ordinance and the penalty for violating
this ordinance in every issue of the official newspaper for two days, or one issue of the newspaper if
the official newspaper is a weekly paper, in accordance with Section 52.011 of the Texas Local
Govemment Code.

Ordinance No. 792:20L9 Approved December 17,20L9 Page-2-



PASSED, APPROVED, AhID ADOPTED this 17th day of December. z,{flp.

ATTEST:

&n, ,r( ?', a
Russell Herron, Mayor

Ordinance No. 792:2019 Approved December L7 ,20t9 Page-3-



oRDrI.{ANqE NO. 773-2019

AII ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 7, OFFENSES AND NInSAT\CES, OF TIIE
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF TI{E CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE, TEXAS BY
ADOPTING A NEW ARTICLE NO. 7.900, PORTABLE STORAGE CONTATNERS;
PROHIBITING TTIE USE OF PORTABLE STORAGE CONTAINERS EXCEPT T]NDER
CERTAIN CONDITIONS; PROVII}ING FOR ISSUAFICE OF PERMITS; PROYIDING
FOR SEVERABILITY AFID REPEAL; PROVII}ING FOR NOTICE, PENALTY Ah[D
EFFECTTVN, DATE.

WHEREAS, the zoning committee has presented its written recommendations to City
Council recommending that tfre City prohibit the use of portable storage containers except under
certain conditions: and i

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Hilshire Village desires to amend its Code of
Ordinances to implement the changes recommended by the committee;

NOW THEREFORE.

BE IT ORDAIII-ED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IIILSIIIRE YILLAGE,
TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1: Findings. The facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance
are found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted, ratified, ffid confirmed.

Section 2: Portable Storage Containers - Code Amended. The Code of Ordinances
of the City of Hilshire Village, Texas is amended by the adoption of a new Article 7.900, Portable
Storage Containers, under Chapter 7, Offenses and Nuisances, that shall read as follows:

..ARTICLE 7.900. - PORTABLE STORAGE CONTAINERS.

Sec. 7.901. Definition - Portable Storage Container. Portable storage container means a
transportable storage container designed or used primarily for storage

(a) A person commits an offense if the person parks, leaves standing, or stores, or permits
another person to park, leave standing or store, a portable storage container within the City.

(b) It is an affirmative defense to an offense under this section that 1) the portable storage
container was located completely on an improved driveway on a residential lot; and2) the portable
storage container was not stored for more than 7 days within a thirty-day period or the person had
a permit issued pursuant to Section7.903.

Ordinance No. 2AL9-773 Approved 3-19-19 Page t



' Sec. 7.903. Citv Permit.

In the event of special circumstances, such as but not limited to a natural disaster, the city
administrator with the concurrence ofthe mayor may issue a permit for the use of a portable storage
container for a period not to exceed 30 days.

Section 3. Severability. In the event any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this Ordinance or the application of the sitme to any person
or circumstance shall for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any
part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City
Council of the City of Hilshire Village declares that it would have passed each and every part of
the same nofwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or
unconstitutional or whether there be one or more parts.

Section 4. Repeal. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict or
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby repealed.

Section 5. Notice, Penalty and Effective Date. The City Secretary is directed to give
notice of the enactment of this ordinance as provided by Section 52.011 of the Texas Local
Government Code. Upon publication, any person who shall violate any provision of this Ordinance
shall be deemed gurlty of a misdemeanor ffid, upon conviction, shall be fined in an amount not to
exceed $500.00 as provided in Section 1.106.

PASSED, APPROVED, Ah[D ADOPTED this 19th day of March,z}Ig.

ATTEST:

Blevins, City

Ordinance No. 2019-773 Approved 3-19-19 Page 2



ϭ 

CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND (CRF) 
SMALL CITIES TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

INTERLOCAL GRANT AGREEMENT AND 
CORONAVIRUS RELEIF FUND (CRF) SMALL CITIES TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

THE STATE OF TEXAS � 
� 

COUNTY OF HARRIS     � 

ThiV IQWeUlRcal AgUeemeQW (Whe ³AgUeemeQW´) iV made aQd eQWeUed iQWR b\ aQd beWZeeQ HaUUiV CRXQW\, a bRd\ 
cRUSRUaWe aQd SRliWic XQdeU Whe laZV Rf Whe SWaWe Rf Te[aV (³CRXQW\´), acWiQg b\ aQd WhURXgh iWV gRYeUQiQg bRd\ Whe 
HaUUiV CRXQW\ CRmmiVViRQeUV CRXUW, aQd HilVhiUe Village (³CiW\´ RU ³gUaQWee´ RU ³VXbUeciSieQW´), SXUVXaQW WR Whe 
IQWeUlRcal CRRSeUaWiRQ AcW, Te[. GRY¶W CRde AQQ. �� 791.001 ± 791.030.   HaUUiV CRXQW\ aQd CiW\ aUe UefeUUed WR 
heUeiQ cRllecWiYel\ aV Whe ³PaUWieV´ aQd iQdiYidXall\ aV a ³PaUW\.´ 

HaUUiV CRXQW\ Zill UeimbXUVe Whe CiW\ fRU QeceVVaU\ eligible e[SeQdiWXUeV iQcXUUed dXe WR Whe SXblic healWh 
emeUgeQc\ ZiWh UeVSecW WR COVID-19 fRU a QRW WR e[ceed amRXQW Rf $45,045.00 aV eYideQced iQ Whe NRWice Rf 
SXbUeciSieQW GUaQW AZaUd, aSSURYed b\ HaUUiV CRXQW\ CRmmiVViRQeUV CRXUW RQ JXl\ 14, 2020, aWWached heUeWR aV 
E[hibiW A aQd iQcRUSRUaWed heUeiQ b\ UefeUeQce. The PaUWieV agUee WhaW Whe amRXQW VSecified iQ E[hibiW A iV jXVW aQd 
faiU cRmSeQVaWiRQ fRU e[SeQVeV iQcXUUed dXe WR Whe COVID-19 SXblic healWh emeUgeQc\. The PaUWieV agUee WhaW a 
SXblic SXUSRVe Zill be VeUYed b\ XViQg Whe gUaQW fXQdV WR UeimbXUVe lRcal mXQiciSaliWieV fRU QeceVVaU\ eligible 
e[SeQdiWXUeV iQcXUUed dXe WR Whe SXblic healWh emeUgeQc\ ZiWh UeVSecW WR COVID-19. HaUUiV CRXQW\ agUeeV WhaW all 
fXQdV XVed WR Sa\ fRU Whe RbligaWiRQV Rf WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW Zill be WakeQ fURm cXUUeQW fiVcal fXQdV. 

AbRXW ThLV DRcXPeQW 

IQ WhiV dRcXmeQW, gUaQWeeV Zill fiQd Whe WeUmV aQd cRQdiWiRQV aSSlicable WR Sa\meQWV diVWUibXWed iQ Whe fRUm Rf gUaQWV 
WR lRcal XQiWV Rf gRYeUQmeQWV fURm Whe CRURQaYiUXV Relief FXQd eVWabliVhed ZiWhiQ VecWiRQ 601 Rf Whe SRcial SecXUiW\ 
AcW, aV added b\ VecWiRQ 5001 Rf Whe CRURQaYiUXV Aid, Relief, aQd EcRQRmic SecXUiW\ AcW (³CARES AcW´). 

OWheU VWaWe aQd fedeUal UeTXiUemeQWV aQd cRQdiWiRQV ma\ aSSl\ WR \RXU gUaQW, iQclXdiQg bXW QRW limiWed WR: 2 CFR 
PaUW 200, UQifRUm AdmiQiVWUaWiYe ReTXiUemeQWV, CRVW PUiQciSleV, aQd AXdiW ReTXiUemeQWV fRU FedeUal AZaUdV.; 
ChaSWeU 783 Rf Whe Te[aV GRYeUQmeQW CRde; aQd Whe UQifRUm GUaQW MaQagemeQW SWaQdaUdV (UGMS) deYelRSed 
b\ Whe CRmSWURlleU Rf PXblic AccRXQWV. 

TR Whe e[WeQW Whe WeUmV aQd cRQdiWiRQV Rf WhiV gUaQW agUeemeQW dR QRW addUeVV a SaUWicXlaU ciUcXmVWaQce RU aUe 
RWheUZiVe XQcleaU RU ambigXRXV, VXch WeUmV aQd cRQdiWiRQV aUe WR be cRQVWUXed cRQViVWeQW ZiWh Whe geQeUal 
RbjecWiYeV, e[SecWaWiRQV aQd SXUSRVeV Rf WhiV gUaQW agUeemeQW aQd iQ all caVeV, accRUdiQg WR iWV faiU meaQiQg. The 
SaUWieV ackQRZledge WhaW each SaUW\ aQd iWV cRXQVel haYe UeYieZed WhiV gUaQW agUeemeQW aQd WhaW aQ\ UXle Rf 
cRQVWUXcWiRQ WR Whe effecW WhaW aQ\ ambigXiWieV aUe WR be UeVRlYed agaiQVW Whe dUafWiQg SaUW\ Vhall QRW be emSlR\ed iQ



Ϯ 

Whe iQWeUSUeWaWiRQ Rf WhiV gUaQW agUeemeQW. AQ\ YagXe, ambigXRXV RU cRQflicWiQg WeUmV Vhall be iQWeUSUeWed aQd 
cRQVWUXed iQ VXch a maQQeU aV WR accRmSliVh Whe SXUSRVe Rf Whe gUaQW agUeemeQW.



ϯ 

TDEOH RI CRQWHQWV 
ϭ GƌaŶƚ AgƌeeŵeŶƚ ReƋƵiƌeŵeŶƚƐ aŶd CŽŶdiƚiŽŶƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϰ 

ϭ͘ϭ AƉƉůicabiůiƚǇ Žf GƌaŶƚ AgƌeeŵeŶƚ aŶd PƌŽǀiƐiŽŶƐ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϰ 

ϭ͘Ϯ Legaů AƵƚhŽƌiƚǇ ƚŽ AƉƉůǇ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϱ 

ϭ͘ϯ GƌaŶƚ AcceƉƚaŶce ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϱ 

ϭ͘ϰ PƌŽũecƚ PeƌiŽd ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϱ 

ϭ͘ϱ GeŶeƌaů ReƐƉŽŶƐibiůiƚǇ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϱ 

ϭ͘ϲ AŵeŶdŵeŶƚƐ aŶd ChaŶgeƐ ƚŽ ƚhe GƌaŶƚ AgƌeeŵeŶƚ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϲ 

ϭ͘ϳ JƵƌiƐdicƚiŽŶaů CŽŽƉeƌaƚiŽŶ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϲ 

ϭ͘ϴ PƵbůic IŶfŽƌŵaƚiŽŶ aŶd MeeƚiŶgƐ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϲ 

ϭ͘ϵ ReŵedieƐ fŽƌ NŽŶͲCŽŵƉůiaŶce͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϳ 

ϭ͘ϭϬ FaůƐe SƚaƚeŵeŶƚƐ bǇ GƌaŶƚee ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϳ 

ϭ͘ϭϭ CŽŶfůicƚ Žf IŶƚeƌeƐƚ SafegƵaƌdƐ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϴ 

ϭ͘ϭϮ FƌaƵd͕ WaƐƚe͕ aŶd AbƵƐe ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϴ 

ϭ͘ϭϯ TeƌŵiŶaƚiŽŶ Žf ƚhe AgƌeeŵeŶƚ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϴ 

ϭ͘ϭϰ LiŵiƚaƚiŽŶ Žf LiabiůiƚǇ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϵ 

ϭ͘ϭϱ DiƐƉƵƚe ReƐŽůƵƚiŽŶ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϵ 

ϭ͘ϭϲ LiabiůiƚǇ fŽƌ TaǆeƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϬ 

ϭ͘ϭϳ ReƋƵiƌed Sƚaƚe AƐƐƵƌaŶceƐ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϬ 

ϭ͘ϭϴ SǇƐƚeŵ fŽƌ Aǁaƌd MaŶageŵeŶƚ ;SAMͿ ReƋƵiƌeŵeŶƚƐ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϬ 

ϭ͘ϭϵ NŽ ObůigaƚiŽŶ bǇ Fedeƌaů GŽǀeƌŶŵeŶƚ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϬ 

ϭ͘ϮϬ NŽƚice ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϬ 

ϭ͘Ϯϭ FŽƌce MaũeƵƌe ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϭ 

ϭ͘ϮϮ FƌaŶchiƐe Taǆ CeƌƚificaƚiŽŶ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϭ 

ϭ͘Ϯϯ SeǀeƌabiůiƚǇ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϭ 

ϭ͘Ϯϰ EͲVeƌifǇ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϭ 

ϭ͘Ϯϱ CŽŵƉůiaŶce ǁiƚh Fedeƌaů Laǁ͕ RegƵůaƚiŽŶƐ͕ aŶd EǆecƵƚiǀe OƌdeƌƐ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϭ 

ϭ͘Ϯϲ CůeaŶ Aiƌ Acƚ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϭ 

ϭ͘Ϯϳ Fedeƌaů Waƚeƌ PŽůůƵƚiŽŶ CŽŶƚƌŽů Acƚ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϭ 

ϭ͘Ϯϴ SƵƐƉeŶƐiŽŶ aŶd DebaƌŵeŶƚ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϮ 

ϭ͘Ϯϵ EŶeƌgǇ CŽŶƐeƌǀaƚiŽŶ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϮ 

ϭ͘ϯϬ PƌŽcƵƌeŵeŶƚ Žf RecŽǀeƌed MaƚeƌiaůƐ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϮ



ϰ 

ϭ͘ϯϭ TeƌŵiŶaƚed CŽŶƚƌacƚƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϮ 

Ϯ PƌŽƉeƌƚǇ aŶd PƌŽcƵƌeŵeŶƚ ReƋƵiƌeŵeŶƚƐ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϯ 

Ϯ͘ϭ PƌŽƉeƌƚǇ MaŶageŵeŶƚ aŶd IŶǀeŶƚŽƌǇ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϯ 

Ϯ͘Ϯ CŽŶƐƵůƚiŶg CŽŶƚƌacƚƐ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϯ 

Ϯ͘ϯ PƌŽcƵƌeŵeŶƚ PƌacƚiceƐ aŶd PŽůicieƐ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϯ 

Ϯ͘ϰ CŽŶƚƌacƚ PƌŽǀiƐiŽŶƐ UŶdeƌ Fedeƌaů AǁaƌdƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϯ 

ϯ AƵdiƚ aŶd RecŽƌdƐ ReƋƵiƌeŵeŶƚƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϰ 

ϯ͘ϭ CŽŽƉeƌaƚiŽŶ ǁiƚh MŽŶiƚŽƌiŶg͕ AƵdiƚƐ͕ aŶd RecŽƌdƐ ReƋƵiƌeŵeŶƚƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϰ 

ϯ͘Ϯ SiŶgůe AƵdiƚ ReƋƵiƌeŵeŶƚƐ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϰ 

ϯ͘ϯ ReƋƵiƌeŵeŶƚ ƚŽ AddƌeƐƐ AƵdiƚ FiŶdiŶgƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϰ 

ϯ͘ϰ RecŽƌdƐ ReƚeŶƚiŽŶ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϰ 

ϰ PƌŽhibiƚed aŶd RegƵůaƚed AcƚiǀiƚieƐ aŶd EǆƉeŶdiƚƵƌeƐ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϱ 

ϰ͘ϭ PƌŽhibiƚed CŽƐƚƐ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϱ 

ϰ͘Ϯ PŽůiƚicaů AcƚiǀiƚieƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϱ 

ϱ FiŶaŶciaů ReƋƵiƌeŵeŶƚƐ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϲ 

ϱ͘ϭ Diƌecƚ DeƉŽƐiƚ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϲ 

ϱ͘Ϯ PaǇŵeŶƚƐ aŶd ReƋƵiƌed DŽcƵŵeŶƚaƚiŽŶ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϲ 

ϱ͘ϯ ReiŵbƵƌƐeŵeŶƚƐ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϲ 

ϱ͘ϰ RefƵŶdƐ aŶd DedƵcƚiŽŶƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϲ 

ϱ͘ϱ RecaƉƚƵƌe Žf FƵŶdƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϳ 

ϱ͘ϲ LiƋƵidaƚiŽŶ PeƌiŽd ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϳ 

ϱ͘ϳ PƌŽũecƚ CůŽƐe OƵƚ ͘ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϳ 

ϱ͘ϴ MiƐceůůaŶeŽƵƐ PƌŽǀiƐiŽŶƐ ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ ϭϳ 

EXHIBITS FOLLOW 

1 GUDQW AJUHHPHQW RHTXLUHPHQWV DQG CRQGLWLRQV 
1.1 ASSlicabiliW\ Rf GUaQW AgUeemeQW aQd PURYiViRQV 
The GUaQW AgUeemeQW iV VXbjecW WR Whe addiWiRQal WeUmV, cRQdiWiRQV, aQd UeTXiUemeQWV Rf RWheU laZV, UXleV, 
UegXlaWiRQV aQd SlaQV UeciWed heUeiQ aQd iV iQWeQded WR be Whe fXll aQd cRmSleWe e[SUeVViRQ Rf aQd cRQVWiWXWeV Whe 
eQWiUe agUeemeQW beWZeeQ Whe SaUWieV heUeWR ZiWh UeVSecW WR Whe VXbjecW maWWeU heUeRf aQd all SUiRU aQd 
cRQWemSRUaQeRXV XQdeUVWaQdiQgV, agUeemeQWV, SURmiVeV, UeSUeVeQWaWiRQV, WeUmV aQd cRQdiWiRQV, bRWh RUal aQd 
ZUiWWeQ, aUe VXSeUVeded aQd UeSlaced b\ WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW.



ϱ 

NRWZiWhVWaQdiQg aQ\ e[SiUaWiRQ RU WeUmiQaWiRQ Rf WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW, Whe UighWV aQd RbligaWiRQV SeUWaiQiQg WR Whe 
gUaQW clRVe-RXW, cRRSeUaWiRQ aQd SURYiViRQ Rf addiWiRQal iQfRUmaWiRQ, UeWXUQ Rf gUaQW fXQdV, aXdiW UighWV, UecRUdV 
UeWeQWiRQ, SXblic iQfRUmaWiRQ, aQd aQ\ RWheU SURYiViRQ imSl\iQg VXUYiYabiliW\ Vhall UemaiQ iQ effecW afWeU Whe 
e[SiUaWiRQ RU WeUmiQaWiRQ Rf WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW. 

1.2 Legal AXWhRUiW\ WR ASSl\ 
The gUaQWee ceUWifieV WhaW iW SRVVeVVeV legal aXWhRUiW\ WR aSSl\ fRU Whe gUaQW. A UeVRlXWiRQ, mRWiRQ RU VimilaU acWiRQ 
haV beeQ RU Zill be dXl\ adRSWed RU SaVVed aV aQ Rfficial acW Rf Whe aSSlicaQW¶V gRYeUQiQg bRd\, aXWhRUi]iQg Whe filiQg 
Rf Whe aSSlicaWiRQ, iQclXdiQg all XQdeUVWaQdiQgV aQd aVVXUaQceV cRQWaiQed WheUeiQ, aQd diUecWiQg aQd aXWhRUi]iQg Whe 
SeUVRQ ideQWified aV Whe Rfficial UeSUeVeQWaWiYe, RU WheiU deVigQee Rf Whe RUgaQi]aWiRQ WR acW iQ cRQQecWiRQ ZiWh Whe 
aSSlicaWiRQ aQd WR SURYide VXch addiWiRQal iQfRUmaWiRQ aV ma\ be UeTXiUed. 

1.3 GUaQW AcceSWaQce 
The NRWice Rf SXbUeciSieQW GUaQW AZaUd UemaiQV aQ RffeU XQWil Whe fXll\ e[ecXWed cRS\ Rf WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW iV 
UeceiYed b\ HaUUiV CRXQW\. 

1.4 PURjecW PeUiRd 
FXQdiQg haV beeQ aXWhRUi]ed fRU eligible e[SeQdiWXUeV iQcXUUed beWZeeQ MaUch 1, 2020 aQd DecembeU 30, 2020. 
All e[SeQdiWXUeV mXVW be iQcXUUed, aQd all VeUYiceV mXVW be UeceiYed ZiWhiQ Whe SeUfRUmaQce SeUiRd. HaUUiV CRXQW\ 
Zill QRW be RbligaWed WR UeimbXUVe e[SeQVeV iQcXUUed afWeU Whe SeUfRUmaQce SeUiRd. A cRVW iV iQcXUUed ZheQ Whe 
UeVSRQVible XQiW Rf gRYeUQmeQW haV e[SeQded fXQdV WR cRYeU Whe cRVW. 

1.5 GeQeUal ReVSRQVibiliW\ 
PeU Whe CARES AcW, CRF gUaQW fXQdV ma\ RQl\ be XVed WR cRYeU e[SeQVeV WhaW ± 

1. aUe QeceVVaU\ e[SeQdiWXUeV iQcXUUed dXe WR Whe SXblic healWh emeUgeQc\ ZiWh UeVSecW WR Whe CRURQaYiUXV
DiVeaVe 2019 (COVID-19)

2. ZeUe QRW accRXQWed fRU iQ Whe bXdgeW mRVW UeceQWl\ aSSURYed aV Rf MaUch 27, 2020 fRU Whe  gRYeUQmeQW;
aQd

3. ZeUe iQcXUUed dXUiQg Whe SeUiRd WhaW begiQV RQ MaUch 1, 2020 aQd eQdV RQ DecembeU 30, 2020.

The US DeSaUWmeQW Rf TUeaVXU\ (TUeaVXU\) SURYided addiWiRQal gXidaQce RQ Whe SeUmiVVible XVe Rf gUaQW fXQdV, 
iQclXdiQg QRQe[clXViYe e[amSleV Rf eligible e[SeQVeV iQ Whe fRllRZiQg caWegRUieV: 

1. Medical e[SeQVeV,
2. PXblic healWh e[SeQVeV,
3. Pa\URll e[SeQVeV fRU SXblic VafeW\, SXblic healWh, healWh caUe, hXmaQ VeUYiceV, aQd VimilaU emSlR\eeV ZhRVe

VeUYiceV aUe VXbVWaQWiall\ dedicaWed WR miWigaWiQg RU UeVSRQdiQg WR Whe COVID-19 SXblic healWh emeUgeQc\,
4. E[SeQVeV Rf acWiRQV WR faciliWaWe cRmSliaQce ZiWh COVID-19-UelaWed SXblic healWh meaVXUeV,
5. E[SeQVeV aVVRciaWed ZiWh Whe SURYiViRQ Rf ecRQRmic VXSSRUW iQ cRQQecWiRQ ZiWh Whe COVID-19 SXblic

healWh emeUgeQc\, aQd
6. AQ\ RWheU COVID-19-UelaWed e[SeQVeV UeaVRQabl\ QeceVVaU\ WR Whe fXQcWiRQ Rf gRYeUQmeQW WhaW VaWiVf\ Whe

FXQd¶V eligibiliW\ cUiWeUia.

FXUWheU e[SlaQaWiRQ Rf WheVe caWegRUieV aQd e[amSleV caQ be fRXQd aW Whe fRllRZiQg liQk:



ϲ 

hWWSV://hRme.WUeaVXU\.gRY/V\VWem/fileV/136/CRURQaYiUXV-Relief-FXQd-GXidaQce-fRU-SWaWe-TeUUiWRUial-LRcal-aQd- 
TUibal-GRYeUQmeQWV.Sdf 

hWWSV://hRme.WUeaVXU\.gRY/V\VWem/fileV/136/CRURQaYiUXV-Relief-FXQd-FUeTXeQWl\-AVked-QXeVWiRQV.Sdf 

The gUaQWee ceUWifieV cRmSliaQce ZiWh WheVe eligible e[SeQVeV b\ e[ecXWiQg Whe CARES AcW CRURQaYiUXV Relief 
FXQd EligibiliW\ CeUWificaWiRQ FRUm, Zhich iV aWWached heUeWR aV E[hibiW B aQd iQcRUSRUaWed fRU all SXUSRVeV. 

The gUaQWee iV UeVSRQVible fRU Whe iQWegUiW\ Rf Whe fiVcal aQd SURgUammaWic maQagemeQW Rf Whe gUaQW SURjecW; 
accRXQWabiliW\ fRU all fXQdV aZaUded; aQd cRmSliaQce ZiWh  HaUUiV CRXQW\ admiQiVWUaWiYe UXleV, SRlicieV aQd 
SURcedXUeV, aQd aSSlicable fedeUal aQd VWaWe laZV aQd UegXlaWiRQV. 

The gUaQWee Zill maiQWaiQ aQ aSSURSUiaWe gUaQW admiQiVWUaWiRQ V\VWem WR eQVXUe WhaW all WeUmV, cRQdiWiRQV aQd 
VSecificaWiRQV Rf Whe gUaQW aUe meW. 

1.6 AmeQdmeQWV aQd ChaQgeV WR Whe GUaQW AgUeemeQW 
HaUUiV CRXQW\ aQd Whe gUaQWee ma\ agUee WR make adjXVWmeQWV WR Whe gUaQW. AdjXVWmeQWV iQclXde, bXW aUe QRW limiWed 
WR, mRdif\iQg Whe VcRSe Rf Whe gUaQW SURjecW, addiQg fXQdV WR SUeYiRXVl\ XQ-aZaUded cRVW iWemV RU caWegRUieV 
chaQgiQg fXQdV iQ aQ\ aZaUded cRVW iWemV RU caWegRU\, deRbligaWiQg aZaUded fXQdV RU chaQgiQg gUaQW RfficialV. 

The gUaQWee haV QR UighW RU eQWiWlemeQW WR UeimbXUVemeQW ZiWh gUaQW fXQdV. HaUUiV CRXQW\ aQd gUaQWee agUee WhaW 
aQ\ acW, acWiRQ RU UeSUeVeQWaWiRQ b\ eiWheU PaUW\, WheiU ageQWV RU emSlR\eeV WhaW SXUSRUWV WR ZaiYe RU alWeU Whe WeUmV 
Rf Whe GUaQW AgUeemeQW RU iQcUeaVe Whe ma[imXm liabiliW\ Rf HaUUiV CRXQW\ iV YRid XQleVV a ZUiWWeQ ameQdmeQW WR 
WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW iV fiUVW e[ecXWed aQd dRcXmeQWed. The gUaQWee agUeeV WhaW QRWhiQg iQ WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW 
Zill be iQWeUSUeWed WR cUeaWe aQ RbligaWiRQ RU liabiliW\ Rf HaUUiV CRXQW\ iQ e[ceVV Rf Whe "AllRcaWiRQ CeiliQg" aV VeW 
fRUWh iQ Whe NRWice Rf SXbUeciSieQW GUaQW AZaUd. 

AQ\ alWeUaWiRQV, addiWiRQV, RU deleWiRQV WR Whe WeUmV Rf WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW mXVW be dRcXmeQWed WR be biQdiQg 
XSRQ Whe PaUWieV. NRWZiWhVWaQdiQg WhiV UeTXiUemeQW, iW iV XQdeUVWRRd aQd agUeed b\ PaUWieV heUeWR, WhaW chaQgeV iQ 
lRcal, VWaWe aQd fedeUal UXleV, UegXlaWiRQV RU laZV aSSlicable heUeWR, ma\ RccXU dXUiQg Whe WeUm Rf WhiV GUaQW 
AgUeemeQW aQd WhaW aQ\ VXch chaQgeV Vhall be aXWRmaWicall\ iQcRUSRUaWed iQWR WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW ZiWhRXW ZUiWWeQ 
ameQdmeQW heUeWR, aQd Vhall becRme a SaUW heUeRf aV Rf Whe effecWiYe daWe Rf Whe UXle, UegXlaWiRQ RU laZ. 

1.7 JXUiVdicWiRQal CRRSeUaWiRQ 
NRWZiWhVWaQdiQg aQ\WhiQg WR Whe cRQWUaU\, HaUUiV CRXQW\ ma\, iQ iWV VRle diVcUeWiRQ, deQ\ UeimbXUVemeQW fRU aQ\ 
e[SeQVeV UeSUeVeQWiQg a WUaQVfeU Rf fXQdV fURm gUaQWee WR aQRWheU SRliWical VXbdiYiViRQ RU ageQc\ XQleVV a ZUiWWeQ 
UeTXeVW fRU VXch UeimbXUVemeQW iV aSSURYed b\ HaUUiV CRXQW\ iQ adYaQce. 

1.8 PXblic IQfRUmaWiRQ aQd MeeWiQgV 
NRWZiWhVWaQdiQg aQ\ SURYiViRQV Rf WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW WR Whe cRQWUaU\, Whe gUaQWee ackQRZledgeV WhaW HaUUiV 
CRXQW\ aQd WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW aUe VXbjecW WR Whe Te[aV PXblic IQfRUmaWiRQ AcW, Te[aV GRYeUQmeQW CRde ChaSWeU 
552 (Whe ³PIA´). The gUaQWee ackQRZledgeV WhaW HaUUiV CRXQW\ Zill cRmSl\ ZiWh Whe PIA, aV iQWeUSUeWed b\ jXdicial 
RSiQiRQV aQd RSiQiRQV Rf Whe AWWRUQe\ GeQeUal Rf Whe SWaWe Rf Te[aV. 

The gUaQWee ackQRZledgeV WhaW iQfRUmaWiRQ cUeaWed RU e[chaQged iQ cRQQecWiRQ ZiWh WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW, 
iQclXdiQg all UeimbXUVemeQW dRcXmeQWaWiRQ VXbmiWWed WR HaUUiV CRXQW\, iV VXbjecW WR Whe PIA, ZheWheU cUeaWed RU 
SURdXced b\ Whe gUaQWee RU aQ\ WhiUd SaUW\, aQd Whe gUaQWee agUeeV WhaW iQfRUmaWiRQ QRW RWheUZiVe e[ceSWed fURm



ϳ 

diVclRVXUe XQdeU Whe PIA, Zill be aYailable iQ a fRUmaW WhaW iV acceVVible b\ Whe SXblic aW QR addiWiRQal chaUge WR 
HaUUiV CRXQW\. The gUaQWee Zill cRRSeUaWe ZiWh HaUUiV CRXQW\ iQ Whe SURdXcWiRQ Rf dRcXmeQWV RU iQfRUmaWiRQ 
UeVSRQViYe WR a UeTXeVW fRU iQfRUmaWiRQ. 

1.9 RemedieV fRU NRQ-CRmSliaQce 
If HaUUiV CRXQW\ deWeUmiQeV WhaW Whe gUaQWee maWeUiall\ failV WR cRmSl\ ZiWh aQ\ WeUm Rf WhiV gUaQW agUeemeQW, 
ZheWheU VWaWed iQ a fedeUal RU VWaWe VWaWXWe RU UegXlaWiRQ, aQ aVVXUaQce, a QRWice Rf aZaUd, RU aQ\ RWheU aSSlicable 
UeTXiUemeQW, HaUUiV CRXQW\, iQ iWV VRle diVcUeWiRQ ma\ Wake acWiRQV iQclXdiQg: 

1. TemSRUaUil\ ZiWhhRldiQg caVh Sa\meQWV SeQdiQg cRUUecWiRQ Rf Whe deficieQc\ RU mRUe VeYeUe eQfRUcemeQW
acWiRQ b\ HaUUiV CRXQW\;

2. DiVallRZiQg RU deQ\iQg XVe Rf fXQdV fRU all RU SaUW Rf Whe cRVW Rf Whe acWiYiW\ RU acWiRQ QRW iQ cRmSliaQce;
3. DiVallRZiQg claimV fRU UeimbXUVemeQW;
4. WhRll\ RU SaUWiall\ VXVSeQdiQg RU WeUmiQaWiQg WhiV gUaQW;
5. ReTXiUiQg UeWXUQ RU RffVeW Rf SUeYiRXV UeimbXUVemeQWV;
6. PURhibiWiQg Whe gUaQWee fURm aSSl\iQg fRU RU UeceiYiQg addiWiRQal fXQdV fRU RWheU gUaQW SURgUamV admiQiVWeUed

b\ HaUUiV CRXQW\ XQWil UeSa\meQW WR HaUUiV CRXQW\ iV made aQd aQ\ RWheU cRmSliaQce RU aXdiW fiQdiQg iV
VaWiVfacWRUil\ UeVRlYed;

7. RedXciQg Whe gUaQW aZaUd ma[imXm liabiliW\ Rf HaUUiV CRXQW\;
8. TeUmiQaWiQg WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW;
9. ImSRViQg a cRUUecWiYe acWiRQ SlaQ;
10. WiWhhRldiQg fXUWheU aZaUdV; RU
11. TakiQg RWheU UemedieV RU aSSURSUiaWe acWiRQV.

The gUaQWee cRVWV UeVXlWiQg fURm RbligaWiRQV iQcXUUed dXUiQg a VXVSeQViRQ RU afWeU WeUmiQaWiRQ Rf WhiV gUaQW aUe QRW 
allRZable XQleVV HaUUiV CRXQW\ e[SUeVVl\ aXWhRUi]eV Whem iQ Whe QRWice Rf VXVSeQViRQ RU WeUmiQaWiRQ RU VXbVeTXeQWl\. 

HaUUiV CRXQW\, aW iWV VRle diVcUeWiRQ, ma\ imSRVe VaQcWiRQV ZiWhRXW fiUVW UeTXiUiQg a cRUUecWiYe acWiRQ SlaQ. 

1.10 FalVe SWaWemeQWV b\ GUaQWee 
B\ acceSWaQce Rf WhiV gUaQW agUeemeQW, Whe gUaQWee makeV all Whe VWaWemeQWV, UeSUeVeQWaWiRQV, ZaUUaQWieV, gXaUaQWeeV, 
ceUWificaWiRQV aQd affiUmaWiRQV iQclXded iQ WhiV gUaQW agUeemeQW. If aSSlicable, Whe gUaQWee Zill cRmSl\ ZiWh Whe 
UeTXiUemeQWV Rf 31 USC � 3729, Zhich VeW fRUWh WhaW QR gUaQWee Rf fedeUal Sa\meQWV Vhall VXbmiW a falVe claim fRU 
Sa\meQW. 

If aQ\ Rf Whe VWaWemeQWV, UeSUeVeQWaWiRQV, ceUWificaWiRQV, affiUmaWiRQV, ZaUUaQWieV, RU gXaUaQWeeV aUe falVe RU if Whe 
gUaQWee VigQV RU e[ecXWeV Whe gUaQW agUeemeQW ZiWh a falVe VWaWemeQW RU iW iV VXbVeTXeQWl\ deWeUmiQed WhaW Whe gUaQWee 
haV YiRlaWed aQ\ Rf Whe VWaWemeQWV, UeSUeVeQWaWiRQV, ZaUUaQWieV, gXaUaQWeeV, ceUWificaWiRQV RU affiUmaWiRQV iQclXded iQ 
WhiV gUaQW agUeemeQW, WheQ HaUUiV CRXQW\ ma\ cRQVideU WhiV acW a SRVVible defaXlW XQdeU WhiV gUaQW agUeemeQW aQd 
ma\ WeUmiQaWe RU YRid WhiV gUaQW agUeemeQW fRU caXVe aQd SXUVXe RWheU UemedieV aYailable WR HaUUiV CRXQW\ XQdeU 
WhiV gUaQW agUeemeQW aQd aSSlicable laZ. FalVe VWaWemeQWV RU claimV made iQ cRQQecWiRQ ZiWh HaUUiV CRXQW\ gUaQWV 
ma\ UeVXlW iQ fiQeV, imSUiVRQmeQW, aQd debaUmeQW fURm SaUWiciSaWiQg iQ fedeUal gUaQWV RU cRQWUacW, aQd/RU RWheU 
Uemed\ aYailable b\ laZ, SRWeQWiall\ iQclXdiQg Whe SURYiViRQV  Rf  38  USC ��  3801-3812,  Zhich deWailV Whe 
admiQiVWUaWiYe UemedieV fRU falVe claimV aQd VWaWemeQWV made.



ϴ 

1.11 CRQflicW Rf IQWeUeVW SafegXaUdV 
The gUaQWee Zill eVWabliVh VafegXaUdV WR SURhibiW iWV emSlR\eeV fURm XViQg WheiU SRViWiRQV fRU a SXUSRVe WhaW 
cRQVWiWXWeV RU SUeVeQWV Whe aSSeaUaQce Rf SeUVRQal RU RUgaQi]aWiRQal cRQflicW Rf iQWeUeVW RU SeUVRQal gaiQ, ZheWheU fRU 
WhemVelYeV RU RWheUV, SaUWicXlaUl\ WhRVe ZiWh ZhRm Whe\ haYe famil\, bXViQeVV, RU RWheU WieV. The gUaQWee Zill RSeUaWe 
ZiWh cRmSleWe iQdeSeQdeQce aQd RbjecWiYiW\ ZiWhRXW acWXal, SRWeQWial, RU aSSaUeQW cRQflicW Rf iQWeUeVW ZiWh UeVSecW 
WR iWV SeUfRUmaQce XQdeU WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW. The gUaQWee ceUWifieV aV WR iWV RZQ RUgaQi]aWiRQ, WhaW WR Whe beVW Rf 
WheiU kQRZledge aQd belief, QR membeU Rf gUaQWee¶V RUgaQi]aWiRQ RU HaUUiV CRXQW\, QRU aQ\ emSlR\ee, RU SeUVRQ, 
ZhRVe ValaU\ iV Sa\able iQ ZhRle RU iQ SaUW b\ a membeU Rf gUaQWee RUgaQi]aWiRQ RU HaUUiV CRXQW\, haV diUecW RU 
iQdiUecW fiQaQcial iQWeUeVW iQ Whe aZaUd Rf WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW, RU iQ Whe VeUYiceV WR Zhich WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW 
UelaWeV, RU iQ aQ\ Rf Whe SURfiWV, Ueal RU SRWeQWial, WheUeRf. 

1.12 FUaXd, WaVWe, aQd AbXVe 
The gUaQWee XQdeUVWaQdV WhaW HaUUiV CRXQW\ dReV QRW WRleUaWe aQ\ W\Se Rf fUaXd, ZaVWe, RU miVXVe Rf fXQdV UeceiYed 
fURm HaUUiV CRXQW\. HaUUiV CRXQW\¶V SRlic\ iV WR SURmRWe cRQViVWeQW, legal, aQd eWhical RUgaQi]aWiRQal behaYiRU, b\ 
aVVigQiQg UeVSRQVibiliWieV aQd SURYidiQg gXideliQeV WR eQfRUce cRQWURlV. AQ\ YiRlaWiRQV Rf laZ, HaUUiV CRXQW\ 
SRlicieV, RU VWaQdaUdV Rf eWhical cRQdXcW Zill be iQYeVWigaWed, aQd aSSURSUiaWe acWiRQV Zill be WakeQ. The gUaQWee 
XQdeUVWaQdV aQd agUeeV WhaW miVXVe Rf aZaUd fXQdV ma\ UeVXlW iQ a UaQge Rf SeQalWieV, iQclXdiQg VXVSeQViRQ Rf cXUUeQW 
aQd fXWXUe fXQdV, VXVSeQViRQ RU debaUmeQW fURm fedeUal aQd VWaWe gUaQWV, UecRXSmeQW Rf mRQieV SURYided XQdeU aQ 
aZaUd, aQd ciYil aQd/RU cUimiQal SeQalWieV. 

IQ Whe eYeQW gUaQWee becRmeV aZaUe Rf aQ\ allegaWiRQ RU a fiQdiQg Rf fUaXd, ZaVWe, RU miVXVe Rf fXQdV UeceiYed fURm 
HaUUiV CRXQW\ WhaW iV made agaiQVW Whe gUaQWee, Whe gUaQWee iV UeTXiUed WR immediaWel\ QRWif\ HaUUiV CRXQW\ Rf Vaid 
allegaWiRQ RU fiQdiQg aQd WR cRQWiQXe WR iQfRUm HaUUiV CRXQW\ Rf Whe VWaWXV Rf aQ\ VXch RQ-gRiQg iQYeVWigaWiRQV. The 
gUaQWee mXVW alVR SURmSWl\ UefeU WR HaUUiV CRXQW\ aQ\ cUedible eYideQce WhaW a SUiQciSal, emSlR\ee, ageQW, gUaQWee, 
cRQWUacWRU, VXbcRQWUacWRU, RU RWheU SeUVRQ haV -- (1) VXbmiWWed a claim fRU aZaUd fXQdV WhaW YiRlaWeV Whe FalVe ClaimV 
AcW; RU (2) cRmmiWWed a cUimiQal RU ciYil YiRlaWiRQ Rf laZV SeUWaiQiQg WR fUaXd, cRQflicW Rf iQWeUeVW, bUibeU\, gUaWXiW\, 
RU VimilaU miVcRQdXcW iQYRlYiQg aZaUd fXQdV. GUaQWeeV mXVW alVR immediaWel\ QRWif\ HaUUiV CRXQW\ iQ ZUiWiQg Rf 
aQ\ miVaSSURSUiaWiRQ Rf fXQdV, fUaXd, WhefW, embe]]lemeQW, fRUgeU\, RU aQ\ RWheU VeUiRXV iUUegXlaUiWieV iQdicaWiQg 
QRQcRmSliaQce ZiWh gUaQW UeTXiUemeQWV. GUaQWeeV mXVW QRWif\ Whe lRcal SURVecXWRU'V Rffice Rf aQ\ SRVVible cUimiQal 
YiRlaWiRQV. GUaQWeeV mXVW immediaWel\ QRWif\ HaUUiV CRXQW\ iQ ZUiWiQg if a SURjecW RU SURjecW SeUVRQQel becRme 
iQYRlYed iQ aQ\ liWigaWiRQ, ZheWheU ciYil RU cUimiQal, aQd Whe gUaQWee mXVW immediaWel\ fRUZaUd a cRS\ Rf aQ\ 
demaQd, QRWiceV, VXbSReQaV, laZVXiWV, RU iQdicWmeQWV WR HaUUiV CRXQW\. 

1.13 TeUmiQaWiRQ Rf Whe AgUeemeQW 
HaUUiV CRXQW\ ma\, aW iWV VRle diVcUeWiRQ, WeUmiQaWe WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW, ZiWhRXW UecRXUVe, liabiliW\ RU SeQalW\ 
agaiQVW HaUUiV CRXQW\, XSRQ ZUiWWeQ QRWice WR gUaQWee. IQ Whe eYeQW gUaQWee failV WR SeUfRUm RU cRmSl\ ZiWh aQ 
RbligaWiRQ RU a WeUm, cRQdiWiRQ RU SURYiViRQ Rf WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW, HaUUiV CRXQW\ ma\, XSRQ ZUiWWeQ QRWice WR 
gUaQWee, WeUmiQaWe WhiV agUeemeQW fRU caXVe, ZiWhRXW fXUWheU QRWice RU RSSRUWXQiW\ WR cXUe. SXch QRWificaWiRQ Rf 
TeUmiQaWiRQ fRU CaXVe Zill VWaWe Whe effecWiYe daWe Rf VXch WeUmiQaWiRQ, aQd if QR effecWiYe daWe iV VSecified, Whe 
effecWiYe daWe Zill be Whe daWe Rf Whe QRWificaWiRQ. 

HaUUiV CRXQW\ aQd gUaQWee ma\ mXWXall\ agUee WR WeUmiQaWe WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW. HaUUiV CRXQW\ iQ iWV VRle 
diVcUeWiRQ Zill deWeUmiQe if, aV SaUW Rf Whe agUeed WeUmiQaWiRQ, gUaQWee iV UeTXiUed WR UeWXUQ aQ\ RU all Rf Whe diVbXUVed 
gUaQW fXQdV.



ϵ 

TeUmiQaWiRQ iV QRW aQ e[clXViYe Uemed\, bXW Zill be iQ addiWiRQ WR aQ\ RWheU UighWV aQd UemedieV SURYided iQ eTXiW\, 
b\ laZ, RU XQdeU WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW, iQclXdiQg WhRVe UemedieV liVWed aW 2 C.F.R. 200.207 aQd 2 C.F.R. 200.338 ± 
200.342. FRllRZiQg WeUmiQaWiRQ b\ HaUUiV CRXQW\, gUaQWee Vhall cRQWiQXe WR be RbligaWed WR HaUUiV CRXQW\ fRU Whe 
UeWXUQ Rf gUaQW fXQdV iQ accRUdaQce ZiWh aSSlicable SURYiViRQV Rf WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW. IQ Whe eYeQW Rf WeUmiQaWiRQ 
XQdeU WhiV SecWiRQ, HaUUiV CRXQW\'V RbligaWiRQ WR UeimbXUVe gUaQWee iV limiWed WR allRZable cRVWV iQcXUUed aQd Said 
b\ Whe gUaQWee SUiRU WR Whe effecWiYe daWe Rf WeUmiQaWiRQ, aQd aQ\ allRZable cRVWV deWeUmiQed b\ HaUUiV CRXQW\ iQ iWV 
VRle diVcUeWiRQ WR be UeaVRQable aQd QeceVVaU\ WR cRVW-effecWiYel\ ZiQd XS Whe gUaQW. TeUmiQaWiRQ Rf WhiV GUaQW 
AgUeemeQW fRU aQ\ UeaVRQ RU e[SiUaWiRQ Rf WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW Vhall QRW UeleaVe Whe PaUWieV fURm aQ\ liabiliW\ RU 
RbligaWiRQ VeW fRUWh iQ WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW WhaW iV e[SUeVVl\ VWaWed WR VXUYiYe aQ\ VXch WeUmiQaWiRQ RU e[SiUaWiRQ. 

1.14 LimiWaWiRQ Rf LiabiliW\ 
NRWhiQg iQ Whe AgUeemeQW iV cRQVWUXed aV cUeaWiQg aQ\ SeUVRQal liabiliW\ RQ Whe SaUW Rf aQ\ RfficeU, diUecWRU, 
emSlR\ee, RU ageQW Rf aQ\ SXblic bRd\ WhaW ma\ be a PaUW\ WR Whe AgUeemeQW, aQd Whe PaUWieV e[SUeVVl\ agUee WhaW 
Whe e[ecXWiRQ Rf Whe AgUeemeQW dReV QRW cUeaWe aQ\ SeUVRQal liabiliW\ RQ Whe SaUW Rf aQ\ RfficeU, diUecWRU, emSlR\ee, 
RU ageQW Rf eiWheU PaUW\. 

The PaUWieV agUee WhaW QR SURYiViRQ Rf WhiV AgUeemeQW e[WeQdV Whe CRXQW\'V liabiliW\ be\RQd Whe liabiliW\ SURYided 
iQ Whe Te[aV CRQVWiWXWiRQ aQd Whe laZV Rf Whe SWaWe Rf Te[aV. 

The gUaQWee agUeeV WhaW QR SURYiViRQ Rf WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW iV iQ aQ\ Za\ iQWeQded WR cRQVWiWXWe a ZaiYeU b\ HaUUiV 
CRXQW\, iWV RfficeUV, emSlR\eeV, ageQWV, RU cRQWUacWRUV Rf aQ\ SUiYilegeV, UighWV, defeQVeV, UemedieV, RU immXQiWieV 
fURm VXiW aQd liabiliW\ WhaW HaUUiV CRXQW\ ma\ haYe b\ RSeUaWiRQ Rf laZ. 

1.15 DiVSXWe ReVRlXWiRQ 
The PaUWieV¶ UeSUeVeQWaWiYeV Zill meeW aV Qeeded WR imSlemeQW Whe WeUmV Rf WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW aQd Zill make a 
gRRd faiWh aWWemSW WR iQfRUmall\ UeVRlYe aQ\ diVSXWeV. 

NRWZiWhVWaQdiQg aQ\ RWheU SURYiViRQ Rf WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW WR Whe cRQWUaU\, XQleVV RWheUZiVe UeTXeVWed RU 
aSSURYed iQ ZUiWiQg b\ HaUUiV CRXQW\, Whe gUaQWee Vhall cRQWiQXe SeUfRUmaQce aQd Vhall QRW be e[cXVed fURm 
SeUfRUmaQce dXUiQg Whe SeUiRd aQ\ bUeach Rf GUaQW AgUeemeQW claim RU diVSXWe iV SeQdiQg. 

The laZV Rf Whe SWaWe Rf Te[aV gRYeUQ WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW aQd all diVSXWeV aUiViQg RXW Rf RU UelaWiQg WR WhiV GUaQW 
AgUeemeQW, ZiWhRXW UegaUd WR aQ\ RWheUZiVe aSSlicable cRQflicW Rf laZ UXleV RU UeTXiUemeQWV. VeQXe fRU aQ\ gUaQWee- 
iQiWiaWed acWiRQ, VXiW, liWigaWiRQ RU RWheU SURceediQg aUiViQg RXW Rf RU iQ aQ\ Za\ UelaWiQg WR WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW 
Vhall be cRmmeQced e[clXViYel\ iQ Whe HaUUiV CRXQW\ DiVWUicW CRXUW RU Whe UQiWed SWaWeV DiVWUicW CRXUW, SRXWheUQ 
DiVWUicW Rf Te[aV - HRXVWRQ DiYiViRQ. VeQXe fRU aQ\ HaUUiV CRXQW\-iQiWiaWed acWiRQ, VXiW, liWigaWiRQ RU RWheU 
SURceediQg aUiViQg RXW Rf RU iQ aQ\ Za\ UelaWiQg WR WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW ma\ be cRmmeQced iQ a Te[aV VWaWe diVWUicW 
cRXUW RU a UQiWed SWaWeV DiVWUicW CRXUW VelecWed b\ HaUUiV CRXQW\ iQ iWV VRle diVcUeWiRQ. 

The gUaQWee heUeb\ iUUeYRcabl\ aQd XQcRQdiWiRQall\ cRQVeQWV WR Whe e[clXViYe jXUiVdicWiRQ Rf Whe cRXUWV UefeUeQced 
abRYe fRU Whe SXUSRVe Rf SURVecXWiQg aQd/RU defeQdiQg VXch liWigaWiRQ. The gUaQWee heUeb\ ZaiYeV aQd agUeeV QRW WR 
aVVeUW b\ Za\ Rf mRWiRQ, aV a defeQVe, RU RWheUZiVe, iQ aQ\ VXiW, acWiRQ RU SURceediQg, aQ\ claim WhaW Whe gUaQWee iV 
QRW SeUVRQall\ VXbjecW WR Whe jXUiVdicWiRQ Rf Whe abRYe-Qamed cRXUWV; Whe VXiW, acWiRQ RU SURceediQg iV bURXghW iQ aQ 
iQcRQYeQieQW fRUXm; aQd/RU Whe YeQXe iV imSURSeU.



ϭϬ 

1.16 LiabiliW\ fRU Ta[eV 
The gUaQWee agUeeV aQd ackQRZledgeV WhaW gUaQWee iV aQ iQdeSeQdeQW cRQWUacWRU aQd Vhall be eQWiUel\ UeVSRQVible fRU 
Whe liabiliW\ aQd Sa\meQW Rf gUaQWee¶V aQd gUaQWee¶V emSlR\eeV¶ Wa[eV Rf ZhaWeYeU kiQd, aUiViQg RXW Rf Whe 
SeUfRUmaQceV iQ WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW. The gUaQWee agUeeV WR cRmSl\ ZiWh all VWaWe aQd fedeUal laZV aSSlicable WR 
aQ\ VXch SeUVRQV, iQclXdiQg laZV UegaUdiQg ZageV, Wa[eV, iQVXUaQce, aQd ZRUkeUV' cRmSeQVaWiRQ. HaUUiV CRXQW\ 
Vhall QRW be liable WR Whe gUaQWee, iWV emSlR\eeV, ageQWV, RU RWheUV fRU Whe Sa\meQW Rf Wa[eV RU Whe SURYiViRQ Rf 
XQemSlR\meQW iQVXUaQce aQd/RU ZRUkeUV¶ cRmSeQVaWiRQ RU aQ\ beQefiW aYailable WR aQ emSlR\ee. 

1.17 ReTXiUed SWaWe AVVXUaQceV 
The gUaQWee mXVW cRmSl\ ZiWh Whe aSSlicable SWaWe AVVXUaQceV iQclXded ZiWhiQ Whe SWaWe UQifRUm GUaQW 
MaQagemeQW SWaQdaUdV (UGMS), SecWiRQ III, SXbSaUW B, _.14, Zhich aUe iQcRUSRUaWed heUeiQ fRU all SXUSRVeV aV 
WhRXgh VeW fRUWh ZRUd fRU ZRUd. 

1.18 S\VWem fRU AZaUd MaQagemeQW (SAM) ReTXiUemeQWV 
A. The gUaQWee agUeeV WR cRmSl\ ZiWh aSSlicable UeTXiUemeQWV UegaUdiQg UegiVWUaWiRQ ZiWh Whe S\VWem fRU AZaUd

MaQagemeQW (SAM) (RU ZiWh a VXcceVVRU gRYeUQmeQW-Zide V\VWem Rfficiall\ deVigQaWed b\ OMB aQd, if
aSSlicable, Whe fedeUal fXQdiQg ageQc\). TheVe UeTXiUemeQWV iQclXde maiQWaiQiQg cXUUeQW UegiVWUaWiRQV aQd Whe
cXUUeQc\ Rf Whe iQfRUmaWiRQ iQ SAM. The gUaQWee Zill UeYieZ aQd XSdaWe iQfRUmaWiRQ aW leaVW aQQXall\ XQWil
VXbmiVViRQ Rf Whe fiQal fiQaQcial UeSRUW UeTXiUed XQdeU Whe aZaUd RU UeceiSW Rf fiQal Sa\meQW, ZhicheYeU iV
laWeU, aV UeTXiUed b\ 2 CFR PaUW 25.

B. The gUaQWee Zill cRmSl\ ZiWh E[ecXWiYe OUdeUV 12549 aQd 12689 WhaW UeTXiUeV ³a cRQWUacW aZaUd (Vee 2
CFR 180.220) mXVW QRW be made WR SaUWieV liVWed RQ Whe gRYeUQmeQW-Zide e[clXViRQV iQ Whe S\VWem fRU
AZaUd MaQagemeQW (SAM)´, iQ accRUdaQce ZiWh Whe OMB gXideliQeV aW 2 CFR 180 WhaW imSlemeQW
E[ecXWiYe OUdeUV 12549 (3 CFR SaUW 1986 CRmS., S. 189) aQd 12689 (3 CFR SaUW 1989 CRmS., S. 235),
³DebaUmeQW aQd SXVSeQViRQ.´ SAM E[clXViRQV cRQWaiQV Whe QameV Rf SaUWieV debaUUed, VXVSeQded, RU
RWheUZiVe e[clXded b\ ageQcieV, aV Zell aV SaUWieV declaUed iQeligible XQdeU VWaWXWRU\ RU UegXlaWRU\ aXWhRUiW\.
The gUaQWee ceUWifieV iW Zill YeUif\ each YeQdRU¶V VWaWXV WR eQVXUe Whe YeQdRU iV QRW debaUUed, VXVSeQded,
RWheUZiVe e[clXded RU declaUed iQeligible b\ checkiQg Whe SAM befRUe dRiQg/UeQeZiQg bXViQeVV ZiWh WhaW
YeQdRU.

C. The gUaQWee ceUWifieV WhaW iW aQd iWV SUiQciSalV aUe eligible WR SaUWiciSaWe iQ WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW aQd haYe
QRW beeQ VXbjecWed WR VXVSeQViRQ, debaUmeQW, RU VimilaU iQeligibiliW\ deWeUmiQed b\ aQ\ fedeUal, VWaWe RU lRcal
gRYeUQmeQWal eQWiW\ aQd Whe gUaQWee iV iQ cRmSliaQce ZiWh Whe SWaWe Rf Te[aV VWaWXWeV aQd UXleV UelaWiQg WR
SURcXUemeQW aQd WhaW Whe gUaQWee iV QRW liVWed iQ Whe fedeUal gRYeUQmeQW¶V WeUURUiVm ZaWch liVW aV deVcUibed iQ
E[ecXWiYe OUdeU 13224.

1.19 NR ObligaWiRQ b\ FedeUal GRYeUQmeQW 
The PaUWieV ackQRZledge aQd agUee WhaW Whe fedeUal gRYeUQmeQW iV QRW a SaUW\ WR WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW aQd iV QRW 
VXbjecW WR aQ\ RbligaWiRQV RU liabiliWieV WR eiWheU PaUW\, WhiUd SaUW\ RU VXbcRQWUacWRU SeUWaiQiQg WR aQ\ maWWeU UeVXlWiQg 
fURm WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW. 

1.20 NRWice 
NRWice ma\ be giYeQ WR Whe gUaQWee Yia email, haQd-deliYeU\, RU UQiWed SWaWeV Mail. NRWiceV WR Whe gUaQWee Zill be 
VeQW WR Whe Qame aQd addUeVV VXSSlied b\ gUaQWee.



ϭϭ 

1.21 FRUce MajeXUe 
NeiWheU Whe gUaQWee QRU HaUUiV CRXQW\ Vhall be UeTXiUed WR SeUfRUm aQ\ RbligaWiRQ XQdeU WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW RU 
be liable RU UeVSRQVible fRU aQ\ lRVV RU damage UeVXlWiQg fURm iWV failXUe WR SeUfRUm VR lRQg aV SeUfRUmaQce iV dela\ed 
b\ fRUce majeXUe RU acWV Rf GRd, iQclXdiQg bXW QRW limiWed WR VWUikeV, lRckRXWV RU labRU VhRUWageV, embaUgR, UiRW, ZaU, 
UeYRlXWiRQ, WeUURUiVm, UebelliRQ, iQVXUUecWiRQ, SaQdemic, flRRd, QaWXUal diVaVWeU, RU iQWeUUXSWiRQ Rf XWiliWieV fURm 
e[WeUQal caXVeV. Each PaUW\ mXVW iQfRUm Whe RWheU iQ ZUiWiQg, ZiWh SURRf Rf UeceiSW, ZiWhiQ WhUee (3) bXViQeVV da\V 
Rf Whe e[iVWeQce Rf VXch fRUce majeXUe, RU RWheUZiVe ZaiYe WhiV UighW aV a defeQVe. 

1.22 FUaQchiVe Ta[ CeUWificaWiRQ 
If gUaQWee iV a Wa[able eQWiW\ VXbjecW WR Whe Te[aV FUaQchiVe Ta[ (ChaSWeU 171, Te[aV Ta[ CRde), WheQ gUaQWee 
ceUWifieV WhaW iW iV QRW cXUUeQWl\ deliQTXeQW iQ Whe Sa\meQW Rf aQ\ fUaQchiVe (maUgiQ) Wa[eV RU WhaW gUaQWee iV e[emSW 
fURm Whe Sa\meQW Rf fUaQchiVe (maUgiQ) Wa[eV. 

1.23 SeYeUabiliW\ 
If aQ\ SURYiViRQV Rf WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW aUe UeQdeUed RU declaUed illegal fRU aQ\ UeaVRQ, RU Vhall be iQYalid RU 
XQeQfRUceable, VXch SURYiViRQ Vhall be mRdified RU deleWed iQ VXch maQQeU VR aV WR affRUd Whe PaUW\ fRU ZhRVe beQefiW 
iW ZaV iQWeQded Whe fXlleVW beQefiW cRmmeQVXUaWe ZiWh makiQg WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW, aV mRdified, eQfRUceable, aQd 
Whe UemaiQdeU Rf WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW aQd Whe aSSlicaWiRQ Rf VXch SURYiViRQ WR RWheU SeUVRQV RU ciUcXmVWaQceV Vhall 
QRW be affecWed WheUeb\, bXW Vhall be eQfRUced WR Whe gUeaWeVW e[WeQW SeUmiWWed b\ aSSlicable laZ. 

1.24 E-VeUif\ 
If aSSlicable, b\ eQWeUiQg iQWR WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW, gUaQWee Zill ceUWif\ aQd eQVXUe WhaW iW XWili]eV aQd Zill cRQWiQXe 
WR XWili]e, fRU Whe WeUm Rf WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW, Whe U.S. DeSaUWmeQW Rf HRmelaQd SecXUiW\'V e-VeUif\ V\VWem WR 
deWeUmiQe Whe eligibiliW\ Rf (a) all SeUVRQV emSlR\ed dXUiQg Whe cRQWUacW WeUm WR SeUfRUm dXWieV ZiWhiQ Te[aV; aQd 
(b) all SeUVRQV (iQclXdiQg VXbcRQWUacWRUV) aVVigQed b\ Whe gUaQWee SXUVXaQW WR Whe GUaQW AgUeemeQW.

1.25 CRmSliaQce ZiWh FedeUal LaZ, RegXlaWiRQV, aQd E[ecXWiYe OUdeUV 
GUaQWee ackQRZledgeV WhaW fedeUal fiQaQcial aVViVWaQce fXQdV Zill be XVed WR fXQd Whe GUaQW AgUeemeQW. GUaQWee 
Zill cRmSl\ ZiWh all aSSlicable fedeUal laZ, UegXlaWiRQV, e[ecXWiYe RUdeUV, SRlicieV, SURcedXUeV, aQd diUecWiYeV. 

1.26 CleaQ AiU AcW 
The fRllRZiQg iV RQl\ aSSlicable if Whe amRXQW Rf Whe cRQWUacW e[ceedV $150,000. 

a. GUaQWee agUeeV WR cRmSl\ ZiWh all aSSlicable VWaQdaUdV, RUdeUV RU UegXlaWiRQV iVVXed SXUVXaQW WR Whe CleaQ
AiU AcW, aV ameQded, 42 U.S.C. � 7401 eW VeT.

b. GUaQWee agUeeV WR UeSRUW each YiRlaWiRQ WR HaUUiV CRXQW\ aQd XQdeUVWaQdV aQd agUeeV WhaW HaUUiV CRXQW\ Zill,
iQ WXUQ, UeSRUW each YiRlaWiRQ aV UeTXiUed WR aVVXUe QRWificaWiRQ WR Whe FedeUal EmeUgeQc\ MaQagemeQW
AgeQc\, aQd Whe aSSURSUiaWe EQYiURQmeQWal PURWecWiRQ AgeQc\ RegiRQal Office.

c. GUaQWee agUeeV WR iQclXde WheVe UeTXiUemeQWV iQ each VXbcRQWUacW e[ceediQg $150,000 fiQaQced iQ ZhRle RU
iQ SaUW ZiWh fedeUal aVViVWaQce SURYided b\ WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW.

1.27 FedeUal WaWeU PRllXWiRQ CRQWURl AcW 
a. GUaQWee agUeeV WR cRmSl\ ZiWh all aSSlicable VWaQdaUdV, RUdeUV, RU UegXlaWiRQV iVVXed SXUVXaQW WR Whe FedeUal

WaWeU PRllXWiRQ CRQWURl AcW, aV ameQded, 33 U.S.C. 1251 eW VeT.



ϭϮ 

b. GUaQWee agUeeV WR UeSRUW each YiRlaWiRQ WR HaUUiV CRXQW\ aQd XQdeUVWaQdV aQd agUeeV WhaW HaUUiV CRXQW\ Zill,
iQ WXUQ, UeSRUW each YiRlaWiRQ aV UeTXiUed WR aVVXUe QRWificaWiRQ WR Whe FedeUal EmeUgeQc\ MaQagemeQW
AgeQc\, aQd Whe aSSURSUiaWe EQYiURQmeQWal PURWecWiRQ AgeQc\ RegiRQal Office.

c. GUaQWee agUeeV WR iQclXde WheVe UeTXiUemeQWV iQ each VXbcRQWUacW e[ceediQg $150,000 fiQaQced iQ ZhRle RU
iQ SaUW ZiWh fedeUal aVViVWaQce SURYided b\ WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW.

1.28 SXVSeQViRQ aQd DebaUmeQW 
a. ThiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW iV a cRYeUed WUaQVacWiRQ fRU SXUSRVeV Rf 2 C.F.R. SW 180 aQd 2 C.F.R. SW. 3000.

GUaQWee ceUWifieV WhaW gUaQWee, gUaQWee¶V SUiQciSalV (defiQed aW 2 C.F.R. Sec. 180.995), RU iWV affiliaWeV
(defiQed aW 2 C.F.R. Sec. 180.905) aUe e[clXded (defiQed aW 2 C.F.R. Sec. 180.940) RU diVTXalified (defiQed
aW 2 C.F.R. Sec. 180.935).

b. GUaQWee mXVW cRmSl\ ZiWh 2 C.F.R. SW. 180, VXbSaUW C aQd 2 C.F.R. SW. 3000, VXbSaUW C aQd mXVW iQclXde a
UeTXiUemeQW WR cRmSl\ ZiWh WheVe UegXlaWiRQV iQ aQ\ lRZeU WieU cRYeUed WUaQVacWiRQ iW eQWeUV iQWR.

c. ThiV ceUWificaWiRQ iV a maWeUial UeSUeVeQWaWiRQ Rf facW Uelied XSRQ b\ HaUUiV CRXQW\. If iW iV laWeU deWeUmiQed
WhaW gUaQWee did QRW cRmSl\ ZiWh 2 C.F.R. SW. 180, VXbSaUW C aQd 2 C.F.R. SW. 3000, iQ addiWiRQ WR UemedieV
aYailable WR HaUUiV CRXQW\, Whe FedeUal GRYeUQmeQW ma\ SXUVXe aYailable UemedieV, iQclXdiQg bXW limiWed
WR VXVSeQViRQ aQd/RU debaUmeQW.

1.29 EQeUg\ CRQVeUYaWiRQ 
If aSSlicable, gUaQWee agUeeV WR cRmSl\ ZiWh maQdaWRU\ VWaQdaUdV aQd SRlicieV UelaWiQg WR eQeUg\ efficieQc\ Zhich 
aUe cRQWaiQed iQ Whe VWaWe eQeUg\ cRQVeUYaWiRQ SlaQ iVVXed iQ cRmSliaQce ZiWh Whe EQeUg\ PRlic\ aQd CRQVeUYaWiRQ 
AcW. 

1.30 PURcXUemeQW Rf RecRYeUed MaWeUialV 
a. IQ Whe SeUfRUmaQce Rf WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW, gUaQWee Vhall make ma[imXm XVe Rf SURdXcWV cRQWaiQiQg

UecRYeUed maWeUialV WhaW aUe EPA-deVigQaWed iWemV XQleVV Whe SURdXcW caQQRW be acTXiUed ±
i. CRmSeWiWiYel\  ZiWhiQ  a  WimefUame  SURYidiQg  fRU  cRmSliaQce  ZiWh  Whe  cRQWUacW  SeUfRUmaQce

VchedXle;
ii. MeeWiQg cRQWUacW SeUfRUmaQce UeTXiUemeQWV; RU

iii. AW a UeaVRQable SUice.
b. IQfRUmaWiRQ abRXW WhiV UeTXiUemeQW, alRQg ZiWh Whe liVW Rf EPA-deVigQaWed iWemV, iV aYailable aW EPA¶V

CRmSUeheQViYe     PURcXUemeQW     GXideliQeV     Zeb     ViWe,      hWWSV://ZZZ.eSa.gRY/Vmm/cRmSUeheQViYe- 
SURcXUemeQW-gXideliQe-cSg-SURgUam.

1.31 TeUmiQaWed CRQWUacWV 
The gUaQWee haV QRW had a cRQWUacW WeUmiQaWed RU beeQ deQied Whe UeQeZal Rf aQ\ cRQWUacW fRU QRQcRmSliaQce ZiWh 
SRlicieV RU UegXlaWiRQV Rf aQ\ VWaWe RU fedeUall\ fXQded SURgUam ZiWhiQ Whe SaVW fiYe (5) \eaUV QRU iV iW cXUUeQWl\ 
SURhibiWed fURm cRQWUacWiQg ZiWh a gRYeUQmeQWal ageQc\. If Whe gUaQWee dReV haYe VXch a WeUmiQaWed cRQWUacW, Whe 
gUaQWee Vhall ideQWif\ Whe cRQWUacW aQd SURYide aQ e[SlaQaWiRQ fRU Whe WeUmiQaWiRQ. The gUaQWee ackQRZledgeV WhaW 
WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW ma\ be WeUmiQaWed aQd Sa\meQW ZiWhheld RU UeWXUQ Rf gUaQW fXQdV UeTXiUed if WhiV ceUWificaWiRQ 
iV iQaccXUaWe RU falVe.



ϭϯ 

2 PURSHUW\ DQG PURFXUHPHQW RHTXLUHPHQWV 
2.1 PURSeUW\ MaQagemeQW aQd IQYeQWRU\ 
The gUaQWee mXVW eQVXUe eTXiSmeQW SXUchaVed ZiWh gUaQW fXQdV iV XVed fRU Whe SXUSRVe Rf Whe gUaQW aQd aV aSSURYed 
b\ HaUUiV CRXQW\. The gUaQWee mXVW deYelRS aQd imSlemeQW a cRQWURl V\VWem WR SUeYeQW lRVV, damage RU WhefW Rf 
SURSeUW\ aQd iQYeVWigaWe aQd dRcXmeQW aQ\ lRVV, damage RU WhefW Rf SURSeUW\ fXQded XQdeU WhiV GUaQW. 

The gUaQWee mXVW accRXQW fRU aQ\ Ueal aQd SeUVRQal SURSeUW\ acTXiUed ZiWh gUaQW fXQdV RU UeceiYed fURm Whe FedeUal 
GRYeUQmeQW iQ accRUdaQce ZiWh 2 CFR 200.310 IQVXUaQce cRYeUage WhURXgh 200.316 PURSeUW\ WUXVW UelaWiRQVhiS aQd 
200.329 ReSRUWiQg RQ Ueal SURSeUW\. ThiV dRcXmeQWaWiRQ mXVW be maiQWaiQed b\ Whe gUaQWee, accRUdiQg WR Whe 
UeTXiUemeQWV liVWed heUeiQ, aQd SURYided WR HaUUiV CRXQW\ XSRQ UeTXeVW, if aSSlicable. 

WheQ RUigiQal RU UeSlacemeQW eTXiSmeQW acTXiUed XQdeU WhiV aZaUd b\ Whe gUaQWee iV QR lRQgeU Qeeded fRU Whe 
RUigiQal SURjecW RU SURgUam RU fRU RWheU acWiYiWieV cXUUeQWl\ RU SUeYiRXVl\ VXSSRUWed b\ Whe fedeUal aZaUdiQg ageQc\ 
RU HaUUiV CRXQW\, Whe gUaQWee mXVW make SURSeU diVSRViWiRQ Rf Whe eTXiSmeQW SXUVXaQW WR 2 CFR 200. 

The gUaQWee Zill maiQWaiQ VSecified eTXiSmeQW maQagemeQW aQd iQYeQWRU\ SURcedXUeV fRU eTXiSmeQW (iQclXdiQg 
UeSlacemeQW eTXiSmeQW), ZheWheU acTXiUed iQ ZhRle RU iQ SaUW ZiWh gUaQW fXQdV, XQWil diVSRViWiRQ WakeV Slace, ZiWh 
a SeU-XQiW cRVW Rf $5,000 RU gUeaWeU. The eTXiSmeQW aQd iQYeQWRU\ SURcedXUeV iQclXde: 

A. The gUaQWee mXVW keeS aQ iQYeQWRU\ UeSRUW RQ file cRQWaiQiQg eTXiSmeQW SXUchaVed ZiWh aQ\ gUaQW fXQdV
dXUiQg Whe gUaQW SeUiRd. The iQYeQWRU\ UeSRUW mXVW agUee ZiWh Whe aSSURYed gUaQW bXdgeW aQd Whe fiQal
FiQaQcial SWaWXV ReSRUW aQd Vhall be aYailable WR HaUUiV CRXQW\ aW all WimeV XSRQ UeTXeVW.

B. The gUaQWee mXVW maiQWaiQ SURSeUW\/iQYeQWRU\ UecRUdV Zhich, aW miQimXm, iQclXde a deVcUiSWiRQ Rf Whe
SURSeUW\, a VeUial QXmbeU RU RWheU ideQWificaWiRQ QXmbeU, Whe VRXUce Rf SURSeUW\, ZhR hRldV WiWle, Whe
acTXiViWiRQ daWe, Whe cRVW Rf Whe SURSeUW\, Whe SeUceQWage Rf FedeUal SaUWiciSaWiRQ iQ Whe cRVW Rf Whe SURSeUW\,
Whe lRcaWiRQ, XVe aQd cRQdiWiRQ Rf Whe SURSeUW\, aQd aQ\ XlWimaWe diVSRViWiRQ daWa iQclXdiQg Whe daWe Rf
diVSRVal aQd Vale SUice Rf Whe SURSeUW\.

C. The gUaQWee Vhall SeUmaQeQWl\ ideQWif\ all VXch eTXiSmeQW b\ aSSURSUiaWe WagV RU labelV affi[ed WR Whe
eTXiSmeQW E[ceSWiRQV WR WhiV UeTXiUemeQW aUe limiWed WR iWemV ZheUe SlaciQg Rf Whe maUkiQg iV QRW SRVVible
dXe WR Whe QaWXUe Rf Whe eTXiSmeQW.

2.2 CRQVXlWiQg CRQWUacWV 
PUe-aSSURYal Rf cRVWV UelaWed WR cRQVXlWiQg cRQWUacWV iV UeTXiUed aQd Whe YalXe Rf cRQVXlWiQg cRQWUacWV eQWeUed iQWR 
b\ Whe gUaQWee ma\ QRW e[ceed 5% Rf Whe WRWal fXQdV UeceiYed b\ Whe lRcal XQiW Rf gRYeUQmeQW. 

2.3 PURcXUemeQW PUacWiceV aQd PRlicieV 
The gUaQWee mXVW fRllRZ aSSlicable fedeUal aQd VWaWe laZ, fedeUal SURcXUemeQW VWaQdaUdV VSecified iQ UegXlaWiRQV 
gRYeUQiQg fedeUal aZaUdV WR QRQ-fedeUal eQWiWieV, WheiU eVWabliVhed SRlic\, aQd beVW SUacWiceV fRU SURcXUiQg gRRdV RU 
VeUYiceV ZiWh gUaQW fXQdV. PURcXUemeQW acWiYiWieV mXVW fRllRZ Whe mRVW UeVWUicWiYe Rf fedeUal, VWaWe aQd lRcal 
SURcXUemeQW UegXlaWiRQV. CRQWUacWV mXVW be URXWiQel\ mRQiWRUed fRU deliYeU\ Rf VeUYiceV RU gRRdV. 

2.4 CRQWUacW PURYiViRQV UQdeU FedeUal AZaUdV 
All cRQWUacWV made b\ a gUaQWee XQdeU a fedeUal aZaUd mXVW cRQWaiQ Whe SURYiViRQV RXWliQed iQ 2 CFR 200 UQifRUm 
AdmiQiVWUaWiYe ReTXiUemeQWV, CRVW PUiQciSleV, aQd AXdiW ReTXiUemeQWV fRU FedeUal AZaUdV, ASSeQdi[ II WR PaUW 
200 CRQWUacW PURYiViRQV fRU NRQ-FedeUal EQWiW\ CRQWUacWV UQdeU FedeUal AZaUdV.



ϭϰ 

3 AXGLW DQG RHFRUGV RHTXLUHPHQWV 
3.1 CRRSeUaWiRQ ZiWh MRQiWRUiQg, AXdiWV, aQd RecRUdV ReTXiUemeQWV 
All UecRUdV aQd e[SeQdiWXUeV aUe VXbjecW WR, aQd gUaQWee agUeeV WR cRmSl\ ZiWh, mRQiWRUiQg aQd/RU aXdiWV cRQdXcWed 
b\ Whe UQiWed SWaWeV DeSaUWmeQW Rf TUeaVXU\¶V IQVSecWRU GeQeUal (DOTIG), HaUUiV CRXQW\, aQd Whe SWaWe AXdiWRU¶V 
Office (SAO) RU deVigQee. The gUaQWee Vhall maiQWaiQ XQdeU GAAP RU GASB, adeTXaWe UecRUdV WhaW eQable DOTIG, 
HaUUiV CRXQW\, aQd SAO WR eQVXUe SURSeU accRXQWiQg fRU all cRVWV aQd SeUfRUmaQceV UelaWed WR WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW. 

3.2 SiQgle AXdiW ReTXiUemeQWV 
AQ\ gUaQWee e[SeQdiQg $750,000 RU mRUe iQ fedeUal fXQdV iQ a fiVcal \eaU ma\ be VXbjecW WR SiQgle AXdiW 
ReTXiUemeQWV  iQ  2  CFR,  PaUW  200,  SXbSaUW  F  ±  AXdiW  ReTXiUemeQWV,  aW   hWWSV://ZZZ.ecfU.gRY/cgi-biQ/We[W- 
id[?WSl=/ecfUbURZVe/TiWle02/2cfU200_maiQ_02.WSl. 

The gUaQWeeV e[SeQdiQg mRUe WhaQ $750,000 iQ gUaQW fXQdV iQ a fiVcal \eaU aUe VXbjecW WR Whe UeTXiUemeQWV iQ Whe 
Te[aV  SiQgle  AXdiW  CiUcXlaU,  aW   hWWSV://cRmSWURlleU.We[aV.gRY/SXUchaViQg/dRcV/XgmV.Sdf.  The  aXdiW  mXVW  be 
cRmSleWed aQd Whe daWa cRllecWiRQ aQd UeSRUWiQg Sackage deVcUibed iQ 2 CFR 200.512 mXVW be VXbmiWWed WR Whe 
FedeUal AXdiW CleaUiQghRXVe (FAC) ZiWhiQ 30 caleQdaU da\V afWeU UeceiSW Rf Whe aXdiWRU'V UeSRUW(V), RU QiQe mRQWhV 
afWeU Whe eQd Rf Whe aXdiW SeUiRd, ZhicheYeU iV eaUlieU. 

3.3 ReTXiUemeQW WR AddUeVV AXdiW FiQdiQgV 
If aQ\ aXdiW, mRQiWRUiQg, iQYeVWigaWiRQV, UeYieZ Rf aZaUdV, RU RWheU cRmSliaQce UeYieZ UeYealV aQ\ diVcUeSaQcieV, 
iQadeTXacieV, RU deficieQcieV Zhich aUe QeceVVaU\ WR cRUUecW iQ RUdeU WR maiQWaiQ cRmSliaQce ZiWh WhiV GUaQW 
AgUeemeQW, aSSlicable laZV, UegXlaWiRQV, RU Whe gUaQWee'V RbligaWiRQV heUeXQdeU, Whe gUaQWee agUeeV WR SURSRVe aQd 
VXbmiW WR HaUUiV CRXQW\ a cRUUecWiYe acWiRQ SlaQ WR cRUUecW VXch diVcUeSaQcieV RU iQadeTXacieV ZiWhiQ WhiUW\ (30) 
caleQdaU da\V afWeU Whe gUaQWee'V UeceiSW Rf Whe fiQdiQgV. The gUaQWee'V cRUUecWiYe acWiRQ SlaQ iV VXbjecW WR Whe aSSURYal 
Rf HaUUiV CRXQW\. 

The gUaQWee XQdeUVWaQdV aQd agUeeV WhaW Whe gUaQWee mXVW make eYeU\ effRUW WR addUeVV aQd UeVRlYe all RXWVWaQdiQg 
iVVXeV, fiQdiQgV, RU acWiRQV ideQWified b\ DOTIG, HaUUiV CRXQW\, RU SAO WhURXgh Whe cRUUecWiYe acWiRQ SlaQ RU aQ\ 
RWheU cRUUecWiYe SlaQ. FailXUe WR SURmSWl\ aQd adeTXaWel\ addUeVV WheVe fiQdiQgV ma\ UeVXlW iQ gUaQW fXQdV beiQg 
ZiWhheld, RWheU UelaWed UeTXiUemeQWV beiQg imSRVed, RU RWheU VaQcWiRQV aQd SeQalWieV. The gUaQWee agUeeV WR cRmSleWe 
aQ\ cRUUecWiYe acWiRQ aSSURYed b\ HaUUiV CRXQW\ ZiWhiQ Whe Wime SeUiRd VSecified b\ HaUUiV CRXQW\ aQd WR Whe 
VaWiVfacWiRQ Rf HaUUiV CRXQW\, aW Whe VRle cRVW Rf Whe gUaQWee. The gUaQWee Vhall SURYide WR HaUUiV CRXQW\ SeUiRdic 
VWaWXV UeSRUWV UegaUdiQg Whe gUaQWee'V UeVRlXWiRQ Rf aQ\ aXdiW, cRUUecWiYe acWiRQ SlaQ, RU RWheU cRmSliaQce acWiYiW\ fRU 
Zhich Whe gUaQWee iV UeVSRQVible. 

3.4 RecRUdV ReWeQWiRQ 
A. The gUaQWee Vhall maiQWaiQ aSSURSUiaWe aXdiW WUailV WR SURYide accRXQWabiliW\ fRU all e[SeQdiWXUeV Rf gUaQW

fXQdV, UeSRUWiQg meaVXUeV, aQd fXQdV UeceiYed fURm HaUUiV CRXQW\ XQdeU WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW. AXdiW WUailV
maiQWaiQed b\ Whe gUaQWee Zill, aW a miQimXm, ideQWif\ Whe VXSSRUWiQg dRcXmeQWaWiRQ SUeSaUed b\ Whe
gUaQWee WR SeUmiW aQ aXdiW Rf iWV accRXQWiQg V\VWemV aQd Sa\meQW YeUificaWiRQ ZiWh UeVSecW WR Whe e[SeQdiWXUe
Rf aQ\ fXQdV aZaUded XQdeU WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW.

B. The gUaQWee mXVW maiQWaiQ fiVcal UecRUdV aQd VXSSRUWiQg dRcXmeQWaWiRQ fRU all e[SeQdiWXUeV UeVXlWiQg fURm
WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW SXUVXaQW WR 2 CFR 200.333 aQd VWaWe laZ.



ϭϱ 

1. The gUaQWee mXVW UeWaiQ WheVe UecRUdV aQd aQ\ VXSSRUWiQg dRcXmeQWaWiRQ fRU a miQimXm Rf VeYeQ
(7) \eaUV fURm Whe laWeU Rf Whe cRmSleWiRQ Rf WhiV SURjecW'V SXblic RbjecWiYe, VXbmiVViRQ Rf Whe fiQal
e[SeQdiWXUe UeSRUW, aQ\ liWigaWiRQ, diVSXWe, RU aXdiW.

2. RecRUdV UelaWed WR Ueal SURSeUW\ aQd eTXiSmeQW acTXiUed ZiWh gUaQW fXQdV Vhall be UeWaiQed fRU VeYeQ
(7) \eaUV afWeU fiQal diVSRViWiRQ.

3. HaUUiV CRXQW\ ma\ diUecW a gUaQWee WR UeWaiQ dRcXmeQWV fRU lRQgeU SeUiRdV Rf Wime RU WR WUaQVfeU
ceUWaiQ UecRUdV WR HaUUiV CRXQW\ RU fedeUal cXVWRd\ ZheQ iW iV deWeUmiQed WhaW Whe UecRUdV SRVVeVV
lRQg WeUm UeWeQWiRQ YalXe.

4 PURKLELWHG DQG RHJXODWHG AFWLYLWLHV DQG E[SHQGLWXUHV 
4.1 PURhibiWed CRVWV 

A. FXQdV ma\ QRW be XVed WR fill VhRUWfallV iQ gRYeUQmeQW UeYeQXe WR cRYeU e[SeQdiWXUeV WhaW ZRXld QRW
RWheUZiVe TXalif\ XQdeU Whe VWaWXWe. ReYeQXe UeSlacemeQW iV QRW a SeUmiVVible XVe Rf WheVe gUaQW fXQdV. IQ
accRUdaQce ZiWh SecWiRQ 3.1 all UecRUd aQd e[SeQdiWXUeV aUe VXbjecW WR UeYieZ.

B. DamageV cRYeUed b\ iQVXUaQce.
C. Pa\URll RU beQefiWV e[SeQVeV fRU emSlR\eeV ZhRVe ZRUk dXWieV aUe QRW VXbVWaQWiall\ dedicaWed WR miWigaWiQg

RU UeVSRQdiQg WR Whe COVID-19 SXblic healWh emeUgeQc\.
D. DXSlicaWiRQ Rf beQefiWV iQclXdiQg e[SeQVeV WhaW haYe beeQ RU Zill be UeimbXUVed XQdeU aQ\ RWheU fedeUal RU

VWaWe SURgUam.
E. ReimbXUVemeQW WR dRQRUV fRU dRQaWed iWemV RU VeUYiceV.
F. WRUkfRUce bRQXVeV RWheU WhaQ ha]aUd Sa\ RU RYeUWime.
G. SeYeUaQce Sa\.
H. Legal VeWWlemeQWV.

4.2 PRliWical AcWiYiWieV 
GUaQW fXQdV ma\ QRW be XVed iQ cRQQecWiRQ ZiWh Whe fRllRZiQg acWV b\ ageQcieV RU iQdiYidXalV emSlR\ed b\ gUaQW 
fXQdV: 

A. UQleVV VSecificall\ aXWhRUi]ed WR dR VR b\ fedeUal laZ, gUaQW UeciSieQWV RU WheiU gUaQWeeV RU cRQWUacWRUV aUe
SURhibiWed fURm XViQg gUaQW fXQdV diUecWl\ RU iQdiUecWl\ fRU SRliWical SXUSRVeV, iQclXdiQg lRbb\iQg RU
adYRcaWiQg fRU legiVlaWiYe SURgUamV RU chaQgeV; camSaigQiQg fRU, eQdRUViQg, cRQWUibXWiQg WR, RU RWheUZiVe
VXSSRUWiQg SRliWical caQdidaWeV RU SaUWieV; aQd YRWeU UegiVWUaWiRQ RU geW-RXW-Whe-YRWe camSaigQV. GeQeUall\,
RUgaQi]aWiRQV RU eQWiWieV Zhich UeceiYe fedeUal fXQdV b\ Za\ Rf gUaQWV, cRQWUacWV, RU cRRSeUaWiYe agUeemeQWV
dR QRW lRVe WheiU UighWV aV RUgaQi]aWiRQV WR XVe WheiU RZQ, SUiYaWe, QRQ-fedeUal UeVRXUceV fRU ³SRliWical´
acWiYiWieV becaXVe Rf RU aV a cRQVeTXeQce Rf UeceiYiQg VXch fedeUal fXQdV. TheVe UeciSieQW RUgaQi]aWiRQV
mXVW WhXV XVe SUiYaWe RU RWheU QRQ-fedeUal mRQe\, UeceiSWV, cRQWUibXWiRQV, RU dXeV fRU WheiU SRliWical
acWiYiWieV, aQd ma\ QRW chaUge Rff WR RU be UeimbXUVed fURm fedeUal cRQWUacWV RU gUaQWV fRU Whe cRVWV Rf VXch
acWiYiWieV.

B. GUaQW RfficialV RU gUaQW fXQded emSlR\eeV ma\ QRW XVe Rfficial aXWhRUiW\ RU iQflXeQce RU SeUmiW Whe XVe Rf a
SURgUam admiQiVWeUed b\ Whe gUaQWee ageQc\ Rf Zhich Whe SeUVRQ iV aQ RfficeU RU emSlR\ee WR iQWeUfeUe ZiWh
RU affecW Whe UeVXlW Rf aQ elecWiRQ RU QRmiQaWiRQ Rf a caQdidaWe RU WR achieYe aQ\ RWheU SRliWical SXUSRVe.

C. GUaQW-fXQded emSlR\eeV ma\ QRW cReUce, aWWemSW WR cReUce, cRmmaQd, UeVWUicW, aWWemSW WR UeVWUicW, RU SUeYeQW
Whe Sa\meQW, lRaQ, RU cRQWUibXWiRQ Rf aQ\WhiQg Rf YalXe WR a SeUVRQ RU SRliWical RUgaQi]aWiRQ fRU a SRliWical
SXUSRVe.



ϭϲ 

D. GUaQW fXQdV ma\ QRW be XVed WR emSlR\, aV a UegXlaU fXll-Wime RU SaUW-Wime RU cRQWUacW emSlR\ee, a SeUVRQ
ZhR iV UeTXiUed b\ ChaSWeU 305 Rf Whe GRYeUQmeQW CRde WR UegiVWeU aV a lRbb\iVW. FXUWheUmRUe, gUaQW fXQdV
ma\ QRW be XVed WR Sa\, RQ behalf Rf Whe ageQc\ RU aQ RfficeU RU emSlR\ee Rf Whe ageQc\, membeUVhiS dXeV
WR aQ RUgaQi]aWiRQ WhaW Sa\V SaUW RU all Rf Whe ValaU\ Rf a SeUVRQ ZhR iV UeTXiUed b\ ChaSWeU 305 Rf Whe
GRYeUQmeQW CRde WR UegiVWeU aV a lRbb\iVW.

E. AV aSSlicable, Whe gUaQWee aQd each cRQWUacWiQg WieU Zill cRmSl\ ZiWh 31 USC � 1352, Zhich SURYideV WhaW
QRQe Rf Whe fXQdV SURYided XQdeU aQ aZaUd ma\ be e[SeQded b\ Whe gUaQWee WR Sa\ aQ\ SeUVRQ WR iQflXeQce,
RU aWWemSW WR iQflXeQce aQ RfficeU RU emSlR\ee Rf aQ\ ageQc\, a MembeU Rf CRQgUeVV, aQ RfficeU Rf emSlR\ee
Rf CRQgUeVV, RU aQ emSlR\ee Rf a MembeU Rf CRQgUeVV iQ cRQQecWiRQ ZiWh aQ\ FedeUal acWiRQ cRQceUQiQg
Whe aZaUd RU UeQeZal. GUaQWee Vhall file Whe UeTXiUed ceUWificaWiRQ aWWached heUeWR aQd iQcRUSRUaWed fRU all
SXUSRVeV aV E[hibiW C. Each cRQWUacWiQg WieU Vhall alVR diVclRVe aQ\ lRbb\iQg ZiWh QRQ-fedeUal fXQdV WhaW
WakeV Slace iQ cRQQecWiRQ ZiWh RbWaiQiQg aQ\ FedeUal aZaUd. SXch diVclRVXUeV aUe fRUZaUded fURm WieU WR WieU
XS WR Whe UeciSieQW.

5 FLQDQFLDO RHTXLUHPHQWV 
5.1 DiUecW DeSRViW 
A cRmSleWed diUecW deSRViW fRUm fURm Whe gUaQWee mXVW be SURYided WR HaUUiV CRXQW\ SUiRU WR UeceiYiQg aQ\ 
Sa\meQWV.. 

5.2 Pa\meQWV aQd ReTXiUed DRcXmeQWaWiRQ 
FXQdiQg fRU WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW iV aSSURSUiaWed XQdeU Whe CRURQaYiUXV Aid, Relief, aQd EcRQRmic SecXUiW\ AcW, 
2020 (PXblic LaZ 116-136) eQacWed RQ MaUch 27, 2020, aV ameQded, WR faciliWaWe SURWecWiYe meaVXUeV fRU aQd 
UecRYeU\ fURm Whe SXblic healWh emeUgeQc\ iQ aUeaV affecWed b\ COVID-19, Zhich aUe PUeVideQWiall\-declaUed majRU 
diVaVWeU aUeaV XQdeU TiWle IV Rf Whe RRbeUW T. SWaffRUd DiVaVWeU Relief aQd EmeUgeQc\ AVViVWaQce AcW (42 U.S.C. 
5121 eW VeT.). All e[SeQdiWXUeV XQdeU WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW mXVW be made iQ accRUdaQce ZiWh WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW 
aQd aQ\ RWheU aSSlicable laZV, UXleV RU UegXlaWiRQV. FXUWheU, gUaQWee ackQRZledgeV WhaW all fXQdV aUe VXbjecW WR 
UecaSWXUe aQd UeSa\meQW fRU QRQ-cRmSliaQce SXUVXaQW WR SecWiRQ 5.7 belRZ. 

ReimbXUVemeQW UeTXeVWV ma\ be UeTXeVWed fRllRZiQg fXll UeSRUWiQg WR HaUUiV CRXQW\ Rf eligible e[SeQVeV iQcXUUed. 

All dRcXmeQWaWiRQ fRU e[SeQdiWXUeV Said dXUiQg Whe SURjecW SeUiRd mXVW be VXbmiWWed WR HaUUiV CRXQW\ RQ RU befRUe 
Whe gUaQW liTXidaWiRQ daWe. 

5.3 ReimbXUVemeQWV 
HaUUiV CRXQW\ Zill be RbligaWed WR UeimbXUVe Whe gUaQWee fRU Whe e[SeQdiWXUe Rf acWXal aQd allRZable allRcable cRVWV 
iQcXUUed aQd Said b\ Whe gUaQWee SXUVXaQW WR WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW.  HaUUiV CRXQW\ iV QRW RbligaWed WR Sa\ 
XQaXWhRUi]ed cRVWV RU WR UeimbXUVe e[SeQVeV WhaW ZeUe iQcXUUed b\ Whe gUaQWee SUiRU WR Whe cRmmeQcemeQW RU afWeU 
Whe WeUmiQaWiRQ Rf WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW. 

5.4 RefXQdV aQd DedXcWiRQV 
If HaUUiV CRXQW\ deWeUmiQeV WhaW Whe gUaQWee haV beeQ RYeUSaid aQ\ gUaQW fXQdV XQdeU WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW, 
iQclXdiQg Sa\meQWV made iQadYeUWeQWl\ RU Sa\meQWV made bXW laWeU deWeUmiQed WR QRW be acWXal aQd allRZable 
allRcable cRVWV, Whe gUaQWee Vhall UeWXUQ WR HaUUiV CRXQW\ Whe amRXQW ideQWified b\ HaUUiV CRXQW\ aV aQ RYeUSa\meQW. 
The gUaQWee Vhall UefXQd aQ\ RYeUSa\meQW WR HaUUiV CRXQW\ ZiWhiQ WhiUW\ (30) caleQdaU da\V Rf Whe UeceiSW Rf Whe 
QRWice Rf Whe RYeUSa\meQW fURm HaUUiV CRXQW\ XQleVV aQ alWeUQaWe Sa\meQW SlaQ iV VSecified b\ HaUUiV CRXQW\.



ϭϳ 

5.5 RecaSWXUe Rf FXQdV 
The diVcUeWiRQaU\ UighW Rf HaUUiV CRXQW\ WR WeUmiQaWe fRU cRQYeQieQce XQdeU SecWiRQ 1.13 QRWZiWhVWaQdiQg, HaUUiV 
CRXQW\ Vhall haYe Whe UighW WR WeUmiQaWe Whe GUaQW AgUeemeQW aQd WR UecaSWXUe, aQd be UeimbXUVed fRU aQ\ Sa\meQWV 
made b\ HaUUiV CRXQW\: (i) WhaW aUe QRW allRZed XQdeU aSSlicable laZV, UXleV, aQd UegXlaWiRQV; RU (ii) WhaW aUe RWheUZiVe 
iQcRQViVWeQW ZiWh WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW, iQclXdiQg aQ\ XQaSSURYed e[SeQdiWXUeV. 

5.6 LiTXidaWiRQ PeUiRd 
GUaQW fXQdV Zill liTXidaWe 90 caleQdaU da\V fRllRZiQg Whe SURjecW SeUiRd eQd daWe RU RQ DecembeU 30, 2020, 
ZhicheYeU iV eaUlieU. FXQdV QRW RbligaWed b\ Whe eQd Rf Whe gUaQW SeUiRd aQd QRW e[SeQded b\ Whe liTXidaWiRQ daWe 
Zill UeYeUW WR HaUUiV CRXQW\. 

5.7 PURjecW ClRVe OXW 
HaUUiV CRXQW\ Zill clRVe-RXW Whe gUaQW aZaUd ZheQ iW deWeUmiQeV WhaW all aSSlicable admiQiVWUaWiYe acWiRQV aQd all 
UeTXiUed ZRUk Rf Whe gUaQW haYe beeQ cRmSleWed b\ Whe gUaQWee. 

The gUaQWee mXVW VXbmiW all fiQaQcial, SeUfRUmaQce, aQd RWheU UeSRUWV aV UeTXiUed b\ Whe WeUmV aQd cRQdiWiRQV Rf Whe 
gUaQW aZaUd. 

The gUaQWee mXVW SURmSWl\ UefXQd aQ\ balaQceV Rf XQRbligaWed caVh WhaW HaUUiV CRXQW\ Said aQd WhaW aUe QRW 
aXWhRUi]ed WR be UeWaiQed b\ Whe gUaQWee fRU XVe iQ RWheU SURjecWV. 

5.8 MiVcellaQeRXV PURYiViRQV 
IW iV e[SUeVVl\ XQdeUVWRRd aQd agUeed b\ Whe PaUWieV WhaW QRWhiQg cRQWaiQed iQ WhiV AgUeemeQW Vhall be 
cRQVWUXed WR cRQVWiWXWe RU cUeaWe a jRiQW YeQWXUe, SaUWQeUVhiS, aVVRciaWiRQ RU RWheU affiliaWiRQ RU like UelaWiRQVhiS 
beWZeeQ Whe PaUWieV, iW beiQg VSecificall\ agUeed WhaW WheiU UelaWiRQVhiS iV aQd Vhall UemaiQ WhaW Rf iQdeSeQdeQW SaUWieV 
WR a cRQWUacWXal UelaWiRQVhiS aV VeW fRUWh iQ WhiV AgUeemeQW. The CRXQW\ iV aQ iQdeSeQdeQW cRQWUacWRU aQd QeiWheU iW, 
QRU iWV emSlR\eeV RU ageQWV Vhall be cRQVideUed WR be aQ emSlR\ee, ageQW, SaUWQeU, RU UeSUeVeQWaWiYe Rf Whe CiW\ fRU 
aQ\ SXUSRVe. The CiW\, QRU iWV emSlR\eeV, RfficeUV, RU ageQWV Vhall be cRQVideUed WR be emSlR\eeV, ageQWV, SaUWQeUV 
RU UeSUeVeQWaWiYeV Rf Whe CRXQW\ fRU aQ\ SXUSRVeV.  NeiWheU PaUW\ haV Whe aXWhRUiW\ WR biQd Whe RWheU PaUW\. 

The CRXQW\ iV QRW RbligaWed RU liable WR aQ\ SaUW\ RWheU WhaQ CiW\ fRU Whe SeUfRUmaQce Rf WhiV AgUeemeQW.  NRWhiQg 
iQ Whe AgUeemeQW iV iQWeQded RU Vhall be deemed RU cRQVWUXed WR cUeaWe aQ\ addiWiRQal UighWV RU UemedieV XSRQ aQ\ 
WhiUd SaUW\. FXUWheU, QRWhiQg cRQWaiQed iQ Whe AgUeemeQW Vhall be cRQVWUXed WR RU RSeUaWe iQ aQ\ maQQeU ZhaWVReYeU 
WR iQcUeaVe Whe UighWV Rf aQ\ WhiUd SaUW\, RU Whe dXWieV RU UeVSRQVibiliWieV Rf CRXQW\ ZiWh UeVSecW WR aQ\ WhiUd SaUW\. 

A ZaiYeU b\ eiWheU PaUW\ Rf a bUeach RU YiRlaWiRQ Rf aQ\ SURYiViRQ Rf Whe AgUeemeQW Vhall QRW be deemed RU cRQVWUXed 
WR be a ZaiYeU Rf aQ\ VXbVeTXeQW bUeach. 

The CRXQW\ dReV QRW agUee WR biQdiQg aUbiWUaWiRQ, QRU dReV Whe CRXQW\ ZaiYe iWV UighW WR a jXU\ WUial. 

ThiV AgUeemeQW cRQWaiQV Whe eQWiUe agUeemeQW beWZeeQ Whe PaUWieV UelaWiQg WR Whe UighWV heUeiQ gUaQWed aQd Whe 
RbligaWiRQV heUeiQ aVVXmed.  ThiV AgUeemeQW VXSeUVedeV aQd UeSlaceV aQ\ SUiRU agUeemeQW beWZeeQ Whe PaUWieV 
SeUWaiQiQg WR Whe UighWV gUaQWed aQd Whe RbligaWiRQV aVVXmed heUeiQ.  ThiV AgUeemeQW Vhall be VXbjecW WR chaQge RU 
mRdificaWiRQ RQl\ b\ a VXbVeTXeQW ZUiWWeQ mRdificaWiRQ aSSURYed aQd VigQed b\ Whe gRYeUQiQg bRdieV Rf each PaUW\. 

The SURYiViRQV Rf WhiV AgUeemeQW aUe VeYeUable, aQd if aQ\ SURYiViRQ RU SaUW Rf WhiV AgUeemeQW RU Whe aSSlicaWiRQ 
WheUeRf WR aQ\ SeUVRQ, eQWiW\, RU ciUcXmVWaQce Vhall eYeU be held b\ aQ\ cRXUW Rf cRmSeWeQW jXUiVdicWiRQ WR be iQYalid 
RU XQcRQVWiWXWiRQal fRU aQ\ UeaVRQ, Whe UemaiQdeU Rf WhiV AgUeemeQW aQd Whe aSSlicaWiRQ Rf VXch SURYiViRQ RU SaUW Rf 
WhiV AgUeemeQW WR RWheU SeUVRQV, eQWiWieV, RU ciUcXmVWaQceV Vhall QRW be affecWed WheUeb\.



ϭϴ 

AQ\ SURYiViRQ Rf WhiV AgUeemeQW WhaW, b\ iWV SlaiQ meaQiQg, iV iQWeQded WR VXUYiYe Whe e[SiUaWiRQ RU eaUlieU 
WeUmiQaWiRQ Rf WhiV AgUeemeQW iQclXdiQg, bXW QRW limiWed WR Whe iQdemQificaWiRQ SURYiViRQ, Vhall VXUYiYe VXch 
e[SiUaWiRQ RU eaUlieU WeUmiQaWiRQ.  If aQ ambigXiW\ e[iVWV aV WR VXUYiYal, Whe SURYiViRQ Vhall be deemed WR VXUYiYe. 

ThiV AgUeemeQW ma\ be e[ecXWed iQ VeYeUal cRXQWeUSaUWV.   Each cRXQWeUSaUW iV deemed aQ RUigiQal aQd all 
cRXQWeUSaUWV WRgeWheU cRQVWiWXWe RQe aQd Whe Vame iQVWUXmeQW. IQ addiWiRQ, each PaUW\ ZaUUaQWV WhaW Whe XQdeUVigQed 
iV a dXl\ aXWhRUi]ed UeSUeVeQWaWiYe ZiWh Whe SRZeU WR e[ecXWe Whe AgUeemeQW. 

B\ e[ecXWiRQ Rf WhiV AgUeemeQW, Whe CiW\ ZaUUaQWV WhaW Whe dXWieV accRUded WR Whe CiW\ iQ WhiV AgUeemeQW aUe ZiWhiQ 
Whe SRZeUV aQd aXWhRUiW\ Rf Whe CiW\. 

[EXHIBITS AND SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS@



HILSHIRE VILLAGE 

B\ 

DaWe: 

HARRIS COUNTY 

B\: 
LINA HIDALGO 
COUNTY JUDGE 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
VINCE RYAN 
COUNTY ATTORNEY 

B\: _ 
RaQd\ KeeQaQ 
AVViVWaQW CRXQW\ AWWRUQe\ 
C.A. File 20GEN1946

ϭϵ

5XVVHOO�+HUURQ

�������



EXHIBIT A 

NRWice Rf SXbUeciSieQW GUaQW AZaUd 
(fRllRZV behiQd) 

ϮϬ



HARRIS CO8N7<, 7E;AS
B8DGE7 MANAGEMEN7 DEPAR7MEN7

Administration Building 
1001 Preston, Suite 500 

Houston, TX  77002 
(713) 274-1100

COVID 19 AJHQGD IWHP 

JXl\ 14, 2020 

TR:  CRXQW\ JXdge HidalgR, aQd 
CRmmiVViRQeUV ElliV, GaUcia, 
Radack, aQd Cagle 

Fm:     ShaiQ CaUUi]al 

Re:  CARES AFW ± EVWDEOLVKPHQW RI WKH SPDOO CLW\ AVVLVWDQFH PURJUDP 

The CARES AcW eVWabliVhed Whe CRURQaYiUXV Relief FXQd (CRF), aQd HaUUiV CRXQW\ UeceiYed a 
diUecW allRcaWiRQ Rf $426 milliRQ.  OQ ASUil 28, 2020 CRmmiVViRQeUV CRXUW aXWhRUi]ed fRUmiQg a 
cRmmiWWee cRQViVWiQg Rf a UeSUeVeQWaWiYe fURm each Rffice Rf CRmmiVViRQeUV CRXUW WR ZRUk ZiWh 
BMD/HRRM aQd all UeleYaQW deSaUWmeQWV WR make UecRmmeQdaWiRQV RQ Whe e[SeQdiWXUeV Rf Whe 
fXQdV. AWWached fRU \RXU aSSURYal iV a UecRmmeQdaWiRQ fURm Whe cRmmiWWee WR eVWabliVh Whe Small 
CiW\ AVViVWaQce PURgUam iQ aQ amRXQW QRW WR e[ceed $28.5 milliRQ. 

The cRmmiWWee Zill cRQWiQXe WR ZRUk ZiWh GXidehRXVe iQ makiQg fXUWheU UecRmmeQdaWiRQV WR 
CRmmiVViRQeUV CRXUW befRUe Whe CRF e[SiUaWiRQ daWe Rf DecembeU 30, 2020. 

ThaQk \RX fRU \RXU cRQVideUaWiRQ. 

AWWachmeQW 

HSC0045



ϭ 

C�i�e�ia Na�e De�c�i��i�� Addi�i��a� 
C���ide�a�i��� 

͓ͳ 

Cities would submit their approved FEMA Public 
Assistance (PA) requests showing the ͷΨ 
reimbursement requested. Harris County then 
provides the remaining ʹͷΨ of eligible 
reimbursements. 

Technical 
assistance 

Match cities apply for 
FEMA PA 

͓ʹ 

Eligible 

Expenses incurred by small cities that are typically not 
covered by FEMA or other grants, that are eligible for 
CRF. This includes, but is not limited to, the following 
activities: 
- COVID dedicated payroll expenses
- Paid sick and medical leave
- Government payroll support program
- Unemployment insurance costs
- Telework capability improvement

activities not Educate cities 
covered by about these 

other funding expense activities 
sources 

COVIDǦͳͻ S�a�� Ci�� A��i��a�ce P��g�a� 
J��� ͳͲǡ ʹͲʹͲ 

BACKGROUND 
The COVID-ͳͻ pandemic is stretching the ability of State, County, and City governments to both meet their 
obligations to protect their citizens and to ensure complete economic recovery and long-term resiliency. While 
each situation is unique, we understand that Harris County faces considerable demands resulting from this 
outbreak and the ͵Ͷ cities it represents, and the County seeks to establish a program to provide appropriate 
reimbursement of Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF) to the respective small cities. 

PROGRAM PURPOSE 
The COVID-ͳͻ Small City Assistance Program’s purpose is to provide financial assistance for the needs of cities 
with δͷͲͲK population. 

The following are the program considerations: 

C���di�a�i��.  Need  to  ensure  that  the  County’s  response  is  coordinated  so  that  it  addresses  the 
unprecedented public health and societal impacts impacting the small cities. 
G�a���  Ma�age�e��.  Need  to  ensure  support  of  the  management  of  grant  applications,  eligibility 
verification, grant awards, management of grant and subrecipient      agreements,  and  management  of 
approval processes for funds requested by cities within Harris County related to the CRF. 
E�igibi�i��. Need to ensure expenses incurred and to be reimbursed to the small cities are captured in a 
manner that makes them reimbursable in accordance with U.S. Department of Treasury guidance for the 
Coronavirus Relief Fund 

 C����ia�ce. Need to ensure that the County is complying with the rules and regulations that will ensure 
expenses are reimbursable and avoid a loss of stakeholder and community confidence. 

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 
Cities with δͷͲͲK population that demonstrate need for financial assistance may qualify for assistance by 
meeting any of the following criteria: 

FEMA ʹͷΨ  
provided to help



Ϯ 

͓͵ 
Other COVID Other related expenses not identified in Options ͓ͳ 

and ͓ʹ that will be evaluated by the County for 
duplication of benefits on a case-by-case basis 

Educate cities 
Related about these 

Expenses expense activities 

ALLOCATION MAXIMUMS 
Per the chart below, $ͷͷ per capita is used to determine a ceiling of available CRF funding per small city within 
Harris  County.  This  amount  is  based  on  the  criteria  established  by  the  Texas  Department  of  Emergency 
Management (TDEM) for other cities and counties in Texas with δͷͲͲK populations. 

Ci�� ʹͲͳͺ Ce���� P����a�i�� Da�a A���ca�i�� Cei�i�g 
Baytown ʹ,ͺͻ $Ͷ,ͲͲͺ,͵Ͷͷ 

Bellaire ͳͺ,ͻ $ͳ,ͲͶ͵,ͳ͵Ͳ 
Bunker Hill Village ͵,ͻͺʹ $ʹͳͻ,ͲͳͲ 

Deer Park ͵͵,ͻ͵ͳ $ͳ,ͺ,ʹͲͷ 
El Lago ʹ,ʹ $ͳͶͻ,ͻͺͷ 

Friendswood ͳͳ,ͷͷ $͵,ʹͷ 
Galena Park ͳͲ,ͻ͵ͳ $Ͳͳ,ʹͲͷ 

Hedwig Village ʹ,ͻ $ͳͶ,ͻͷ 
Hilshire Village ͺͳͻ $Ͷͷ,ͲͶͷ 

Humble ͳ,ͲͶͳ $ͺͺʹ,ʹͷͷ 
Hunters Creek Village Ͷ,ͺͻͳ $ʹͻ,ͲͲͷ 

Jacinto City ͳͲ,ʹͷ $ͷͺͶ,͵ͷ 
Jersey Village ,ͻʹ $Ͷ͵,ͻͳͲ 

Katy ͳͷ,ʹͷͳ $ͺ͵ͺ,ͺͲͷ 
La Porte ͵ͷ,Ͷʹ͵ $ͳ,ͻͶͺ,ʹͷ 

League City ͳ,ͻͺͶ $ͳͲͻ,ͳʹͲ 
Missouri City ,ʹ͵ $͵Ͷͷ,Ͳͳͷ 

Morgan's Point ͵Ͷͷ $ͳͺ,ͻͷ 
Nassau Bay Ͷ,Ͳ͵ $ʹʹʹ,Ͳ͵ͷ 

Pasadena ͳͷ͵,ʹͳͻ $ͺ,Ͷʹ,ͲͶͷ 
Pearland ͷ,ʹ͵ $ʹͺͺ,Ͳ͵ͷ 

Piney Point Village ͵,ͶͶͻ $ͳͺͻ,ͻͷ 
Seabrook ͳͶ,ʹͻͳ $ͺ,ͲͲͷ 

Shoreacres ͳ,ͳͳ $ͺͺ,Ͳͷ 
South Houston ͳ,ͷͺ͵ $ͻ,Ͳͷ 

Southside Place ͳ,ͺͺͳ $ͳͲ͵,Ͷͷͷ 
Spring Valley Village Ͷ,͵͵͵ $ʹ͵ͺ,͵ͳͷ 

Stafford ͵Ͳͻ $ͳ,ͻͻͷ 
Taylor Lake Village ͵,ʹͷ $ͳͻͻ,͵ͷ 

The Woodlands ͳ͵,ͲͲͲ* $ͳͷ,ͲͲͲ 
Tomball ͳͳ,ͳ $Ͷ,ͺͷͷ 

Waller ͲͲ $͵͵,ͲͲͲ 
Webster ͳͳ,ʹͲͳ $ͳ,Ͳͷͷ 

West University Place ͳͷ, $ͺʹ,ͳͺͲ 
 T��a� ͷͳͻǡͲͺ ̈́ʹͺǡͷͶͻǡͺͷ 

ΎEƐƚiŵaƚed ceŶƐƵƐ daƚa fŽƌ ƚhe ƉŽƌƚiŽŶ Žf The WŽŽdůaŶdƐ iŶcůƵded iŶ HaƌƌiƐ CŽƵŶƚǇ͕ Ɖeƌ The WŽŽdůaŶdƐ Aƌea EcŽŶŽŵic DeǀeůŽƉŵeŶƚ 
PaƌƚŶeƌƐhiƉ



ϯ 

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 
With the purpose of helping small cities, especially those not familiar with federal funding, the small cities will be 
provided with technical assistance to better understand the process of successfully identifying eligible CRF 
activities, and guidance around other potential funding sources (ex. FEMA PA).   The main components of the 
technical assistance will include (but is not limited to)ͳ: 

ͳ. Conducting outreach activities to:
 Inform small cities about the program 
 Engaging City management to actively participate in program 

ʹ. Hosting webcast and online training for:
 Overall process of the County’s program for small cities 
 Eligible activities under the CRF grant and overlap with other funding sources 
 Workflows, forms, tools, and documentation requirements for reimbursement 
 Brief overview of other federal funding sources 

͵. Providing tools and templates for reimbursement requests including:
 Excel based cost tracking mechanism 
 Checklist of eligible activities with required documentation 
 Frequently asked questions (FAQs) 
 Workflow steps for transparency 

Ͷ. Providing one-on-one support including:
 Questions around eligibility and/or process 
 Developing reimbursement requests 
 Understanding any rejected/returned reimbursement requests 

AGREEMENT FOR DISTRIBUTION 
To receive CRF distributions, the small city mayor or city manager must review, agree to the terms and conditions, 
and sign certification forms similar to those developed by TDEM. ʹ  The CRF Terms and Conditions released by 
TDEM addresses the grant acceptance, project period, general responsibility, amendments and changes to the 
grant agreement, and jurisdictional cooperation that a subrecipient must adhere to when receiving CRF 
distributions. 

ϭ See Attachment A for framework of technical assistance 
Ϯ See Appendix for example of modified CARES Act Coronavirus Relief Fund Eligibility Certification from TDEM



ϰ 

APPENDIX 
CARES ACT CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND ELIGIBILITY CERTIFICATION͵

I,  , am the Mayor or City Manager of   (”Municipality”), and I certify that: 

ϭ͘ I have the authority on behalf of Municipality to request grant payments from Harris County (“County”)
for federal funds appropriated pursuant to section Ͳͳ of the Social Security Act, as added by section
ͷͲͲͳ of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, Pub. L. No. ͳͳ-ͳ͵, div. A, Title V (Mar.
ʹ, ʹͲʹͲ).

Ϯ͘ I understand that the County will rely on this certification as a material representation in making grant
payments to the Municipality.

ϯ͘ I acknowledge that Municipality should keep records sufficient to demonstrate that the expenditure of
funds it has received is in accordance with section Ͳͳ(d) of the Social Security Act.

ϰ͘ I acknowledge that all records and expenditures are subject to audit by the United States Department of
Treasury’s Inspector General, Harris County, or designee.

ϱ͘ I acknowledge that Municipality has an affirmative obligation to identify and report any duplication of
benefits. I understand that the County has an obligation and the authority to deobligate or offset any
duplicated benefits.

ϲ͘ I acknowledge and agree that Municipality shall be liable for any costs disallowed pursuant to financial
or compliance audits of funds received.

ϳ͘ I acknowledge that if Municipality has not used funds it has received to cover costs that were incurred
by December ͵Ͳ, ʹͲʹͲ, as required by the statute, those funds must be returned to the United States
Department of the Treasury.

ϴ͘ I acknowledge that the Municipality’s proposed uses of the funds provided as grant payments from the
County by federal appropriation under section Ͳͳ of the Social Security Act will be used only to cover
those costs that:

a͘ are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency and governor’s disaster
declaration on March ͳ͵, ʹͲʹͲ with respect to the Coronavirus Disease ʹͲͳͻ (COVID-ͳͻ);

b͘ were not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March ʹ, ʹͲʹͲ, for
Municipality; and

c͘ were incurred during the period that begins on March ͳ, ʹͲʹͲ and ends on December ͵Ͳ, ʹͲʹͲ.

In addition to each of the statements above, I acknowledge on submission of this certification that my 
jurisdiction has incurred eligible expenses between March ͳ, ʹͲʹͲ and the date noted below. 

By: 

Signature: 

Title: 

Date: 

ϯ Per Texas Department of Emergency Management, tdem.texas.gov, with modifications

��������������

��������������

ͻǦʹͳǦʹͲ

Russell Herron

Russell Herron
Hilshire Village 

Russell Herron
Russell Herron

Russell Herron
            Mayor        



ϱ 

ATTACHMENT A 
TIMELINE OF TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE AND ADMINISTRATION 

The following table details technical assistance and administration activities provided to the County and small 
cities within Harris County. All activities will be ongoing through December ͵Ͳ, ʹͲʹͲ with auditing and close- 
out activities continuing into ʹͲʹͳ. 

M���h Ac�i�i�� 
Begi�� 

J��� 

Ac�i�i�� 

- Outreach effort to notify small cities about the Small City Assistance
Program including webcasts about the overall process 

- Small cities execute certification form ahead of receiving CRF
distribution from the County 

A�g��� 

- Training to help cities identify expenses eligible for FEMA PA and
other federal funding sources

- Providing training materials about other federal funding sources
- Assistance to apply for other federal funding
- Provide a mapped flow of documentation and requirements of the

Grant Management program lifecycle to small cities to understand all
necessary documentation

- Provide tools and templates for tracking costs for reimbursement
- Provide eligible cost checklists for CRF reimbursement
- Assistance to develop reimbursement requests including holding

office hours to answer questions about eligibility
- Training cities about duplication of benefits, how to prevent them,

and how to notify the County if any assistance that could fall into this
category is received

Se��e�be� 

- Track the disbursement of funds, at the County level, to ensure they
are being used as they were intended and in a timely fashion 

- Provide access to workflows, forms, tools, and documentation
requirements for reimbursement of each individual transaction 

Oc��be� - Support to understand any denied benefits and reapply, if possible

N��e�be� - Trainings about how subrecipients can properly close out use of
funds received and what documentation is required 

Dece�be� 
- Report on the assistance provided to small cities, the maximation of

benefits realized from various federal funding sources, and measure
CRF distribution utilized



Ϯϭ 

EXHIBIT B 

CARES AcW CRURQaYiUXV Relief FXQd EligibiliW\ CeUWificaWiRQ FRUm 
(fRllRZV behiQd)



ϮϮ 

CARES ACT CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND ELIGIBILITY CERTIFICATION 

I,  , am Whe Ma\RU RU CiW\ MaQageU Rf  (´MXQiciSaliW\´), aQd 
I ceUWif\ WhaW: 

1. I haYe Whe aXWhRUiW\ RQ behalf Rf MXQiciSaliW\ WR UeTXeVW gUaQW Sa\meQWV fURm HaUUiV CRXQW\ (³CRXQW\´)
fRU fedeUal fXQdV aSSURSUiaWed SXUVXaQW WR VecWiRQ 601 Rf Whe SRcial SecXUiW\ AcW, aV added b\ VecWiRQ
5001 Rf Whe CRURQaYiUXV Aid, Relief, aQd EcRQRmic SecXUiW\ AcW, PXb. L. NR. 116-136, diY. A, TiWle V
(MaU. 27, 2020).

2. I XQdeUVWaQd WhaW Whe CRXQW\ Zill Uel\ RQ WhiV ceUWificaWiRQ aV a maWeUial UeSUeVeQWaWiRQ iQ makiQg gUaQW
Sa\meQWV WR Whe MXQiciSaliW\.

3. I ackQRZledge WhaW MXQiciSaliW\ VhRXld keeS UecRUdV VXfficieQW WR demRQVWUaWe WhaW Whe e[SeQdiWXUe Rf
fXQdV iW haV UeceiYed iV iQ accRUdaQce ZiWh VecWiRQ 601(d) Rf Whe SRcial SecXUiW\ AcW.

4. I ackQRZledge WhaW all UecRUdV aQd e[SeQdiWXUeV aUe VXbjecW WR aXdiW b\ Whe UQiWed SWaWeV DeSaUWmeQW Rf
TUeaVXU\¶V IQVSecWRU GeQeUal, HaUUiV CRXQW\, RU deVigQee.

5. I ackQRZledge WhaW MXQiciSaliW\ haV aQ affiUmaWiYe RbligaWiRQ WR ideQWif\ aQd UeSRUW aQ\ dXSlicaWiRQ Rf
beQefiWV. I XQdeUVWaQd WhaW Whe CRXQW\ haV aQ RbligaWiRQ aQd Whe aXWhRUiW\ WR deRbligaWe RU RffVeW aQ\
dXSlicaWed beQefiWV.

6. I ackQRZledge aQd agUee WhaW MXQiciSaliW\ Vhall be liable fRU aQ\ cRVWV diVallRZed SXUVXaQW WR fiQaQcial RU
cRmSliaQce aXdiWV Rf fXQdV UeceiYed.

7. I ackQRZledge WhaW if MXQiciSaliW\ haV QRW XVed fXQdV iW haV UeceiYed WR cRYeU cRVWV WhaW ZeUe iQcXUUed b\
DecembeU 30, 2020, aV UeTXiUed b\ Whe VWaWXWe, WhRVe fXQdV mXVW be UeWXUQed WR Whe CRXQW\ RU UQiWed
SWaWeV DeSaUWmeQW Rf Whe TUeaVXU\.

8. I ackQRZledge WhaW Whe MXQiciSaliW\¶V SURSRVed XVeV Rf Whe fXQdV SURYided aV gUaQW Sa\meQWV fURm Whe
CRXQW\ b\ fedeUal aSSURSUiaWiRQ XQdeU VecWiRQ 601 Rf Whe SRcial SecXUiW\ AcW Zill be XVed RQl\ WR cRYeU
WhRVe cRVWV WhaW:

a. aUe QeceVVaU\ e[SeQdiWXUeV iQcXUUed dXe WR Whe SXblic healWh emeUgeQc\ aQd gRYeUQRU¶V diVaVWeU
declaUaWiRQ RQ MaUch 13, 2020 ZiWh UeVSecW WR Whe CRURQaYiUXV DiVeaVe 2019 (COVID-19);

b. ZeUe QRW accRXQWed fRU iQ Whe bXdgeW mRVW UeceQWl\ aSSURYed aV Rf MaUch 27, 2020, fRU
MXQiciSaliW\; aQd

F. ZeUe iQcXUUed dXUiQg Whe SeUiRd WhaW begiQV RQ MaUch 1, 2020 aQd eQdV RQ DecembeU 30, 2020.

IQ addiWiRQ WR each Rf Whe VWaWemeQWV abRYe, I ackQRZledge RQ VXbmiVViRQ Rf WhiV ceUWificaWiRQ WhaW m\ jXUiVdicWiRQ 
haV iQcXUUed eligible e[SeQVeV beWZeeQ MaUch 1, 2020 aQd Whe daWe QRWed belRZ. I ackQRZledge acceSWaQce Rf Whe 
gUaQW aQd all e[hibiWV iQ WhiV GUaQW AgUeemeQW, aQd WR abide b\ all WeUmV aQd cRQdiWiRQV. 

NDPH: 

TLWOH: 

SLJQDWXUH: 

DDWH:

Russell Herron
Russell Herron

Russell Herron

Russell Herron
Hilshire Village

Russell Herron
Russell Herron

Russell Herron
Mayor

Russell Herron
September 21, 2020



Ϯϯ  

 
 

EXHIBIT C CeUWificaWiRQ 
RegaUdiQg LRbb\iQg (fRllRZV 

behiQd)



Ϯϰ  

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 
CeUWificaWiRQ fRU CRQWUacWV, GUaQWV, LRaQV, aQd CRRSeUaWiYe AgUeemeQWV 

 
The XQdeUVigQed gUaQWee,                                              , ceUWifieV, WR Whe beVW Rf hiV RU heU kQRZledge WhaW: 

 
1.   NR FedeUal aSSURSUiaWed fXQdV haYe beeQ Said RU Zill be Said, b\ RU RQ behalf Rf Whe XQdeUVigQed, WR aQ\ 

SeUVRQ fRU iQflXeQciQg RU aWWemSWiQg WR iQflXeQce aQ RfficeU RU emSlR\ee Rf aQ ageQc\, a MembeU Rf 
CRQgUeVV, aQ RfficeU RU emSlR\ee Rf CRQgUeVV, RU aQ emSlR\ee Rf a MembeU Rf CRQgUeVV iQ cRQQecWiRQ 
ZiWh Whe aZaUdiQg Rf aQ\ FedeUal cRQWUacW, Whe makiQg Rf aQ\ FedeUal gUaQW, Whe makiQg Rf aQ\ FedeUal 
lRaQ, Whe eQWeUiQg iQWR Rf aQ\ cRRSeUaWiYe agUeemeQW, aQd Whe e[WeQViRQ, cRQWiQXaWiRQ, UeQeZal, 
ameQdmeQW, RU mRdificaWiRQ Rf aQ\ FedeUal cRQWUacW, gUaQW, lRaQ, RU cRRSeUaWiYe agUeemeQW. 

2.   If aQ\ fXQdV RWheU WhaQ FedeUal aSSURSUiaWed fXQdV haYe beeQ Said RU Zill be Said WR aQ\ SeUVRQ fRU 
iQflXeQciQg RU aWWemSWiQg WR iQflXeQce aQ\ RfficeU RU emSlR\ee Rf aQ\ ageQc\, a MembeU Rf CRQgUeVV, aQ 
RfficeU RU emSlR\ee Rf CRQgUeVV, RU aQ emSlR\ee Rf a MembeU Rf CRQgUeVV iQ cRQQecWiRQ ZiWh WhiV 
FedeUal cRQWUacW, gUaQW, lRaQ RU cRRSeUaWiYe agUeemeQW, Whe XQdeUVigQed Vhall cRmSleWe aQd VXbmiW 
SWaQdaUd FRUm ± LLL, ³DiVclRVXUe FRUm WR ReSRUW LRbb\iQg,´ iQ accRUdaQce ZiWh iWV iQVWUXcWiRQV. 

3.   The XQdeUVigQed Vhall UeTXiUe WhaW Whe laQgXage Rf WhiV ceUWificaWiRQ be iQclXded iQ Whe aZaUd dRcXmeQWV 
fRU all VXbaZaUdV aW all WieUV (iQclXdiQg VXbcRQWUacWV, VXbgUaQWV, aQd cRQWUacWV XQdeU gUaQWV, lRaQV, aQd 
cRRSeUaWiYe agUeemeQWV) aQd WhaW all VXbUeciSieQWV Vhall ceUWif\ aQd diVclRVe accRUdiQgl\. 

 
ThiV ceUWificaWiRQ iV a maWeUial UeSUeVeQWaWiRQ Rf facW XSRQ Zhich UeliaQce ZaV Slaced ZheQ WhiV WUaQVacWiRQ ZaV 
made RU eQWeUed iQWR. SXbmiVViRQ Rf WhiV ceUWificaWiRQ iV a SUeUeTXiViWe fRU makiQg RU eQWeUiQg iQWR WhiV WUaQVacWiRQ 
imSRVed b\ 31 U.S.C. Sec. 1352 (aV ameQded b\ Whe LRbb\iQg DiVclRVXUe AcW Rf 119). AQ\ SeUVRQ ZhR failV WR 
file Whe UeTXiUed ceUWificaWiRQ Vhall be VXbjecW WR a ciYil SeQalW\ Rf QRW leVV WhaQ $10,000 aQd QRW mRUe WhaQ 
$100,000 fRU each VXch failXUe. 

 
The gUaQWee,                                       , ceUWifieV RU affiUmV Whe WUXWhfXlQeVV aQd accXUac\ Rf each VWaWemeQW Rf iWV 
ceUWificaWiRQ aQd diVclRVXUe, if aQ\. IQ addiWiRQ, gUaQWee XQdeUVWaQdV aQd agUeeV WhaW Whe SURYiViRQV Rf 31 U.S.C. 
Sec. 3801 eW VeT. aSSl\ WR hiV ceUWificaWiRQ aQd diVclRVXUe, if aQ\. 

 
 
 

IQLWLDO HHUH:

Russell Herron
Russell Herron

Russell Herron
Russell Herron



 

 

ORDER OF COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AXWhRUi]iQg E[ecXWiRQ Rf aQ IQWeUlRcal GUaQW AgUeemeQW 

 
The CRmmiVViRQeUV CRXUW Rf HaUUiV CRXQW\, Te[aV, meW iQ UegXlaU VeVViRQ aW iWV UegXlaU 

WeUm  aW  Whe  HaUUiV  CRXQW\  AdmiQiVWUaWiRQ  BXildiQg  iQ  Whe  CiW\  Rf  HRXVWRQ,  Te[aV,  RQ 
                                                  ,           ZiWh           all           membeUV           SUeVeQW           e[ceSW 
                                                              . 

 
A TXRUXm ZaV SUeVeQW.  AmRQg RWheU bXViQeVV, Whe fRllRZiQg ZaV WUaQVacWed: 

 
 
 

ORDER AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN INTERLOCAL GRANT AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN HARRIS COUNTY AND HILSHIRE VILLAGE TO REIMBURSE THE 
CITY FOR ELEGIBLE EXPENSES FROM THE CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND 

 
 
 

CRmmiVViRQeU                                                          iQWURdXced aQ RUdeU aQd made a mRWiRQ 
WhaW Whe Vame be adRSWed.  CRmmiVViRQeU                                                VecRQded Whe mRWiRQ fRU 
adRSWiRQ Rf Whe RUdeU.  The mRWiRQ, caUU\iQg ZiWh iW Whe adRSWiRQ Rf Whe RUdeU, SUeYailed b\ Whe 
fRllRZiQg YRWe: 

 
 

JXdge LiQa HidalgR 
CRmm. RRdQe\ ElliV 
CRmm. AdUiaQ GaUcia 
CRmm. SWeYe Radack 
CRmm. R. Jack Cagle 

YeV     NR       AbVWaiQ

 
 
 

The CRXQW\ JXdge WheUeXSRQ aQQRXQced WhaW Whe mRWiRQ had dXl\ aQd laZfXll\ caUUied aQd 
WhaW Whe RUdeU had beeQ dXl\ aQd laZfXll\ adRSWed.  The RUdeU WhXV adRSWed fRllRZV: 

 
 
 
IT IS ORDERED WhaW Whe HaUUiV CRXQW\ JXdge iV aXWhRUi]ed WR e[ecXWe, fRU aQd RQ behalf Rf 
HaUUiV CRXQW\, Whe IQWeUlRcal GUaQW AgUeemeQW beWZeeQ Whe HaUUiV CRXQW\ aQd HilVhiUe Village, 
SXUVXaQW WR Te[. GRY¶W CRde AQQ. �� 791.001 ± 791.030, fRU Whe CRXQW\ WR UeimbXUVe Whe CiW\ fRU 
eligible e[SeQVeV ZiWh a gUaQW fURm Whe CRURQaYiUXV Relief FXQd aV aXWhRUi]ed aQd eVWabliVhed 
ZiWhiQ VecWiRQ 601 Rf Whe SRcial SecXUiW\ AcW, aV added b\ VecWiRQ 5001 Rf Whe CRURQaYiUXV Aid, 
Relief, aQd EcRQRmic SecXUiW\ AcW.  The IQWeUlRcal GUaQW AgUeemeQW iV iQcRUSRUaWed b\ UefeUeQce 
fRU all SXUSRVeV aV WhRXgh fXll\ VeW RXW iQ WhiV OUdeU ZRUd fRU ZRUd. 

 
All HaUUiV CRXQW\ RfficialV aQd emSlR\eeV aUe aXWhRUi]ed WR dR aQ\ aQd all WhiQgV QeceVVaU\ RU 
cRQYeQieQW WR accRmSliVh Whe SXUSRVe Rf WhiV OUdeU. 



APPLICATIONS RECEIVED 

 

ALTERNATE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEMBER 

 

Craig Becker 

Justin Crawford 

Cali Schwarz 

Alan Torregrossa 

Brian Wilks 

 



From: craig becker  
Sent: Tuesday, September 01, 2020 6:01 PM 
To: Susan Blevins <susan.blevins@hilshirevillagetexas.com> 
Subject: Council Member Position 3 or Board of Adjustment 
 
 
 
Hello Susan, 
 
Attached is my resume for the Position 3 interim spot and the Board of Adjustment. 
 
I’m almost a home town boy…grew up in Spring Valley attending Spring Branch Jr. High and Spring 
Branch High School. My wife is also from the area growing up in Hunters Creek attending Spring Branch 
Jr. High and Memorial High School and we have parents that still live in the area! I know these streets 
and the creek very well from my childhood and teen years. 
 
As you and I have discussed, I was on the board of directors for my former community, Lakes of 
Parkway. Its a guarded and gated private community with over 1,000 homes, seven lakes and wells, and 
inter-city MUD all privately maintained by the HOA. While serving as a director, I was also a director for 
a City of Houston Tax Reinvestment Committee. 
 
I currently head up Worley’s supply chain function for Americas, and as such I deal with subcontractors, 
vendors, logistics and expediting for all manner of engineering and construction projects. 
 
At one point in my career, I ran the central region for a company call TRC, that had seven locations, all 
municipal engineering firms (competitors to HDR), so I’m very familiar with the municipal engineering 
and construction business. 
 
I have a masters of law and MBA, so I think both with a logical business and legal frame of reference. I’d 
be proud to take up this role, should the city request my services, however before I officially put my hat 
in the ring, can you elaborate on the time commitment and meeting formats? 
 
Best, 
 
Craig Becker 
8009 Anadell 
 
 



Craig A. Becker 
8009 Anadell Street, Hillshire Village, Texas  
Cell (281) 467-6370 
c.dbecker@sbcglobal.net 
 
SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 

Twenty-five+ years in the Energy and E&C industry in increasingly responsible positions from a start in 

cost/finance, through Project Management, Business Management, Manager of Projects, VP Division 

Operations, to most recent posts as VP Contracts and Regional Director for international E&C companies 

handling projects in the $500 million to over $2 billion. Responsible for developing strategies, goals and 

practices for a multi-office company operating worldwide, leading an international group with over 200 

professionals operating in offices globally. Master of Law, MBA, and BBA. 

 

WORLEY (JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP) 2017 – PRESENT 

 

Regional Director Supply Chain Management – Americas, Central Region 

 

Leads a team of over 200 Supply Chain professionals who specialize in contracts, procurement, logistics, 

expediting and inspection services for Worley’s total spectrum of projects supporting all of Worley’s 

businesses. 

 

Contracts Director - Contracts Management - Energy, Resources and Chemicals 

 

Lead and focus on strategies to win and execute key projects with predictability, lower risks, and improved 

margins. The role manages multiple key client and strategic projects and contracting teams focusing on 

projects with the most complex contracting strategies, including lump sum EPC, joint ventures, and 

strategic alliances. The position utilizes a cradle to grave approach to contracting, by participating in the 

early identification of strategic contractors, contract negotiations and review, working with estimating 

during the bid phase, formulating strategies and key alliances during FEED, and implementation in the 

construction phases of the work. The TIC values of projects reporting through this position range from 

$600M to over $2B. 

 

As part of the acquisition of Jacobs ECR assets, worked as part of the Transition Management Organization 

(TMO) brokering the largest and most complex international contracts that impact the new global 

operation of Worley. Anticipated synergies through these activities exceed $10M and offer sustainable 

improvements in operations, functionality, and cost with reduced environmental impact.  

 

WOOD (WOOD GROUP MUSTANG INC.) 2006 – 2017 

 

Vice President, Global Contracting 

 

Responsible for contracts and commercial services groups globally. The position reported directly to the 

CEO of Wood Group Mustang and a member of the Executive Leadership Team responsible for global 

corporate governance. In this capacity, has been instrumental in formulation and application of global 

strategies and policies. Accountable for the enforcement and governance of the contractual approval 

mailto:c.dbecker@sbcglobal.net


Craig A. Becker 
8009 Anadell Street, Hillshire Village, Texas  
Cell (281) 467-6370 
c.dbecker@sbcglobal.net 
 
process, oversight and management of the corporate risk profile. This position is part of the executive 

team tasked with selection, due diligence, and integration of merger and acquisitions targets.   

 

Key liaison between Wood Group Mustang and its parent’s legal group. Participates group wide, through 

the Wood Group Corporate Contracts Leadership Team. This team sets the goals and practices regarding 

contractual risks and standard contracting practices for the entirety of Wood Group owned companies. 

 

Functionally and operationally, the corporate contracts and subcontracts groups report to this executive 

position. These functional groups are organized by transaction type, prime contracts (sales transactions) 

and subcontracts (second tier operational).  The groups are managed globally and are parsed by 

international regions (North America, Latin America, Europe/Mid East/ Africa/ India, and Asia Pacific) with 

a workforce comprised of legal, contracts, and subcontracts professionals tasked with consummating 

transactional deals. The group is responsible for review, negotiation and closing of all foreign and domestic 

agreements as they relate to Mustang’s services. Provide due diligence and integration support for 

acquisitions. Participate in negotiation and development of joint ventures and teaming agreements. 

 

Accomplishments: 

 

• Negotiated, closed and executed Wood Group Mustang’s two largest contracts in the history 

of the company, representing over four million man-hours of home office engineering 

services. 

• Led the company’s corporate entity consolidation effort. 

• Established a global contracting practice, hiring key management and staff operating in 

multiple international locations and jurisdictions. 

• Organized the contractual risk groups by lines of business to efficiently address unique market 

risks throughout the contracting life cycle. 

• Formed and chaired the International Business Steering Committee. The committee is 

designed to offer guidance and direction regarding the most appropriate avenues to do 

business internationally, ensuring compliance, tax, and legal standards. 

• Developed a best in class contract management training seminar and presented it annually to 

all global locations. 

• Contributing author of the CII publication “Reimbursable Contracting Best Practices” 

 

TRC CORPORATION 2003 – 2006 

 

Regional Controls/Senior Vice President Division Operations 

 

Dual role, both directly in the Infrastructure Division and corporate TRC. Regional responsibility for the 

overall operational, financial, and project performance of TRC’s central region, as well as the 

Infrastructure Division. This region consists of three technical lines of business; Civil / Municipal 

Engineering, Environmental Engineering, and Cultural/Archeological Resources.  

 

mailto:c.dbecker@sbcglobal.net


Craig A. Becker 
8009 Anadell Street, Hillshire Village, Texas  
Cell (281) 467-6370 
c.dbecker@sbcglobal.net 
 
Corporate responsibilities include the overall financial control, planning, and execution for TRC’s central 

region. Heavily involved in decision support analysis, developing financial models to assess business 

opportunities, develop annual plans, monthly forecasts and reconciliations of actual vs. forecast. Lead 

region in identifying potential acquisition targets, evaluation, and integration. Implement controls to meet 

requirements stipulated in the Sarbanes Oxley act. 

 

Responsible for implementation and maintenance of strong project management and control processes. 

Ensure projects are executed according to industry standards. Direct oversight of office and division 

management.  Ensure operating unit’s financial and schedule performance targets are accomplished. 

Regional TRC and Division Project Controls, Contracts, Subcontracts, Purchasing, Accounting and Finance 

personnel directly report to this position   Serves as corporate liaison, working directly for TRC CEO, and 

dotted line to the COO and Division President. 

 

Responsible for operations in Chicago, Kansas City, St. Louis, Dallas, Frisco, Fort Worth, Austin, Houston, 

El Paso, Albuquerque, Laramie and Alexandria as well as key financial oversight to TRC’s Home Land 

Security project for the Port of Houston.  

 

Accomplishments: 

 

• Sarbanes Oxley implementation received 100% SOX pass rating without need for remediation  

• Successfully integrated three struggling acquisitions into a single operation  

• Identified, acquired, and integrated five new acquisitions  

• Identified multimillion-dollar project over-runs and reversed trend 

• Implemented a division wide re-organization 

• Centralized accounting and human resource activity to two centers of excellence 

• Conducted industry best practices seminars.  

• Provided vision and business plan for the Infrastructure Division 

• Developed and implemented project execution and project control procedures 

• Implemented a process for technical, commercial and contract reviews 

 

TYCO FLOW CONTROL (RAYCHEM) 1997 – 2003 

Manager Marketing Services, Manager of Projects (North America), Global Business Manager 

 

Had three distinct roles over the time of employment with unique and increasing responsibilities. As the 

Manager of Marketing Services duties included management of daily work activities for a combined staff 

of technical and business development professionals while participating in the strategic development of 

the most complex inquiries specializing in “Alliance/Joint Venture” bidding. 

 

Established a proposal process that begins with the initial inquiry and culminating into a formal proposal 

document. As part of the process the company’s existing estimating function was merged with the new 

proposal development activities to form a “turnkey” approach to proposal development all under a single 

management structure. 

mailto:c.dbecker@sbcglobal.net


Craig A. Becker 
8009 Anadell Street, Hillshire Village, Texas  
Cell (281) 467-6370 
c.dbecker@sbcglobal.net 
 
 

As proof the new system worked, the contract hit-rate of awarded projects averages above sixty percent 

(60%). Through training of the national wholesale representative network, inquiry submittals increased 

six hundred percent (600%). 

 

As Manager of Projects, responsibilities included the management of projects executed in North America, 

development of business supporting Raychem products and services, developing alliances and 

partnerships with clients and contractors.  Responsibilities also include establishing cost and schedule 

parameters, as well as coordinating design, construction and subcontracting. Supervise North American 

Service center’s project management, construction management, safety management and project control 

teams. Bid and executed over thirteen EPC turnkey projects in twenty-four months, all on schedule and 

within budget. Key accounts include Dupont, Dow, and Hovensa.  Pioneered the execution of Raychem’s 

first complete maintenance program and developed model for future opportunities. 

Other responsibilities include the management of Raychem Services’ new business opportunities through 

proposal development and pre-project sales. 

 

As Global Business Manager, responsibilities were to develop and direct the overall business activities of 

Raychem’s service organization. Responsibilities included the development and implementation of 

turnkey procedures on a global basis. Developed project control and proposal procedures, bid/no bid 

decision process as well as participated in the creation of overall project execution procedures. 

Established a global project control group and defined reporting requirements and project management 

tools that mirrored EPC industry standards. 

 

Original member of the startup team for the Raychem Services EPC division, was instrumental in 

establishing this new division’s overall strategic marketing plan, organization, and budgets for the services 

business unit. Worked with Raychem Corporate to integrate a “turnkey” business approach within 

Raychem’s established systems. Additionally, was responsible for overall coordination of legal, risk and 

tax issues as they relate to project service. 

 

FLUOR CORPORATION 1988 – 1997 

 

Senior Marketing Coordinator, Business Services Manager, Senior Project Controls Engineer, Senior 

Project Cost Analyst, Information Systems Analyst, Financial Analyst 

 

Had multiple roles with progressive responsibility beginning as a Financial Analyst, followed by 

developmental rotations in the Information Technology department and various project roles that ranged 

from Project Cost Analyst, Project Controls Engineer and finally Business Services Manager. The capstone 

was a rotational assignment through Fluor’s renowned Marketing Coordination program which only a 

handful of candidates are selected every twenty-four months. 

 

In the role of Senior Marketing Coordinator, provided overall new business opportunity management 

from prequalification, proposals, presentations, and final submittals for the Chemicals, Plastics, and Fibers 

mailto:c.dbecker@sbcglobal.net


Craig A. Becker 
8009 Anadell Street, Hillshire Village, Texas  
Cell (281) 467-6370 
c.dbecker@sbcglobal.net 
 
Operating Company. Worked with proposal managers to produce sales documents that were responsive 

to the client’s requirements and needs. 

Supported the bid decision process to ensure thorough analysis of the RFPs and their relationship to the 

operating company’s strategic plan. Analyzed strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats of new 

business opportunities. Prepared competitor analysis and develop compliance checklists establishing 

responsibilities and milestones. Ensured quality production standards. Lead storyboard reviews process 

and provided prewriting feedback regarding responsiveness and technical integrity. Provided guidance 

and direction to junior Marketing personnel and handled the most complex projects requiring in-depth 

knowledge of the company, as well as client’s, operating procedures and philosophy.  

 

As the Business Services Manager for the DuPont Gulf Coast Alliance, was responsible for all business 

aspects of the venture including internal controls, overall alliance cost control, invoicing, budgeting, and 

forecasting. Assisted DuPont’s development of annual capital and non-capital budget forecasts and 

allocations. Prepared project review documents along with monthly profit and loss data. Negotiated 

contractual amendments and provided supporting analysis.  

 

The Senior Project Controls and Cost Analyst roles were primarily responsible for the monitoring and 

control of project progress and execution as compared to initial estimates and forecasts. Responsible for 

ensuring projects were executed per schedule and formulate mitigation plans to act before milestones 

were impacted. Prepared monthly budget reports analyze labor and expense to ensure contract 

compliance. Calculated progress, efficiency, margin and reserve control. Compiled data to support future 

estimates and participate in internal and client project review presentations. 

 

EDUCATION 

 

Baylor University        1988 

Bachelor of Business Administration - Finance 

 

Houston Baptist University       1995 

Master of Business Administration – Business 

 

Arizona State University – Sandra Day O’Connor College of Law   2017 

Master of Legal Studies – Law 

 

PUBLICATIONS 

 

“Reimbursable Contracting Best Practices” – CII contributing author 

 

mailto:c.dbecker@sbcglobal.net


From: Justin  
Sent: Friday, September 11, 2020 7:01 AM 
To: Susan Blevins <susan.blevins@hilshirevillagetexas.com> 
Subject: Fwd: City Council and Board Members Needed - Reminder 
 
Susan,  
 
I wanted to express my interest in the HVCEFFC position and/or the alternate board of adjustment 
position. I do not have a current resume, but could generate one if necessary. I am a managing director 
at JPMorgan and have 17 years experience in corporate finance and investment banking. I also maintain 
four FINRA securities licenses, including the supervisory principal designation.  
 
I would be happy to speak with you, the mayor or anyone on counsel to better understand the needs of 
the Village and where my experience would be best utilized for the betterment of our community.  
 
Thank you, 
 
Justin Crawford 
713-569-4656 
 

 



 
From: Cali Schwarz  
Sent: Thursday, September 10, 2020 11:01 AM 
To: Susan Blevins <susan.blevins@hilshirevillagetexas.com> 
Subject: My Resume 
 
Hi Susan!  Here is my resume for consideration as an alternate on the Board of Adjustments. 
 
 
Cali V. Schwarz, JD 
Attorney and Counselor at Law 
Tindall & England PC 
515 Post Oak Blvd., Suite 500 
Houston, TX 77027-9403 
Cell:  (713) 412-3889 
CaliSchwarz@gmail.com 
 

mailto:CaliSchwarz@gmail.com


 
 

CALI V. SCHWARZ, J.D. 
Tindall England, PC 

515 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 500 

Houston, Texas 77027 

Telephone: (713) 2622-873375-4444 / Fax: (713) 622-8744 

cschwarz@tindallengland.com 

 

EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND  

Board Certified in Family Law, Texas Board of Legal Specialization, 2014 

Certified in Mediation and Dispute Resolution, South Texas College of Law, 2008 

South Texas College of Law, J.D., 2008 

Baylor University, B.A. (Communications Specialist & Business Administration), 2005 

 

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS AND AWARDS 

Member of the Texas Academy of Family Law Specialists (Served as Editor to TAFLS 

Quarterly Newsletter 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020) 

Member of Gulf Coast Family Law Specialists 

Member of Houston Bar Association - Family Law Section (Served on the Board of Directors 2012-2015) 

Member of the Texas Family Law Foundation  

Member of Burta Rhoads Raborn American Inn of Court (Recipient of 2014 President’s Award) (Board of 

Directors 2011-2014)  

Member of the State Bar of Texas - Family Law Section  

Member of the College of the State Bar of Texas, 2010-2020 

Designated in Texas Monthly as  Super Lawyer, Rising Star (2018, 2019) 

 

EMPLOYMENT BACKGROUND 

Tindall England, PC 2016- Present 

Law Office of Warren Cole  –  2008 - 2016 

Tekell Book Matthews and Limmer, L.L.P. –2007 

Burgower and Rainwater, L.L.P. –2007 

Looper Reed and McGraw Attorneys – 2006 to 2007 

PUBLICATIONS AND ARTICLES 

Presented “STOP SPENDING OUR MONEY! – Waste, Reconstitution, Fraud Claims, Disproportionate Shares  

& Spousal Support” – Houston Bar Association Family Law Section Spring CLE (March, 2020) 

 

Presented 2020 TAFLS Trial Institute, (February, 2020) 

 

Co-Authored “4th Edition of Texas Family Law Ultimate Checklists for Lawyers”, Published by the State Bar of  

Texas Family Law Section (2018) 

 

Presented "Suit Affecting the Parent Child Relationship, 101"-State Bar of TX-Handling your Next Divorce  

(January, 2017) 

 

Presented “The Intersection of Immigration and Family Law” – Texas Center for the Judiciary – Spring Regional  

Conference, Houston, TX (April, 2016 and May, 2016) 

 

Co- Authored “Avoiding Mediation Mis-Steps” – State Bar of Texas – 38th Annual Marriage Dissolution  

Institute, Galveston, TX (April, 2016) 



 

Presented “Evidentiary Demonstrations – Effective Impeachment of Adverse Witnesses” – Houston Bar  

Association, Houston, TX (October, 2014) 

 

Presented “Unaccompanied Minors” – Texas Center for the Judiciary – 2014 Texas College for Judicial Studies,  

Austin, TX (May, 2014) 

 

Presented “Ethics Hodgepodge” – South Texas College of Law 28th Annual Family Law Conference, Houston,  

TX (March, 2014) 

 

Presented “Temporary Orders – A Mock Trial Presentation” – Houston Bar Association, Houston, TX (October,  

2013) 

 

Co- Authored “Reimbursement” – State Bar of Texas – 35th Annual Marriage Dissolution Institute,  Dallas, TX  

(April. 2013) 

 

Co- Authored “Objections” – South Texas College of Law -  Family Law 27th Annual Family Law Conference,   

Houston, TX (March. 2013) 

 

Presented “Possession and Access Options for Children Under Three” – State Bar of Texas and Lone Star Legal  

Aid – Family Law Essentials, Nacogdoches, TX (June, 2012) 

 

Co- Authored “Discovery” – State Bar of Texas – 34th Annual Marriage Dissolution Institute,  Dallas, TX  

(April. 2012) 

 

Co- Authored “Trying Your Property Case” – South Texas College of Law-25th Family Law Conference,   

Houston, TX (March 2012) 

 

Co- Authored “Trial of a Property Case” - State Bar of Texas – State Bar College-Summer School Course, 

 Galveston, TX (July 2011)  

 

Presented “Trying Your Property Case on a Shoestring” – State Bar of Texas and Lone Star Legal Aid – Family 

Law Essentials, Huntsville, TX (June, 2011) 

 

Co-Authored “Dividing Property in a Depressed Economy” - State Bar of Texas – 36th Advanced Family Law  

Course, San Antonio, TX (August 2010)  

 

Co- Authored  “Ethics and Malpractice” - State Bar of Texas - 33rd Annual Marriage Dissolution Course,  

San Antonio, TX (April 2010), Published by the State Bar of Texas 

 

Co- Authored  “Predicates and Objections: Getting It In and Keeping It Out” - State Bar of Texas –  

Ultimate Trial Notebook: Family Law, San Antonio, TX (December 2009) 

 

Co- Authored “Family Law Case Update: SAPCR” - State Bar of Texas – 35th Advanced Family Law  

Course, Dallas, TX (August 2009)  

 



From: Allan Torregrossa  
Sent: Friday, September 11, 2020 9:11 AM 
To: Susan Blevins <susan.blevins@hilshirevillagetexas.com> 
Subject: Board of Adjustment 
 
Susan,  I would be interested in helping out with this one.  Thanks Allan 
 



Allan C. Torregrossa 
21 Hickory Shadows Drive 

Houston, Texas 77055 
713-467-6418 Direct 
281-596-4540 Fax 

allan@securityamericamortgage.com 
 

RESUME 
 

August 27, 2020 
 

 
Summary of Qualifications 
 
Thirty years’ experience as a senior loan officer and mortgage business owner with extensive 
knowledge and execution in mortgage banking and secondary marketing also instrumental in 
hiring, managing and training teams of entry level loan officers.  
Self-motivated demonstrating ability to organize, meet deadlines, motivate others to perform at 
their highest levels with excellent interpersonal skills and unwavering work ethic. 
 
Professional Experience 
 
Security America Mortgage, Inc.  March 2006 to present:  Co-founder and former partner as 
Senior Vice-president instrumental in loan origination, business expansion and development 
acquiring FHA certification and licensing in over 20 states.  
 
Residential Mortgage of Texas:  January 2000 to present:  Founder and owner as a full 
service mortgage entity specializing in non-traditional portfolio lending. 
 
Asset Management of America:  June 2008 to present:  Founder and owner as real estate 
investments. 
 
AIM American Mortgage, Inc.  April 2003 to March 2006:  Senior Vice-president, Co-
founder, partner and loan originator with concentration in residential mortgages and commercial 
lending.   
 
AMCAP:  January 2000 to April 2003:  Senior Vice-president of secondary marketing and 
mortgage loan originator. 
 
American Capital Funding, LTD:  July 1995 to January 2000:  Senior loan originator and 
managing director of recruiting, business development and secondary marketing. 
 
Professional Licenses 
 
NMLS Individually #263766 
NMLS Company #867146 



Texas Department of Savings and Mortgage Lending 
 
Education 
 
University of Houston:  Bachelors of Business Degree majoring in Finance 
                                        Minor in Psychology 1974 
 
Other Interest and Additional Information 
President Hickory Shadows Property Owners Association 2017-present 
President Shady Villa Home Owners Association 2017-present 
36 year resident City of Hilshire Village 
 
 
  
 
 
 
      

 
 



BRIAN D. WILKS 
2 Hilshire Grove Lane                            bdwilks@gmail.com 
Houston, Texas 77055                          210-445-1167 
 
 
 
September 10, 2020 
 
Mayor Herron and Council Members 
City of Hilshire Village  
8301 Westview 
Houston, Texas  77055 
 
Mr. Mayor and Council: 
 
I am interested in serving you and our city as a Member on the Alternate Board of Adjustment. 
 
I hope you will find my qualifications and experience, outlined in the attached resume, as fitting 
competence for the position.  My commitment to this position is to operate with the highest level of 
integrity and review items with an unbiased attention to detail seeking equitable resolution with the 
best interest of the City and involved parties in-mind. 
 
Thank You, 
Brian Wilks     
  



BRIAN D. WILKS 
2 Hilshire Grove Lane                            bdwilks@gmail.com 
Houston, Texas 77055                          210-445-1167 
 
OBJECTIVE 
 
Mechanical Engineer with legal focus founded on degrees in Government and Political Science; seeking 
position on the Hilshire Village Alternate Board of Adjustment.  Detail-oriented, practical, cost-conscious 
approach to problem-solving.  I have deep experience in technical, financial, and strategic problem 
solving founded on analytical modelling.      
 
EXPERIENCE 
 
SHELL EXPLORATION & PRODUCTION COMPANY                                                                       2008 – Present 
 
Corporate Strategy Advisor, Royal Dutch Shell Group – Houston, TX                                          2018 – Present 

The Royal Dutch Shell Group is the corporate holding company for all of Shell’s global business, 
employing 86,000 employees in more than 70 countries across the entire energy and petrochemical 
value chain.  The corporate strategy division advises Shell’s most-senior executives on strategic 
decisions that carry the largest, long-term impacts; including corporate design, technology, M&A, 
new business development, existing business improvement, competitive intelligence, people 
development, branding, and finance.    
 Leads multi-disciplinary project teams to perform short-turnaround, high-impact analyses to 

provide insight on complex decisions under consideration by the CEO and his direct reports. 
 Team members include finance, legal, technical, and operational members tasked with exploring 

all facets of a specific problem in-depth using external and internal research culminating in a 
written report and formal presentation. 

 Analytical techniques incorporate most common strategic problem-solving methods, inclusive of  
future scenarios building combined with analytical and financial modelling. 

 Specific problems assessed include most-confidential projects for global portfolio decisions in the 
traditional Upstream business, Refining, Petrochemicals, Trading, and Retail/Marketing divisions.        
 

Campus Recruitment Manager                                                                                                          2016 – Present 
 Manages a team of 28 current Shell employees responsible for recruiting and hiring new talent 

from Texas A&M University, including building campus relationships, overseeing annual donation 
budgeting, interviewing candidates, and delivering on hiring targets  

 
Well, Reservoir, & Facilities Management Lead, Stones – Houston, TX                                     2014 – 2018 

Stones is Shell’s newest flagship project commissioned under the Global Deepwater business unit in 
the Gulf of Mexico; the field is a $7B oil development producing back to a contract-operated FPSO at 
rates of 60,000 bo/d. 
 Led a team of 8 Reservoir, Production, Chemical, and Facilities Engineers responsible for 

maximizing recovery though the field’s 30-year life via surveillance and optimization of the field 
post first-production; team’s work includes annual business plan development, maintenance 
planning, OPEX budgeting, production forecasting, and legal compliance/reporting/permitting.  



 Developed, implemented, and managed execution of the production-related portions of 
construction and operation contacts with FPSO supplier, SBM Offshore, including dispute 
resolution with monetary value of $30MM annually. 

 Managed well design and execution, ensuring design specifications of each well are maintained 
within cost constraints, including reservoir location optimization, stimulation design, drilling, 
completions, commissioning, start-up, and production       

 Accountable for well integrity management, well start-up and commissioning procedures, unload 
planning, operating procedures, and production surveillance 

 Provided production forecasting, OPEX cost modelling support, and production risk analyses for 
the $1B acquisition of the Turritella FPSO 
     

Contract Holder, Gulf of Mexico Well Tracing Technologies                                                         2015 – 2018   
 Responsible for safe and effective implementation of all contracts pertaining to well tracing 

services in the Gulf of Mexico, including dispute resolution and negotiating T&C and pricing for 
$40MM of contracted tracing services annually 

 
Operations Supervisor, Auger TLP – Offshore, Gulf of Mexico                                                          2012 – 2014 

Auger TLP is Shell’s first floating production facility in the Gulf of Mexico, commissioned in 1994; it 
resides in Shell’s Global Deepwater division serving as a cash-engine; the asset produces           
60,000 bo/d and 90MMscf/d from 31 dry and subsea wells.    
 Led 220 personnel living and working offshore providing Process Operations, Construction, and 

Maintenance support for wells, processing equipment, utilities systems, and living structures          
 Led the operations-integration efforts required to deliver a 24,000 bo/d, $2.4B brownfield 

redevelopment project 4 months ahead of schedule     
 Responsible for ensuring environmental and regulatory compliance, work permitting, personal 

safety management, and process safety management   
 Served as the Fire Chief for the Incident Command Team 

 
Production Engineer, Gulf of Mexico East – New Orleans, LA                                                           2008 – 2012  

Member of a team comprised of 25 Production Engineers providing well production surveillance and 
intervention planning for Shell’s Eastern Gulf of Mexico assets: Mars, Ursa, Ram Powell, and Cognac.   
 Managed well integrity and tree maintenance for 68 surface wells on Cognac Fixed Leg Platform 
 Planned, permitted, and initiated a 28-well, 5-year, $100MM abandonment campaign  

 
EDUCATION 
 
TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY, College Station, TX                                                                                     2004 – 2008 

Mechanical Engineering, B.S., Honors – 3.7GPA 
Political Science, B.S., Honors – 4.0GPA 

 
COMPETENCIES 

 
 Risk Management 
 Economics & Finance 
 Project Management 

 
 Technical and Financial Modeling 
 Contract Development and Management 
 Strategy Development 

 



APPLICATIONS RECEIVED 

HILSHIRE VILLAGE CULTURAL EDUCATION FINANCE FACILITIES 

MEMBER 

JUSTIN CRAWFORD 

MARCUS DOTSON 

RANDY KEYS 

SARA SOMMERS WILKS



From: Justin  
Sent: Friday, September 11, 2020 7:01 AM 
To: Susan Blevins <susan.blevins@hilshirevillagetexas.com> 
Subject: Fwd: City Council and Board Members Needed - Reminder 
 
Susan,  
 
I wanted to express my interest in the HVCEFFC position and/or the alternate board of adjustment 
position. I do not have a current resume, but could generate one if necessary. I am a managing director 
at JPMorgan and have 17 years experience in corporate finance and investment banking. I also maintain 
four FINRA securities licenses, including the supervisory principal designation.  
 
I would be happy to speak with you, the mayor or anyone on counsel to better understand the needs of 
the Village and where my experience would be best utilized for the betterment of our community.  
 
Thank you, 
 
Justin Crawford 
713-569-4656 
 

 



From:  
Sent: Thursday, September 10, 2020 1:40 PM 
To: susan.blevins@hilshirevillagetexas.com 
Subject: Re: City Council and Board Members Needed - Reminder 
 
Hello Susan,  
 
Please find my CV attached for the City's review.  I have interest in offering my time and experience in 
public/private funding and finance for the following position. 
Board Member for the Hilshire Village Cultural Educational Finance Facility Corporation. (HVCEFFC) 
which is a conduit fund whereby private entities that would not normally be able to take advantage of 
public funding use the City's borrowing capacity to borrow public funds.  The City is allocated a certain 
amount per year that it can access.  There is no risk and the City receives a fee for the service.   The 
committee only meets when needed.  This position needs someone with a finance background. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Marcus 
 
713-201-7577 

 



1 | D o t s o n  

 

MARCUS L. DOTSON 
 

Mobile: 713-201-7577 | Email: mldot@aol.com 

                                                                                                                                                                

Senior Executive with 25 years of commercial experience in energy finance, product development, business 

development, mergers and acquisition and management. 

 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

Calpine Energy Solutions 

Vice President       January 2019 to Present 

▪ Federal, State and Local Government sectors 

▪ Manage electricity business associated with Texas General Land Office 

▪ M&A, Strategic Origination 

▪ Structured finance 

Managing Director      December 2016 to December 2018 

▪ Capital Markets, Mergers and Acquisitions, Strategic Origination 

Sempra Energy Solutions 

Managing Director      July 2011 to December 2016 

▪ Head of Structured Supply business and member of management team. 

▪ Launched new business aimed at establishing market share in a growing market segment through strategic partnerships 

versus high cost direct investment. 

▪ Provided clients tailored commodity supply, working capital, credit support and risk management services. 

▪ Built portfolio of partnerships spanning a diverse geographic footprint: NY, NJ, CT, MA, ME, NH, PA, MD, DC, OH. 

▪ Led turnaround of struggling energy companies, sourced equity and mezzanine capital and spearheaded sale and 

recapitalization. 

Director, Commodity Sales     July 2004 to July 2011 

▪ Early-phase member of the commodity initiative, which built the business from $30M to $250M in annual margin. 

▪ Developed relationships and originated transactions with fortune 500 companies across multiple industries. 

▪ Consistently exceeded margin targets, in excess of 200% on average. Multi-year President’s Club Award recipient. 

Director, Product and Market Management   March 2003 to June 2004 

▪ Created new products and client value propositions by understanding the markets and customer needs. 

▪ Developed and standardized core products and processes to enable scalability and streamline deal origination. 

▪ Expanded regional focus to national accounts by structuring multiregional cross-settlement products. 

CMS Energy Marketing, Services and Trading 

Manager, Market Development & Product Management  June 2002 to February 2003 

▪ Developed physical and financial products and manage P/L associated with direct and channel sales. 

▪ Managed sales personnel, operations and customer service for retail electric program. 

Enron Energy Services 

Manager (Market Lead) - Regional Products    July 2001 to December 2001 

▪ Regional Product Manager for the Western US, Ohio and Illinois. 

▪ Developed and standardized product structures for retail electricity, natural gas and demand/supply-side management to 

increase deal flow and create scalability while managing risk. 

▪ Exceeded P/L annual targets of $50M for Illinois and $100M for the Western United States. 

Commodity Structuring Senior Specialist    January 2001 to June 2001 

▪ Regional Lead commodity structurer and market developer for the Western U.S.  

▪ Structured standard and exotic options, swaps and derivatives to meet customer needs while managing value at risk (VAR) 

▪ Leveraged scalable energy products to achieve annual margin target of $50M 



2 | D o t s o n  

 

▪ Selected by Vice Chairman for special project restructuring CA portfolios yielding positive swing of $150M. 

Commodity Structuring Specialist     August 2000 to December 2000 

▪ Optimized the CA business model, which became the standard for other Enron Energy Service commodity business models 

▪ Trained originators on financial product structures, sales strategies and communication of derived customer value 

DeWitt & Company Incorporated 

Quantitative Market Analyst      August 1999 to August 2000 

▪ Launched and managed a petrochemical derivatives product line, generating new revenue/earnings for the company. 

▪ Authored a weekly analytical newsletter providing my clients (producers, buyers and traders) with market insight and analysis on 

foreign exchange, crude oil, natural gas and refined products. 

▪ Developed quantitative models for trading, risk control and management, market analysis and forecasting. 

▪ Provided technical analysis for online trading platform (CheMatch), including daily analytics and market commentary. 

Chevron Chemical Company 

Research Analyst      March 1997 to August 1999 

▪ New product synthesis of petrochemical derivatives as well as design optimization of existing chemical processes. 

▪ Provided statistical analysis and generated detailed reports analyzing experimental data. 

▪ Authored technical reports and whitepapers released by synthetic polymers research group. 

▪ Developed Quality Control criteria, measurement protocols and standard operating procedures. 

Espey, Huston & Associates, Engineering Consultants 

Analyst       September 1994 to February 1997 

▪ Researched toxicological exposures in a controlled laboratory environment. 

▪ Studied and documented results of chronic and acute experiments for lethal and sub-lethal effects. 

 

EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND 

University of Houston - Houston, Texas          

Bachelor of Science - Applied Mathematics, December 1999 

Bachelor of Science - Biology, Minors - Chemistry and Mathematics, December 1995  

 

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

Business start-up and turnaround specialist, M&A, debt and equity capital financing, complex contract negotiation. Management 
of quantitative, marketing and sales personnel. Strong presentation skills, technical writing, contract negotiations, commodity 
structuring, product development, risk management, quantitative/fundamental/technical analysis. Computer knowledge includes 
MS Office (advanced Excel) and mathematical modeling software. 



 
 
Sent: Wednesday, September 09, 2020 12:01 PM 
To: susan.blevins@hilshirevillagetexas.com 
Subject: Educational Finance Corp 
 
Susan, I am willing to serve in the role you described. 
 
Randy Keys 
(281) 620-4468 
 



Randall D. Keys 
3 Hickory Shadows 

Houston, Texas 77055 
(281) 620-4468 / randy@rkeys.net 

 

 

Experience Summary and Skills: 
 

1) Broad financial management background, beginning with public accounting and 
progressing in corporate management as Controller, Director of Internal Audit, Financial 
Reporting Manager, Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer 

2) CEO or CFO of six public companies: two NYSE, one NASDAQ, and three OTCBB 

3) Unique skills to effectively communicate business strategies and financial results to 
investors, directors, investment analysts and operating personnel 

4) Experience raising capital in both private and public equity and debt financings  

5) Extensive working knowledge of SEC registration and reporting requirements 

6) Effective in both small and large company environments.  Key strength is ability to provide 
a broad background and knowledge base to smaller companies and help them build a solid 
foundation for growth 

7) Proven leader at executive management and board levels 

8) Significant merger and acquisition and business integration experience 

9) Positive work style with ability to build trust and motivate subordinates and peers 

 
Employment History: 
 

US Energy Corp (NASDAQ) Director, Audit Comm Chair 2019 to 2020 

Evolution Petroleum Corp (NYSE) CFO, promoted to CEO 2014 to 2018 

CFO Consulting CFO and Capital Projects 2006 to 2013 

Far East Energy (OTCBB) Director, Interim CFO 2004 to 2008 

BPZ Energy, Inc. (OTCBB / AMEX) Chief Financial Officer 2004 to 2006 

Transmeridian Exploration (OTCBB) Chief Financial Officer 2002 to 2004 

Coherence Tech / Core Lab (NYSE) Chief Financial Officer 1998 to 2001 

3DX Technologies, Inc. (NASDAQ) V.P. Finance and CFO 1997 to 1998 

Norcen Explorer, Inc. (Sub of TSE) Treasurer and CAO 1994 to 1997 

Santa Fe Energy / Adobe Resources Various Mgmt Positions 1987 to 1994 

Midland Southwest Corp. (NASDAQ) Controller 1984 to 1987 

KPMG Peat Marwick Senior Auditor 1980 to 1984 
 
Education and Other Affiliations: 
 

Former Chairman of Audit Committee of Far East Energy (OTCBB), Coalbed Methane in China 

Former Director of GeoMechanics, Inc., Private Rock Properties Consulting Company 
 
BBA in Accounting with Highest Honors in May 1980 from University of Texas at Austin 

Director, Financial Executives International, National Association of Corporate Directors 

Houston Producers Forum, Texas Alliance of Energy Producers, IPAA 

mailto:randy@rkeys.net


SARA SOMMERS WILKS 
2 Hilshire Grove Lane 

Houston, TX 77055 

Sara_Sommers@alumni.baylor.edu 

918 – 740 – 1650 

 

 

To City Council Members of Hilshire Village, 

 

 

I would like to formally for Council Member Position 3 recently vacated by member Swanson.  I am interested 

in filling this position as I have loved living in the City of Hilshire Village for the past two years and would love 

to give back to the community.  I am passionate about being involved and am able to fulfill the time 

requirements of this role.  I work well with others and look forward to serving the residents of Hilshire Village. 

 

If unable to fill the Council Member position, I would like to be a Board Member for the Hilshire Village 

Cultural Educational Finance Facility Corporation (HVCEFFC).  I have experience in Finance from my 

educational background as well as my work experience.  I currently manage over $125M in EBITDA for my 

company and would look forward to applying all of my private sector experience in this role. 

 

I am available by phone or email to answer any questions or to provide any additional information. 

 

Thank you in advance for your consideration. 

 

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

Sara Sommers Wilks 

 



SARA SOMMERS WILKS 
2 Hilshire Grove Lane 

Houston, TX 77055 

Sara_Sommers@alumni.baylor.edu 

918 – 740 – 1650 

 

EDUCATION 

Master of Business Administration May 2012 
Healthcare Administration Specialization  
        Baylor University  
Bachelor of Arts, Speech Communication May 2010 

Minor in Business Administration  
        Baylor University, magna cum laude  

 

WORK EXPERIENCE 

Director of Operations 

MEDNAX  
Houston, TX 

Mar 2018   -   Present 

 Serve as market executive over 6 physician practices which include over 12 ambulatory clinic locations, 10 

Hospital-based services, and over 100 practitioners.  Specialties include: Maternal Fetal Medicine, Neonatology, 

Pediatric Hospitalist, OB Hospitalist, Pediatric Otolaryngology, and Anesthesiology. 

 Manage the P&L of the assigned practices; responsible for meeting financial performance targets and serving 

as the lead in identifying any potential risks on the horizon as related to financials, projects plans, quality or 

patient experience discrepancies, and any dips in productivity. 

 Develop the strategic vision for the market and execute on the vision in partnership with physician leaders and 

support departments. 

 Drive the recruitment and onboarding process for new providers and practice leaders. Provide direct oversight 

for medical directors and practice managers including evaluating performance and creating development plans 

to address performance or behavioral gaps and coaching the team towards optimal performance. 

 Partner with hospital administrators providing regular reports as requested. 

 Collaborate with business development to source, analyze, and present new business ventures for corporate 

approval. 

 
Practice Administrator, Newborn Center, Renal, Dialysis and Pheresis Services  

Texas Children’s Hospital  

Houston, TX 

Feb 2016   -   Mar 2018 

 Created and managed the budget for multiple areas with a combined total of 150+ faculty for Baylor College 

of Medicine and Texas Children’s Hospital with over $500M in revenue, 600+ FTEs, 187 NICU beds, and 48 

Mother-Baby Unit beds 

 Co-led the Neonatology USNWR team (increased in rankings last year from 14th to 11th) 

 Partnered with a multidisciplinary team to drive the work around NICU Levels of Care Designation 

 Analyzed financials, physician productivity, and revenue cycle reports in order to ensure strong financial 

performance; developed performance improvement plans as needed; presented reports to executive 

administration 

 Developed and drove a multi-disciplinary team to improve discharge planning and care coordination in the 

Newborn Center 

 Provided direct leadership, coaching, and support for a 100+ person team 

 Drove faculty recruitment efforts; collaborated with marketing colleagues to produce faculty recruitment 

collateral 

 Developed business cases and proposals in partnership with executive leadership 



 

Sara Sommers Wilks Resume, Page 2 of 3 

 Created pro formas for new business development opportunities 

 Partnered with Maternal Fetal Medicine and Women’s Services to develop an overarching Perinatal Strategy  

 Drove strategy around leadership structure including the development of physician leadership job descriptions, 

local organizational structure, and short- and long-term goals 

 Sourced and implemented new automated scheduling software for 200+ care providers 

 Led a hospital-wide improvement project on overuse of nitric oxide; led a full day Kaizen/Rapid Improvement 

Event; Saved over $1M in first four months 

 Mentored project manager to develop and drive a project in partnership with the physician revenue cycle team 

to improve physician charge entry and documentation that improved missing charges by 70% in three months 

(capturing over $1M in additional patient revenue annually) 

 Created a predictive staffing model for the Newborn Center physician staffing in order to identify appropriate 

staffing levels and justify new hires  

 Identified inefficiencies and worked to develop better processes in coordination with nursing and physician 

leaders 

  
Sr. Project Manager, Texas Children’s Hospital 

Project Leader, Baylor College of Medicine         

Houston, TX 

Nov 2014    -  Feb 2016 

April 2014    -  Nov 2014 

 
 Led budget planning and development process, conducted financial analysis, and monitored revenue cycle 

metrics for a department with 80+ faculty operating at three facilities 

 Organized the renovation of a surgical floor to improve patient flow (engage stakeholders throughout process, 

meet with architects, choose furniture and equipment, generate budget/pro forma in coordination with finance 

department) 

 Created pro formas and business plans for new business development opportunities 

 Led physician recruitment efforts in order to staff additional locations 

 Developed a pediatric surgical home program in coordination with perioperative services and surgery to 

improve surgical outcomes 

 Worked as project manager for hospital-wide patient experience initiative; led 40+ staff on initiating discharge 

phone calls, improved pre-surgery information, leader rounding, and “Caught You Caring” program 

 Organized and co-led biannual strategic planning retreats for departmental leadership 

 Partnered with marketing department to develop and execute strategy on internal and external communication  

 Created a predictive staffing model for the anesthesiology faculty that is used to identify deficits and justify new 

hires to the hospital 

 Created business plan, including a pro forma and recruitment plan, for new multidisciplinary pain clinic; opened 

new pain clinic in January 2015  

 Created a system for calculating non-clinical productivity by provider and matched it to clinical productivity 

metrics 

 Led a hospital-wide team that focused on sustainable, earth-friendly projects such as appropriate medical 

recycling and managing energy consumption 

 Partnered with physician and executive leadership to develop a new compensation model for anesthesiologists 

including a quality bonus pilot  

 Identified inefficiencies and work to develop better processes in coordination with physician leaders 

 Developed care protocols and quality improvement projects aligned with organizational goals  

  
Consultant, North American Corporation                                                                                        

        Houston, TX 

Dec 2013    -  April 2014 

 
 Assessed financial situations by gathering information on investments, asset allocation, savings, and tax 

planning; evaluated risk tolerance; determined financial viability of potential investment opportunities 

 Developed and presented financial strategies by establishing financial goals 

 Audited and maintained corporate minute books for ten companies 



 

Sara Sommers Wilks Resume, Page 3 of 3 

 Tracked financial markets, general economic conditions, and new financial products 

 Provided financial management information by preparing financial status analyses and reports 

 Monitored financial climate by tracking changes and identifying and evaluating new financial strategies 

 Coordinated, evaluated, and prioritized various projects; scheduled and tracked deadlines; updated and 

maintained schedules; performed project process monitoring duties; communicated roles, expectations, and 

accountabilities to team members; facilitated resolutions to project issues 

  
Contract work, Baptist Health System 

Operations coordinator, Baptist Health System 

Administrative resident, Baptist Health System 

       Birmingham, AL 

July 2013   -   Jan 2014 

Sept 2012   - June 2013 

May 2011   -  Sept 2012 

 Worked with the management team to develop strategic 1-5 year plans 

 Analyzed financials and created monthly reports on all 100 physicians and initiated performance improvement 

as needed based on report results 

 Drove the annual budgeting process for 100 employed physicians         

 Traveled among the 100 physician alliance clinics in Central Alabama to teach physicians and staff how to 

report various quality measures 

 Achieved NCQA designation for five Patient-Centered Medical Homes applications 

 Attested for Meaningful Use for over 25 providers 

 Reviewed physician & vendor contracts for the clinic network 

 Co-chaired the LEAN Council of the 45-clinic network 

 Sourced and implemented a new CRM tool to manage administrator to physician communications  

 Helped administrate the creation of the system-wide physician alliance with more than 400 physician members 

 Served as Administrative Co-Chair of the Primary Care Clinical Programs Quality Committee, a physician 

alliance committee 

 Coordinated the implementation of a new clinical reporting system across two separate entities 

  
Administrator, H Bruce Hamilton MD, PA, Neurosurgery                                                         

        Waco, TX 

June 2013   -  Dec 2013 

 
 Negotiated with insurance companies and vendors for better rates 

 Managed revenue cycle for the practice including denial management 

 Analyzed financial information and prepared monthly reports 

 Investigated business development opportunities such as pain management & ASC projects 

 Orchestrated process improvement to qualify for Meaningful Use Stage 1 

 Worked with IT support to develop a patient portal & clinic website 

 Increased employee morale and, consequently, patient satisfaction 

 Coordinated with physical therapy group to add ancillary services for additional revenue 

 Interviewed and hired employees to create a strong team 

 Conducted weekly training huddles with employees to foster teamwork & boost patient satisfaction 

 

HONORS/AWARDS/AFFILIATIONS 

Black Belt Certification, LEAN Six Sigma  

Advanced Quality Improvement training, Texas Children’s Hospital 

Member, American College of Healthcare Executives 

Best Presenter and Best Q&A Award, Baylor University MBA Ethics Case Competition 

Completed and defended Honors College thesis on childhood obesity 

National Merit Scholar 

 
 
References and additional information available upon request. 





CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE

COMPLAINT FORM

Date 
Notified

Person Taking 
Call

Resident Reporting 
Problem

Complaint/Issue Address of Concern Action Results
Date 
Resolved

3/8/19 Susan Blevins Alan Wolfe

The street sign at the intersection of Pine 
Chase Dr. and Pine Chase Grove on the 
West side of the street has been 
damaged.

Pine Chase Dr & 
Pine Chase Grove 
intersection

We will need to order a new pole.

Contractor will weld extension on to 
existing pole underground. Purchase order 
has been issued.
Sent contractor email asking for work to be 
done ASAP. 
Contractor has started scheduling jobs 
again and we are on their list. 

9/20/19 Susan Blevins Mrs. Gray
Rain water is backed up in the ditch due 
to a walkway that was installed next door.

1331 Friarcreek Ln

Susan contact the homeowner and 
informed of the issue, the walkway was not 
permitted and is blocking normal drainage. 
She set up an appointment between the 
homeowner and the City Engineer to 
discuss remediation. 

Permit was issued for the work, HDR is 
monitoring and performing inspections. 
Corrections are needed. 

11/13/19 Cassie Stephens Allison Griffiths

Flushing the hydrant has cause erosion 
and roots are exposed, they are tripping 
over them and are worried about the 
trees.

1324 Pine Chase 
Grove

Susan drove over to look at the erosion, 
confirmed there is an issue. Contacted 
James with Inframark to start using a hose 
or attachment to direct the water to the 
street from now on. Susan will work with 
Council to determine options for repair of 
the existing damage.

DonMar Grading has been scheduled. 

11/27/19 Cassie Stephens Robert Byrne
Stop signs on Archley are bent, looks like 
a box truck might have hit them.

Archley, both access 
points

City will replace the stop sign

A purchase order has been sent for 
replacement.
Contacted contractor again. 
Contractor is scheduling jobs again, we are 
on their project list. 
10/15 Cassie checked the signs, they do 
not appear to be damaged enough to 
warrant replacement. 

10/15/2020

12/12/19 Cassie Stephens Ana Short

The yield and street sign have not been 
replaced at the intersection yet. There is 
jagged metal sticking out of the ground 
and two holes that someone almost fell 
into this weekend. She said they have 
been putting boards and plywood over 
the area but the trash crew keeps 
collecting it. She is worried because she is 
liable for injuries on her property and is 
asking for the holes to be filled and 
remaining metal sticking up from the 
ground be removed. 

Pine Chase Grove 
Intersection

Contractor will weld extension on to 
existing pole underground. Susan placed a 
City cone over the metal and holes. Placed 
an order with the vendor to install.

Purchase order has been issued. 
Requested contractor to start as soon as 
possible. 
Contractor has started scheduling jobs 
again and we are on their list. 

Council Meeting October 20, 2020 1 of 6



CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE

COMPLAINT FORM

Date 
Notified

Person Taking 
Call

Resident Reporting 
Problem

Complaint/Issue Address of Concern Action Results
Date 
Resolved

1/27/20 Susan Blevins Ann Gray

Neighbors still have not removed rock in 
ditch and she is concerned with spring 
and rain showers.  She also said that the 
neighbor’s son came over and said he 
had removed rock from the ditch but he 
said he did not understand that the 
problem was between their houses and 
not their house and the McDuffie’s.

1327 Friarcreek Ln
Sent email to Efrain asking him to inspect 
when he is in the city.

Permit was issued for the work, HDR is 
monitoring and performing inspections. 

10/1/2020

2/11/20 Cassie Stephens Javier - HDR Engineering
Illegal parking pad installed without 
permit.

8210 Burkhart
Emailed property owner with sections of 
ordinance in violation. Asked for plan to 
achieve compliance.

Property owner said he would have the 
rocks removed from the ditch but wants to 
seek a variance for the parking pad 
considering the existing terrain and 
material choices.

3/2/20 Cassie Stephens Bill Bristow
Pile of tree limbs and debris on the 
vacant lot. 

1306 Glourie
City is preparing to submit paperwork to 
municipal court to make necessary clean up 
efforts and fine contractor. 

Property is under legal review. Courts are 
closed at this time. 
10/15 Cassie removed the builder sign and 
permit box as there is no current 
construction.

3/15/20 Cassie Stephens Mike Bischoff

His driveway and culvert are being 
washed out, asked if work is going to be 
done at the driveway next to him which 
leads to the lift station. 

5 Hilshire Oaks Ct
Cassie sent photos to HDR. Efrain and Javier 
met with the homeowner 5/21.  

DonMar Grading is being consulted, the 
homeowner needs to explain what he 
wants to do and get a quote. 

10/1/2020

5/8/20 Cassie Stephens Paul Maddock
The drainage ravine is overgrown and 
might become a flooding issue if not 
maintained. 

1209 Pine Chase 
Cassie sent an email to Javier and Efrain 
asking them to investigate the area and 
what actions if any need to be taken. 

5/11 Javier inspected the site and found 
that the overgrowth has the potential to 
cause drainage issues if not maintained. 
Cassie sent the details of the report 
including photos to the property owner.
10/15 Cassie drove by, it appears the area 
has been mowed and cleared, only trees 
and grass visible.  

10/15/2020

7/23/20 Susan Blevins Wally Partridge

Asking if he can pay DonMar Grading to 
install new sod in his ditch during the 
grading project to replace the grass that 
was damaged by his pool company. 

1301 Glourie 10/1/2020

7/31/20 Cassie Stephens Cassie Stephens
Reflector stakes in the ROW preventing 
proper street parking. 

8009 Anadell

Sent email to the homeowners with a 14-
day deadline to remove the stakes or we 
will remove them and store at City Hall for 
30 days. 

Stakes were replaced with garden flags. 
Homeowners have asked for parking pad 
specifications, Cassie will coordinate a 
meeting with BBG on 9/11. 
BBG met with the homeowner, wants to 
discuss possibilities with engineer and 
council. 
10/15 Reflectors were removed. 

10/15/2020

8/6/20 Susan Blevins Robert Byrne
Portable basketball hoop is in the street 
against the curb. 

1319 Glenhilshire
Homeowners have been told in the past 
that the sports equipment needs to stay in 
their driveway and out of the right-of-way. 

Susan contacted the homeowners. 
10/14 & 10/15 Consecutively saw the goal 
standing in the driveway. 

10/15/2020

Council Meeting October 20, 2020 2 of 6



CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE

COMPLAINT FORM

Date 
Notified

Person Taking 
Call

Resident Reporting 
Problem

Complaint/Issue Address of Concern Action Results
Date 
Resolved

8/4/20 Susan Blevins Mr. Moore
Said his culverts are holding water for 
more than 48 hours.  

8002 Anadell
Susan sent the information to HDR for 
consideration during the ditch grading 
project. 

Javier (HDR) drove by, it appears there is an 
accumulation of silt that has created a 
highpoint on the downstream end of the 
driveway culvert resulting in standing water 
in the roadside ditch north of 8002 Anadell 
Driveway.  Additionally there are now ruts 
along the roadside ditch in the area of 
standing water. BJ (DonMar) will review and 
provide an update for maintenance to this 
ditch area.

9/14/20 Cassie Stephens Stephanie Vulpes
Loose garbage was left on the street 
from the collection team.

1206 Pine Chase 
Drive

Cassie forwarded the photos to Luis with 
WCA to show him the remnants left behind 
and asked that they make sure everything is 
secure before they drive away. 

Luis responded that he will speak with 
them. 

9/15/2020

9/15/20 Susan Blevins Matthew Cotter
Water is leaking from Westview and 
Ridgeley near the Hilshire Village sign. 

Westview & 
Ridgeley

Susan asked Inframark technician Mickayla 
to investigate.

James reported that the irrigation lines 
were leaking and they turned off the 
backflow to stop the water flow. Susan 
reported to the HV Beautification 
Committee for repairs. 

10/15/2020

9/16/20 Susan Blevins Rick Wourms Street light out, pole # 297586. 1125 Ridgeley
Cassie reported the outage to CenterPoint. 
Tracking Number: 1405106615

Light was repaired. 9/18/2020

9/18/20 Cassie Stephens Lee Degrasse

She wanted to know if there was 
anything we can do about a vacant house 
next door that has been under 
construction for a while. She said it looks 
bad being vacant and she thinks it is 
reducing their property values because 
the landscaping isn't as good as it used 
to be. 

1023 Ridgeley

Cassie advised that they have permits but 
we have not seen any activitiy for a while. 
She informed the caller that there is no 
vacant property ordinance that would 
require occupancy or penalize vacancy. 

The homeowner said her husband is an 
attorney and will look into actions he can 
take about the property being a nuisance. 
BBG reported that the permit can be 
revoked for no work and ordinance 
violations can be addressed but we cannot 
force occupancy. 

9/18/20 Susan Blevins Robert Stuber

Recycling bin was emptied then left at 
the neighbor's driveway, and over the last 
2 weeks his garbage has been damaged 
and now the handle is broken off. 

7 Hickory Shadows
Susan contacted WCA to replace the 
garbage can and spoke with the 
representative about the poor service lately. 

WCA said the lid was damaged by a dog 
and that type of can was known to break. 

10/14/2020

9/20/20 Susan Blevins Phil Brooks Alarm was going off inside. 1201 Archley Dr Susan reported the alarm to SVPD. Officers responded. 9/20/2020

9/21/20 Susan Blevins Mr. Hunsaker Garbage and recycling were skipped. 7910 N Villa Ct
Susan sent an email to Luis with WCA 
reminding them to go into Hilshire Villas 
subdivision. 

Luis said he sent the address to the driver, 
the garbage will be picked up by tomorrow 
morning. 
Trash was collected. 

9/21/2020

9/22/20 Susan Blevins Lift Station Alarm
Received call that the lift station alarm 
was going off. 

Ridgeley Inframark responded. 

Leak possible in the stormwater system 
that was flooding the lift station. 
Investigating with dye. 
System appears ok, will continue to 
monitor during rain events. 

10/15/2020

Council Meeting October 20, 2020 3 of 6



CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE

COMPLAINT FORM

Date 
Notified

Person Taking 
Call

Resident Reporting 
Problem

Complaint/Issue Address of Concern Action Results
Date 
Resolved

9/22/20 Susan Blevins Mrs. Ghosh
Garbage was skipped again, recurring 
issue. 

8214 Mallie Ct
Susan sent email to Luis, expressed 
concerns over the poor service lately. 

Luis said he would send a truck back to 
Mallie Ct. 
Garbage was picked up. 

9/22/2020

9/22/20 Susan Blevins Peter Batarse
Water is not drainaing properly behind 
his garage. 

5 Hilshire Grove Ln

Susan sent homeowner-provided photos to 
HDR Javier to investigate. There is a new 
construction project behind this address 
but they should not be flooding neighbors. 

Javier found standing water at 5 and 6 
Hilshire Grove and NE corner of 7902 N 
Villa Ct, due to the rough construction 
grading at the rear of 7906 N Villa Ct. Javier 
provided a report which was forwarded to 
the contractor for immediate correction. 
Susan updated Mr. Batarse on the findings. 
10/16 Cassie sent an email to the 
contractor asking for updates on the 
drainage. 

9/22/20 Susan Blevins Mike Gordy
Political sign in the ROW and yard needs 
maintenance.  

1302 Bridle Spur
Cassie sent an email to the homeowner, will 
follow up with a drive-by inspection. 

10/15 Cassie removed the signs from the 
roadside and placed them in the yard. She 
sent a follow up email to the owner letting 
them know of the action and also to 
remind him to leash the dog which was 
loose during the inspection. Cassie 
knocked on the door to speak with owner 
directly, there was no answer. 

10/15/2020

9/23/20 Susan Blevins Yvonne Andrews
Guardrail on Westview was damaged by a 
vehicle a while back. 

Westview, in front of 
8399

Cassie submitted a 311 request to Houston, 
service request number is 101004293652

Received response that they do not 
operate in Hilshire Village, Cassie sent back 
that it is Houston's right-of-way. Case was 
escalated after email response from Cassie 
that Houston is responsible for the area. 
Case was closed stating no safety hazard 
found, did not find any type of damage to 
the permanent barricade over the 
crosswalk sidewalk at the location. Susan 
requested that a supervisor call her to 
discuss. 

9/24/20 Cassie Stephens Lori Wasmuth Green chemical in the ditch next door 1030 Glourie Circle
Susan informed that Inframark was testing 
for leaks, dye is ok. 

No further action taken 9/24/2020

9/24/20 Cassie Stephens Janet Wourms
Garbage truck hit and uprooted a tree 
and is now stuck blocking the road. 

8201 Burkhart

Luis with WCA was already in the city 
monitoring the collection services since 
there have been so many complaints.  The 
tree was growing into the roadway as 
confirmed by Google images. After it was 
struck, the branches were in the street but 
vehicles could pass by. 

He sent a photo of the tree to Susan and 
will have their contractor remove the tree 
from the right-of-way, no replacement 
needed. Susan notified SVPD and Village 
Fire of the obstruction at the side of the 
road. 

The tree was trimmed but did not need to 
be removed. 

9/28/2020

Council Meeting October 20, 2020 4 of 6



CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE

COMPLAINT FORM

Date 
Notified

Person Taking 
Call

Resident Reporting 
Problem

Complaint/Issue Address of Concern Action Results
Date 
Resolved

9/29/20 Cassie Stephens Tommy Chmores

Multiple neighbors are not abiding by the 
overnight street parking ordinance and 
consistently have trash cans visible. He 
said he talked to the two main offenders 
of the street parking and was told by one 
that he will just pay the fines and 
continue to park on the street. Mr. 
Chmores is upset that ordinances aren't 
being enforced. 

Hilshire Grove
Cassie invited Mr. Chmores to attend the 
next council meeting, he declined. 

10/2/20 Cassie Stephens Susan Blevins
Inframark technician Mickayla 
decommissioned a fire hydrant on 
Archley to isolate a leak. 

1257 Archley Dr. 
Susan advised the fire department that the 
hydrant is temporarily out of service while 
Inframark makes repairs. 

Fire hydrant was tested and appeared to be 
functioning properly, possible that the 
hydrant wasn't fully closed during the last 
use causing a minor leak. 

10/15/2020

10/5/20 Susan Blevins Jose Vulpes

He picked up more glass from the street 
that was in front of his and his neighbor’s 
driveway. Some of the glass pieces are 
fairly large. This was not an issue before, 
but the new way they gather trash bags is 
what creates this new hazard. 

1206 Pine Chase 
Drive

Susan sent the photos to Luis and asked 
that they not use this area as a gathering 
spot. 

Luis responded that he will show the 
photos to the crew and check their work on 
Thursday. 

10/8/2020

10/6/20 Cassie Stephens Allan Torregossa

Received email from the homeowner with 
security camera video attached. 
Homeowner said a lantern was stolen 
from the backyard, had been stored in 
the same place for 3 years. 

21 Hickory Shadows
Susan advised the homeowner to file a 
police report. 

WCA spoke with homeowner and will 
reimburse, the temp worker was fired. 

10/8/2020

10/14/20 Cassie Stephens Larry Wilkerson Overgrown weeds. 1326 Ridgeley Dr

The property was recently sold. Cassie 
mailed a new homeowner packet to the 
address with a note about maintaining the 
lawn. If it does not get taken care of in the 
next couple of days I will ask BBG to place a 
violation tag on the door. 

10/14/20 Cassie Stephens Larry Wilkerson Overgrown weeds. Telge Re-Plat Lot 4
10/16 Cassie sent the new owner an email 
to schedule lawn service. 

10/14/20 Cassie Stephens Larry Wilkerson Sign in right-of-way Telge Re-Plat Lot 2

Cassie visited the lot, the sign is set back 
from the road enough to allow a vehicle to 
park and does not disturb the drainage 
ditch. 

No action needed. 10/15/2020

10/14/20 Cassie Stephens Larry Wilkerson Sign in right-of-way 1027 Ridgeley Dr

Cassie investigated, found that there was 
really no good spot to place the sign but 
will contact the realtor to see if they have a 
different style that can be set back and still 
visible. 

10/15/20 Cassie Stephens Yvonne Andrews
Lift station has a stronger odor than 
normal. 

Ridgeley Lift Station Cassie asked James to investigate. James said he will install a new odor block. 10/15/2020

10/15/20 Cassie Stephens Cassie Stephens
Reflector stakes in the ROW preventing 
proper street parking. 

8310 Creekstone 
Circle

Cassie sent an email to the homeowner 
giving 1 week (10/23) to remove the items. 

Council Meeting October 20, 2020 5 of 6



CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE

COMPLAINT FORM

Date 
Notified

Person Taking 
Call

Resident Reporting 
Problem

Complaint/Issue Address of Concern Action Results
Date 
Resolved

10/15/20 Cassie Stephens Cassie Stephens
Reflector stakes in the ROW preventing 
proper street parking. 

8307 Creekstone
Cassie sent an email to the homeowner 
giving 1 week (10/23) to remove the items. 

10/15/20 Cassie Stephens Cassie Stephens
Reflector stakes in the ROW preventing 
proper street parking. 

8311 Creekstone
Cassie sent an email to the homeowner 
giving 1 week (10/23) to remove the items. 

10/15/20 Cassie Stephens Cassie Stephens Political sign in ROW 1307 Friarcreek Ln
Cassie emailed the homeowners asking 
them to move the sign further back. 

10/15/20 Cassie Stephens Cassie Stephens
For Sale sign is larger than allowed per 
ordinance. 

8001 Bromley Rd
Cassie lerft a voicemail for the realtor Amy 
Kristynik 713-494-7363 to replace the sign. 

10/15/20 Cassie Stephens Cassie Stephens
For sale sign in ROW, also two at the 
entrance to the subdivison. 

4 Hilshire Grove

Cassie removed the two small signs at the 
entrance to Hilshire Grove and left a 
voicemail for the realtor Julie Gordy 281-
743-3734 informing they need to relocate 
the sign further from the street. 

10/15/20 Cassie Stephens Cassie Stephens
Vehicle parked too close to the stop sign, 
unable to safely exit the subdivision. 

1 Hilshire Grove
Cassie sent an email to the homeowners 
asking them to leave enough space for 
vehicles to enter and exit the subdivision. 

Will continue to monitor, no further action 
at this time. 

10/16/2020

10/15/20 Cassie Stephens Cassie Stephens Political sign in ROW
Hickory Shadows 
Park

Cassie removed the sign and stored at City 
Hall

No further action required. 10/15/2020

10/15/20 Cassie Stephens Cassie Stephens Political sign in ROW 1131 Wirt Rd
Cassie removed the sign and stored at City 
Hall

No further action required. 10/15/2020

10/15/20 Cassie Stephens Cassie Stephens Subcontractor sign in a yard. 10 Hickory Shadows

Cassie called the company on the sign 
Pools and Landscapes 281-693-4444 and 
left a voicemail that the sign needs to be 
removed by 10/16 or it will be removed and 
stored at City Hall. 

10/15/20 Cassie Stephens Cassie Stephens
Reflectors in ROW preventing proper 
street parking. 

1229 Archley Dr
Susan will contact the homeowners, they 
have had a lot of nearby construction and 
are trying to protect the grass. 

10/15/20 Cassie Stephens Cassie Stephens

Contractor was installing rocks in the 
drainage ditch. There were rocks here 
before but unsure what work they are 
doing now. 

1327 Friarcreek Ln
Cassie asked Javier to review previous 
photos of the area to compare to current 
conditions. 

Council Meeting October 20, 2020 6 of 6



PROFESSIONAL SERVICE: UTILITY ANT NOTE METRO GEN FUND FYE

663.07$       

106.75$       

2,742.41$    

$40.00

1,843.23$    

TML INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK POOL 4,012.08$    

1,562.50$    

302.01$       

REIMBURSEMENT - SUSAN FOR

CITY CELL PHONE 600.00$       

REIMBURSEMENT - SUSAN FOR

MILEAGE 110.40$       

ROBERT BLEVINS - SERVER 300.00$       

ROBERT BLEVINS - REMOTE ACCESS 420.00$       

2,500.00$    

13,972.06$  

185.40$     

6,566.22$  

FYE 2020 6,751.62$  $25,162.43

FYE 2021 $4,012.08

TOTAL 6,751.62$  -$           -$           29,174.51$  

2020

2020

2020

PETTY CASH

10/20/2020Disbursements Presented to Council

AMEGY CREDIT CARD

2021

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

MUNICODE

INFRAMARK

USIC

HDR ENGINEERING

BBG CONSULTING

MUNICODE
2020

OFFICE DEPOT

OLSON & OLSON

FORTINET - 3 YR





































































































































Regular Council Meeting and Public Hearing September 15, 2020 1 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING @ 6:30 PM 

 PUBLIC HEARING @ 7:00 PM  

 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING:  Mayor Herron called the City of 

Hilshire Village Regular Council Meeting to order at 6:33 P.M. via teleconference due to 
COVID-19 and the need for social distancing. 
 
1.1 Invocation was given by Council Member Schwarz.  

 
1.2 Pledge of Allegiance 

 
1.3 Present were Mayor Herron, Mayor Pro Tem Maddock, Council Member Gordy, 

Council Member Byrne and Council Member Schwarz.  Also present were City Attorney 
Bounds, City Engineer Him, Building Official Taylor, Deputy Building Official DuVall, City 
Administrator Blevins and Assistant City Secretary Stephens.  
 

2. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS:  Nancy Friedman Taub and Mark Taub, 1313 Pine Chase 
Drive, said they addressed Council last month regarding water ponding in their backyard 
since improvements were made next door.  Mrs. Taub stated that the minutes from last 
month’s meeting did not reflect that a swale was removed in the front yard and those same 
minutes state that there was a one-inch gap under the fence but there is not.  The 
homeowners submitted photos showing that there is no gap for water to run under the 
fence.   
 

3. REPORTS TO COUNCIL: 
 
3.1 Police Report:  Administrator Blevins said that Captain Newman informed her that 

there were no issues to report.  She said he contacted the Houston Police Department 
regarding the excessive speeding on Wirt Road but he does not have an update yet.  

 
Council Member Byrne said he spoke with Spring Valley Police Captain Schulze about 
a young boy riding an electric bike unattended on the streets.  He said drivers should be 
cautious of children playing in the street.  Council Member Schwarz said the boy was 
his son and he was in fact supervised.  He stated that the police officer that responded 
to the complaint did not have an issue with the boy riding the bike.  He also said his son 
is responsible, was wearing a helmet and knows to stop when vehicles approach.   

 
3.2 Building Officials Report:  Deputy Building Official DuVall said that the first permit has 

been issued for the newly re-platted lots at the North end of Glourie Drive.  He said he 
spoke with a homeowner about the specifications for parking pads and the homeowner 
had points worth considering.  He said he would like to work with the City Engineer to 
determine a better method to allow vehicles to park along the roadside without creating 
muddy ruts.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Maddock asked about an accessory building at 7903 Hilshire Green 



Regular Council Meeting and Public Hearing September 15, 2020 2 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING @ 6:30 PM 

 PUBLIC HEARING @ 7:00 PM  

 

Drive and whether it is too close to the fence or is considered impermeable.  Building 
Official Taylor said they had not been granted access to the property by the homeowner 
at this time but will continue to contact the homeowner and will seek an inspection 
warrant if necessary, to gain access.   
 
Building Official Taylor said they added a new code enforcement officer to their team.  
 

The City Building Official was excused.   
 

3.3 Engineers Report:  Engineer Him said that there was a sanitary sewer blockage at 
1322 Pine Chase Drive which Inframark was investigating.  He said this line is shared 
with 1327 Glourie Drive.  Engineer Him said there isn’t enough drop to connect with 
Pine Chase Grove, and they have to connect on Glourie where the line is deeper.  He 
said it appears to be the City’s responsibility, but he is not sure.  Mayor Herron said the 
four new lots on Glourie Drive will need water and sewer installed.  Engineer Him is 
requesting for Council to approve him to hire a record researcher to determine who has 
responsibility over that line.  City Attorney Bounds said it isn’t only whether the 
easement is recorded but if the City accepted it.  He said the line services three (3) lots 
and should become a City easement.   

 
Engineer Him stated that in regards to the Hickory Shadows Meter Vault 
Replacement, he has been trying to coordinate with TxDOT.  The person he spoke to 
said he was only responsible for permitting but they provided contact information for the 
right-of-way person.  He said the vault lies both in the City’s right-of-way and in the 
Harris County park and we are trying to get clearance from them.  Engineer Him said he 
is also working with the City of Houston who supplies the water to the vault to verify 
what they need. 
 
Engineer Him said that regarding the Annual Ditch Cleaning and Maintenance Plan, 
DonMar grading has completed all of the cutting and regrading and will install sod this 
coming Thursday. He also stated that Mayor Herron authorized additional work to be 
performed on Glourie Drive since the excavator was still there, the cost was under 
$5,000.  Engineer Him stated that rough cuts had been done in the Pine Chase Grove 
cul-de-sac. 
 
Engineer Him said that regarding the “Harris County Initiative Development of 
Minimum Standards”, he and the City had a meeting with Mr. Steiber with the Harris 
County Engineering Department who agreed to have their engineer take a look at the 
City’s ordinance and provide recommendations.  He said he doesn’t have any issues 
with the changes they are suggesting.   
 
Council Member Gordy asked Engineer Him to take a look at the issues at 1313 Pine 
Chase Grove as he is concerned about the sod being up against the rot board.  
Engineer Him said he would go by the property and investigate.    



Regular Council Meeting and Public Hearing September 15, 2020 3 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING @ 6:30 PM 

 PUBLIC HEARING @ 7:00 PM  

 

 
4. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: 

 
4.1 Mayor Pro Tem Maddock made a motion to authorize the City Engineer to request 

quotes for the installation of an eight-inch sanitary sewer lateral to replace the existing 
sewer service line currently servicing 1324 Pine Chase Grove, 1322 Pine Chase Drive 
and 1327 Glourie Drive, including a proposal for easement research verification and 
easement acquisition, seconded by Council Member Byrne.  

 
Engineer Him said the priority is to get the record drawings to determine who is 
responsible for the sewer line.   
 
A roll call vote was taken to approve the motion approving the City Engineer to 
request quotes for the installation of an eight-inch sanitary sewer lateral to replace 
the existing sewer service line currently servicing 1324 Pine Chase Grove, 1322 
Pine Chase Drive and 1327 Glourie Drive, including a proposal for easement 
research verification and easement acquisition.  
 
Council Member Gordy – Aye 
Council Member Byrne – Aye 
Mayor Pro Tem Maddock – Aye 
Council Member Schwarz – Aye 
 
The vote passed unanimously.  

 
The City Engineer was excused.  
 
Mayor Herron recessed the Regular Council Session at 7:33 PM.  
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING  
 

5.1 Call to order the Public Hearing:  Mayor Herron called to order the Public Hearing at 
7:33 P.M.  

5.2 Public Hearing on the proposed Annual Budget for the Fiscal Year Ending 2021.   
 
City Administrator Blevins said small increases were needed but the budget is 
essentially the same as last year.  She said the Council will be voting on this proposed 
budget on Monday at 4:00 PM.  City Administrator Blevins said sales tax has been 
increasing lately but she did not increase the budget item because that revenue is not 
dependable; and court fees have dropped because court is not being held right now.  
She said $15,000 is in reserves for the Village Fire Station Renovation.  City 
Administrator Blevins said when additional information is received next week, she will 
have accurate figures.  
 



Regular Council Meeting and Public Hearing September 15, 2020 4 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING @ 6:30 PM 

 PUBLIC HEARING @ 7:00 PM  

 

Mayor Herron said a majority of the budget is police and fire protection services and not 
under the City’s control.  
 

5.3 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON TAX RATE INCREASE  
 

A voter approval tax rate of $0.590120 per $100 valuation has been proposed by 
the governing body of Hilshire Village.   
 

5.4 Mayor Herron adjourned the Public Hearing and reconvened the Regular Council 
Session at 7:38 P.M.  

 
6. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: 

 
6.1 City Administrator Blevins went over the changes that had been made to the budget 

since the last meeting.  She stated she went over any changes that she had made.  City 
Administrator Blevins stated she would be bringing an ordinance to Council with an 
increase of $0.25 per 1000/gallons for water.  City Administrator Blevins said that she 
would also include numbers for additional infrastructure for the new lots on Glourie and 
the Sewer Rehabilitation for Pine Chase Grove. 

 
6.2 Mayor Herron said resumes were received for the vacant Council Member Position 3, 

Board of Adjustment and Hilshire Village Cultural Education Facilities Finance 
Corporation (HVCEFFC) Board positions.  He stated that there were eight (8) applicants 
interested in the Council Member position, four (4) for Board of Adjustments and three 
(3) for HVCEFFC with an additional interested party in either BOA or HVCEFFC.  City 
Administrator Blevins stated she received an additional resume for the Board of 
Adjustments position. 
Mayor Pro Tem Maddock said he would like to interview applicants and said he was 
looking for people who have shown interest and participation in the past.   
Council Member Gordy said he would also like to talk to the applicants to see how they 
approach problems.   
Council Member Byrne said a face to face interview process at City Hall might help to 
get to know the applicants.  He said it is important to make a swift decision so that the 
person has time to get acquainted in their seat before the general election next year.  
Council Member Byrne said he had already spoken to some of the applicants regarding 
the time involved and spoke about some of their previous city involvements.   
Council Member Schwarz said this is a great opportunity for an interested person to see 
what it is like to be on Council for a shorter time then have the option to be on the ballot 
in the election in May next year.  He said he would like to sit down with each candidate 
and find people who are independent thinkers and he is encouraged by the interest from 
the applicants.   
Council decided to arrange a Special Council Meeting to conduct an interview process 
with the applicants after the Special Council Meeting on Monday September 21st.  City 
Administrator Blevins said the applicants can be scheduled for certain time frames to 



Regular Council Meeting and Public Hearing September 15, 2020 5 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING @ 6:30 PM 

 PUBLIC HEARING @ 7:00 PM  

 

avoid having too many people in the office.   
 
Nancy Friedman Taub, 1313 Pine Chase Drive, asked if council would accept 
comments from citizens on what attributes they would like to see in the future council 
member.  City Administrator Blevins said that citizens will be allowed to vote on open 
council positions in the general election, but this is an unfinished term appointment by 
the current Council Members.  City Attorney Bounds said that the Council can have a 
public meeting then enter closed session to conduct the interviews.     

 
6.3 Mayor Herron said he would like to discuss topic priorities for the Planning and Zoning 

Committee regarding habitability and personal items placed forward of a front building 
line.  He said household amenities such as electricity, running water, air conditioning 
and heating including window units, refrigerator and freezer units, washer and dryer, 
water heater, sinks and wash basins, ovens, dishwashers or other common kitchen 
appliances, bathing and/or sanitary facilities are being considered.   

 
Mayor Pro Tem Maddock said he opposes window air conditioners for appearance 
reasons.  Council Member Gordy said if neighbors cannot see it then he doesn’t have 
an issue with window air conditioners.  He said he does not think that kitchen 
appliances are necessary but the other items listed are understandable.   
 
Mayor Herron asked for opinions on personal items in residential front yards such as 
play equipment and lawn furniture.   
Council Member Schwarz said he would hate to see us become a community who does 
not like to spend time in their front yard with neighbors socially.  He said his opinion as a 
family with young kids is to have some limitations and to prevent items from becoming 
permanent but does not want to prevent families from spending time in the front yards.   
Mayor Pro Tem Maddock said there are a lot of chairs and tables in the front yards, 
which have been encouraged by City of Houston, but he doesn’t want the City to look 
junky.   
Council Member Gordy said there are a lot of permanent amenities in people’s front 
yards.  He said he is sensitive to the impact of the Coronavirus and he wants to see if 
children going back to school improves the situation or if personal items will be left 
around in disarray.  He said he has a garden bench in his front yard and would be upset 
if he had to get rid of it so he would consider some limitations.   
Mayor Herron suggested defining garden furniture versus play equipment.   
City Attorney Bounds said it is difficult to write an ordinance that makes people neat.  
He said gnomes, gardens, laundry lines, and basketball goals are hard to regulate and it 
is difficult to come up with a list that makes everyone happy based on personal taste.   

 
The City Attorney was excused.  
 
7. REPORTS TO COUNCIL: (Con’t) 

 



Regular Council Meeting and Public Hearing September 15, 2020 6 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING @ 6:30 PM 

 PUBLIC HEARING @ 7:00 PM  

 

7.1 Fire Commissioner’s Report:  Commissioner Byrne said there were seven (7) calls in 
the month of August.  He said the fire station reconstruction project is well under way.  
Commissioner Byrne said the new fire engine was being inspected today and is on time 
for arrival in October.   

 
Council Member Gordy asked what percent completion the fire station project was at.  
Commissioner Byrne said the annex building is getting ready for communications and 
dispatch.  He said some of the finishes such as door hardware are being looked at but 
the project is on schedule.   

 
7.2 Mayor Herron:  None 

 
7.3 City Administrator’s Report:  Administrator Blevins said that in preparation of 
Hurricane Laura, Robert Belt and residents volunteering for the CERT were prepared to 
respond.  She said it was a good trial run.  City Administrator Blevins stated that the City 
has an Interlocal Agreement with Harris County for debris management in the rights-of-way 
after a storm.  However, she said she was informed that the service is not guaranteed and 
is only provided if Harris County chooses to enact the assistance, and they stated they may 
not have enough resources.   

 
7.4 Treasurer’s Report:  Administrator Blevins said not all of the statements were received 

and she does not have final numbers for the month of August yet.  
 

8. CONSENT AGENDA:  Council Member Byrne asked about the Inframark invoice and 
flushing records, and why so much water was used on certain dates.  Mayor Herron said he 
would like to understand why flushing all that water is necessary.  Administrator Blevins 
said she would arrange for Bob Ring with Inframark to be at the next Council Meeting to 
explain and answer questions.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Maddock made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda presented to 
Council including the Disbursements, Deposits, Minutes from the Regular Council Meeting, 
August 18, 2020, Check Register for August, 2020, Proclamation recognizing National 
Night Out to be held October 5, 2020, on Bromley between Pine Chase and Ridgeley 
Intersections and Proclamation recognizing Halloween Night to be held October 31, 2020, 
on Archley Drive, seconded by Council Member Schwarz.    
 
A vote was taken to approve the consent agenda presented to Council including the 
Disbursements, Deposits, Minutes from the Regular Council Meeting August 18, 
2020, Check Register for August, 2020, Proclamation recognizing National Night Out 
to be held October 5, 2020, on Bromley between Pine Chase and Ridgeley 
Intersections and Proclamation recognizing Halloween Night to be held October 31, 
2020, on Archley Drive.  
 
The vote passed unanimously.  



Regular Council Meeting and Public Hearing September 15, 2020 7 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING @ 6:30 PM 

 PUBLIC HEARING @ 7:00 PM  

 

 
9. ADDITIONAL COUNCIL COMMENTS:  None at this time.  
 
10. FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS:  None at this time.  
 
11. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Special Council Meeting to be held on September 21, 2020 at 4:00 

PM. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Pro Tem Maddock made a motion to adjourn the meeting, 

seconded by Council Member Byrne.  
 

A vote was taken to approve the motion to adjourn the meeting.  The vote passed 
unanimously.  
The meeting was adjourned at 8:32 P.M. 
 
 

 
___________________________ 
Mayor Herron    

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Susan Blevins, City Secretary 
 



MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING  

4:00 P.M. 

Special Council Meeting - September 21,2020 

 
 

1 

SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING:  Mayor Herron called to order the 

Special Council Meeting of September 21, 2020, at 4:00 PM. via teleconference due 
to COVID-19 and the need for social distancing.  

 
1.1 Roll Call: Present were Mayor Herron, Council Member Gordy, Council Member 

Byrne, Mayor Pro Tem Maddock and Council Member Schwarz. Also present was 
City Administrator Blevins.  

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENTS: None 
 
3. DISCUSSION:  General and Utility Fund Budget, Tax Rate, Capital Improvements 

and Utility Rates. 
 

3.1 City Administrator Blevins reviewed changes that she made to the budget since 
the previous Council Meeting.  She said that she added an infrastructure 
rehabilitation line item in the Utility budget in case Council decides to proceed 
with the water and sewer work at Glourie Drive and Pine Chase Grove.  She 
stated the City received definite numbers from the Police Department which was 
less than anticipated.   

 
4. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:  
 

4.1 Mayor Pro Tem Maddock made a motion to approve Ordinance Number 800-
2020 amending Appendix “A” Fee Schedule of the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Hilshire Village, Texas, by deleting section 7.200 and replacing it with a 
new section 7.200 establishing new water and trash rates, seconded by Council 
Member Gordy.  

 
City Administrator Blevins said this is an annual $0.25/1000 gallons increase that 
the City implements to offset costs from using City of Houston water.  

 
A vote was taken to approve the motion approving the City of Hilshire 
Village Ordinance Number 800-2020 amending Appendix “A” Fee Schedule 
of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Hilshire Village, Texas, by deleting 
section 7.200 and replacing it with a new section 7.200 establishing new 
water and trash rates.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
4.2 Mayor Pro Tem Maddock made a motion to approve Ordinance Number 801-

2020 adopting the City of Hilshire Village, Texas, General Budget for the FYE 
2021. In accordance with Section 102.007(c) of the Local Government Code, 
adoption of this year’s budget will require raising more revenue from property 
taxes than in the previous year; therefore, the City must, by separate vote of the 
City, ratify the property tax increase reflected in the budget. THIS BUDGET WILL 



MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING  

4:00 P.M. 

Special Council Meeting - September 21,2020 

 
 

2 

RAISE MORE TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES THAN LAST YEAR'S BUDGET BY 
$52,036 OR 3.57%, AND OF THAT AMOUNT $23,746 IS TAX REVENUE TO 
BE RAISED FROM NEW PROPERTY ADDED TO THE TAX ROLL THIS YEAR, 
seconded by Council Member Byrne.  
 
A roll call vote was taken to approve the motion approving the City of 
Hilshire Village Ordinance Number 801-2020 adopting the City of Hilshire 
Village, Texas General Budget for the FYE 2021. In accordance with Section 
102.007(c) of the Local Government Code, adoption of this year’s budget 
will require raising more revenue from property taxes than in the previous 
year; therefore, the City must, by separate vote of the City, ratify the 
property tax increase reflected in the budget. THIS BUDGET WILL RAISE 
MORE TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES THAN LAST YEAR'S BUDGET BY $52,036 
OR 3.57%, AND OF THAT AMOUNT $23,746 IS TAX REVENUE TO BE 
RAISED FROM NEW PROPERTY ADDED TO THE TAX ROLL THIS YEAR.   
 

Mayor Pro Tem Maddock – Aye 
Council Member Gordy – Aye 
Council Member Byrne – Aye 
Council Member Schwarz – Aye 
The motion passed unanimously. 

 
4.3 Mayor Pro Tem Maddock made a motion to approve a component of the tax rate 

in the amount of $0.140804/100 for the purpose of paying the accruing interest 
and to provide a sinking fund for payment of the indebtness of the City for the 
next fiscal year, seconded by Council Member Byrne. 
 
A vote was taken to approve the motion to approve a component of the tax 
rate in the amount of $0.140804/100 for the purpose of paying the accruing 
interest and to provide a sinking fund for payment of the indebtness of the 
City for the next fiscal year.  The motion passed unanimously.  

 
4.4 Mayor Pro Tem Maddock made a motion to approve a component of the tax rate 

in the amount of $0.449316/100 for the purpose of funding the maintenance and 
operation expenditures of the City for the FYE 2021, seconded by Council 
Member Gordy. 
 
A vote was taken to approve the motion to approve a component of the tax 
rate in the amount of $0.449316/100 for the purpose of funding the 
maintenance and operation expenditures of the City for the FYE 2021.  The 
motion passed unanimously.   

 
4.5 Mayor Pro Tem Maddock made a motion that the 2020 property tax rate be 

increased by the adoption of a tax rate of $0.590120/100 which is effectively a 
2.15 percent increase in the tax rate. THIS TAX RATE WILL RAISE MORE 



MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING  

4:00 P.M. 

Special Council Meeting - September 21,2020 

 
 

3 

TAXES FOR MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS THAN LAST YEAR’S TAX 
RATE.  THE TAX RATE WILL EFFECTIVELY BE RAISED BY 3.50% AND WILL 
RAISE TAXES FOR MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS ON A $100,000 
HOME BY APPROXIMATELY $30.00, seconded by Council Member Byrne. 

 
A roll call vote was taken to approve the motion that the 2020 property tax 
rate be increased by the adoption of a tax rate of $0.590120/100 which is 
effectively a 2.15 percent increase in the tax rate. THIS TAX RATE WILL 
RAISE MORE TAXES FOR MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS THAN LAST 
YEAR’S TAX RATE.  THE TAX RATE WILL EFFECTIVELY BE RAISED BY 
3.50% AND WILL RAISE TAXES FOR MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS 
ON A $100,000 HOME BY APPROXIMATELY $30.00.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Maddock – Aye 
Council Member Gordy – Aye 
Council Member Byrne – Aye 
Council Member Schwarz – Aye 
The motion passed unanimously.  

 
4.6 Mayor Pro Tem Maddock made a motion to approve Ordinance Number 802-

2020 providing for the levy and collection of Ad Valorem taxes of the City of 
Hilshire Village, Texas, for the year 2020 providing for two components to the 
proposed tax rate, consisting of a tax rate of $0.140804 on each one hundred 
dollars for the purpose of paying the accruing interest and to provide a sinking 
fund for payment of the indebtedness of the City, and a tax rate of $0.449316 on 
each one hundred dollars for the purpose of funding the maintenance and 
operation expenditures; providing for the date on which such taxes shall be due 
and payable; providing for penalty and interest on all taxes not timely paid; and 
repealing all ordinance or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith; 
and providing for severability. THIS TAX RATE WILL RAISE MORE TAXES FOR 
MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS THAN LAST YEAR’S TAX RATE.  THE 
TAX RATE WILL EFFECTIVELY BE RAISED BY 3.50% AND WILL RAISE 
TAXES FOR MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS ON A $100,000 HOME BY 
APPROXIMATELY $30.00, seconded by Council Member Gordy. 

 
A roll call vote was taken to approve Ordinance Number 802-2020 providing 
for the levy and collection of Ad Valorem taxes of the City of Hilshire 
Village, Texas, for the year 2020 providing for two components to the 
proposed tax rate, consisting of a tax rate of $0.140804 on each one 
hundred dollars for the purpose of paying the accruing interest and to 
provide a sinking fund for payment of the indebtedness of the City, and a 
tax rate of $0.449316 on each one hundred dollars for the purpose of 
funding the maintenance and operation expenditures; providing for the 
date on which such taxes shall be due and payable; providing for penalty 
and interest on all taxes not timely paid; and repealing all ordinance or 



MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING  

4:00 P.M. 

Special Council Meeting - September 21,2020 

 
 

4 

parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith; and providing for 
severability. THIS TAX RATE WILL RAISE MORE TAXES FOR 
MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS THAN LAST YEAR’S TAX RATE.  THE 
TAX RATE WILL EFFECTIVELY BE RAISED BY 3.50% AND WILL RAISE 
TAXES FOR MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS ON A $100,000 HOME BY 
APPROXIMATELY $30.00.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Maddock – Aye 
Council Member Gordy – Aye 
Council Member Byrne – Aye 
Council Member Schwarz – Aye 
The motion passed unanimously. 

 
4.7 Mayor Pro Tem Maddock made a motion for the City of Hilshire Village to enter 

into an Interlocal Agreement with Harris County for the Coronavirus Relief Fund 
Grant (CRF) for Small Cities and Terms and Conditions and authorize the City 
Administrator to complete forms and submit them, seconded by Council Member 
Gordy.   

 
City Administrator Blevins said a lot of the smaller cities are going for this CRF 
Grant.  She stated that Harris County is working with the cities that are interested 
in using the funds for equipment that has become necessary due to COVID-19.  
She stated that the money can be used to updated computer equipment 
including software.  City Administrator Blevins also stated that a requirement is 
that the money can only be used for items that weren’t already in the city budget.  
 
Council Member Gordy said he has gotten used to and appreciates the digital 
format of the council meeting packets and would support the purchase of laptops 
and related software using this program.  He also said that HVAC sanitation 
systems are becoming more common and suggested that may be another 
productive use of funds.   
 
City Administrator Blevins said she will do more research on the deadlines and 
requirements of the Grant and will report back to Council.   
 
A vote was taken to approve the motion for the City of Hilshire Village to 
enter into an Interlocal Agreement with Harris County for the Coronavirus 
Relief Fund Grant (CRF) for Small Cities and Terms and Conditions and 
authorize the City Administrator to complete forms and submit.  The 
motion passed unanimously. 

 
4.8 Mayor Pro Tem Maddock made a motion to approve Disbursements as 

presented to Council, seconded by Council Member Gordy.   
 



MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING  

4:00 P.M. 

Special Council Meeting - September 21,2020 

 
 

5 

City Administrator Blevins said she received an additional invoice for DonMar 
Grading in the amount of $4,250.00 for the Pine Chase Grove cul-de-sac and 
drainage repairs.   

 
A vote was taken to approve the motion to approve Disbursements as 
presented to Council.  The motion passed unanimously.   

  
5. ADDITIONAL COUNCIL COMMENTS:  None 

 
6. Mayor Pro Tem Maddock made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by 

Council Member Gordy.  
 

A vote was taken to approve the motion to adjourn the meeting.  The motion 
passed unanimously.   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:33 P.M. 
 

 
 

___________________________ 
Mayor Herron    

ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Susan Blevins, City Secretary 

 
 



MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING, COUNCIL WORKSHOP AND EXECUTIVE SESSION 

4:50 P.M. 

Special Council Meeting, Council Workshop and Executive Session - September 21,2020 

 
 

1 

SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING:  Mayor Herron called to order the 

Special Council Meeting of September 21, 2020, at 4:50 P.M. via teleconference due 
to COVID-19 and the need for social distancing.  

 
1.1 Roll Call: Present were Mayor Herron, Council Member Gordy, Council Member 

Byrne, Mayor Pro Tem Maddock, and Council Member Schwarz. Also present 
was City Administrator Blevins.  

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENTS: None 
 

Council discussed the procedures for the interviews.   
 
Recess the Special Council Meeting to go into a Council Workshop with Council 
and Individual Candidates 
 
3. COUNCIL WORKSHOP:  
 

3.1 ONE ON ONE INTERVIEWS TO FILL COUNCIL MEMBER POSITION THREE 
 
      Keri Collins, Andy Carey, Gerald Fitts, Brock Griffiths, Kathleen Stafford and  
 Sara Sommers Wilks 

 
Convene the Special Council Workshop to go immediately into Executive Session 
 
4. CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION: City Council reserves the right to adjourn into 

executive session for a personnel matter under Texas Government Code Sec. 
551.074  

 
 4.1 Deliberate the appointment of a public officer. 
 
Convene the Special Council Session to take action on the Executive Session, the 
time was 7:18 P.M. 

 
5. ACTION ITEM: 
 

5.1 Council Member Schwarz made a motion to nominate Andy Carey to the vacant 
Council Member Position (Position Three), seconded by Council Member Byrne. 
 

A vote was taken to approve the motion to nominate and appoint Andy Carey to 
the vacant Council Member Position (Position Three) for the remainder of the 
unexpired term.  The vote passed unanimously.   

 



MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING, COUNCIL WORKSHOP AND EXECUTIVE SESSION 

4:50 P.M. 

Special Council Meeting, Council Workshop and Executive Session - September 21,2020 

 
 

2 

6. ADJOURN MEETING: Council Member Byrne made a motion to adjourn the Special 
Council Meeting, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Maddock.  

 
A vote was taken to approve the motion to adjourn the meeting.  The motion 
passed unanimously.  

 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:23 P.M. 

 
 

___________________________ 
Mayor Herron    

ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Susan Blevins, City Secretary 

 
 



10/16/20 at 07:59:07.05 Page: 1

CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE

Check Register
For the Period From Sep 1, 2020 to Sep 30, 2020

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Number.

Check # Date Payee Cash Account Amount

8321 9/1/20 Waste Corporation of Tex 11114 6,799.59

8322 9/1/20 Village Fire Department 11114 20,063.68

8323 9/1/20 Villages Mutual Insurance 11114 1,782.13

8324 9/9/20 Centerpoint-Energy 11114 24.22

8325 9/9/20 Sanchez Landscaping 11114 715.00

8326 9/16/20 Amegy Bank 11114 420.72

8327 9/16/20 Harris County Appraisal 11114 2,655.00

8328 9/16/20 CDW Government 11114 377.26

8329 9/16/20 Northwest Pest Patrol 11114 495.00

8330 9/16/20 Olson & Olson, Attys at L 11114 1,512.50

8331 9/16/20 Houston Chronicle 11114 1,897.70

8332 9/16/20 Cassie Stephens 11114 400.43

8333 9/16/20 Susan Blevins 11114 1,753.95

8334 9/16/20 BBG Consulting 11114 2,500.00

8335 9/16/20 HDR 11114 20,077.71

8336 9/16/20 Friends of SpringBranch 11114 250.00

8337 9/17/20 A T & T 11114 75.95

8338 9/17/20 Vital Records Control 11114 65.47

8339 9/17/20 Protection One 11114 532.82

8340 9/18/20 Hudson Energy Services L 11114 550.00

8341 9/30/20 Petty Cash 11114 106.75

8342 9/30/20 Cary M. Moran 11114 160.00

8343 9/30/20 Harris County 11114 100.00

8344 9/30/20 Hilshire Village Utility 11114 790.02

ACH 09-01-20 9/1/20 Sprg.Valley GenFund- Pol 11114 41,820.42

ACH 09-02-20 9/2/20 Texas Municipal Retireme 11114 1,906.46

ACH 09-15-20 9/15/20 Susan N. Blevins 11114 2,879.38

ACH 09-30-20 9/30/20 Susan N. Blevins 11114 2,879.38

ACH1 09-15-20 9/15/20 Cassandra L. Stephens 11114 1,542.58

ACH1 09-30-20 9/30/20 Cassandra L. Stephens 11114 1,542.58

ELECTRONIC 09-15-20 9/15/20 Internal Revenue Service 11114 1,701.48

ELECTRONIC 09-30-20 9/30/20 Texas Municipal Retireme 11114 1,935.14

METRO 1 2109 9/24/20 DonMar Grading, Inc. 11120 15,000.00

METRO 1 2110 9/24/20 DonMar Grading, Inc. 11120 11,550.00

Total 146,863.32



10/16/20 at 08:04:01.62 Page: 1

CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE - UTILITY FUND

Check Register
For the Period From Sep 1, 2020 to Sep 30, 2020

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Date.

Check # Date Payee Cash Account Amount

3905 9/1/20 Inframark, LLC 11012 2,000.00

3906 9/1/20 A T & T 11012 227.91

3907 9/1/20 Cityof Houston#7099-300 11012 24,322.03

3908 9/16/20 HDR 11012 247.24

3909 9/16/20 Texas Excavation Safety S 11012 19.00

3910 9/16/20 USIC Locating Services 11012 834.30

3911 9/16/20 Inframark, LLC 11012 3,685.36

3912 9/17/20 DSHS Central Lab MC20 11012 106.96

3913 9/18/20 City of Houston, Public W 11012 7,774.81

3914 9/18/20 Cityof Houston#7099-300 11012 21,251.64

3915 9/30/20 Inframark, LLC 11012 2,016.08

3916 9/30/20 Hudson Energy Services L 11012 20.74

Total 62,506.07




	10-20-20 Regular Council Meeting
	Agenda Item 3.1 Tab 1 Andy Carey
	Agenda Item 3.2 Tab 2 SVPD Report -September 2020
	Agenda Item 3.3 Tab 3 Building Official 
	ADP796B.tmp
	Stops

	ADP72D0.tmp
	Permits: Fourteen (14):
	Sign:
	1
	Demolition:
	Roof:
	Remodel / Add-On:
	1
	Fence:
	1
	New Construction:
	3
	Tree Removal:
	Accessory Building:
	Irrigation:
	3
	Electrical:
	Drainage:
	2
	HVAC:
	Swimming Pool:
	3
	Plumbing:
	Swimming Pool Demo:
	Fire Sprinklers:
	Other: 
	30-Day Dumpster:


	Agenda Item 3.4 Tab 4 Engineer Report
	Agenda Item 4.1 Tab 6 CityofHilshireVillage_Floodplains_11x17
	Agenda Item 4.1 Tab 7 Ordinance # 803-2020 Flood Hazard Area Regulation Amendments - 2020. sb
	Agenda Item 4.2 Tab 8 Water and Sewer Glourie
	Agenda Item 4.3 Tab 9 Resolution #2020-207 Bank Signatories
	Agenda Item 4.4 Tab 10 Ordinance #792-2019 Street Parking Hours
	Agenda Item 4.5 Tab 11 Ordinance #773-2019 Portable Storage Containters - POD
	Agenda Item 4.6 Tab 12  Grant_
	Agenda Item 4.7 Tab 13 BOA Applications
	Brian Wilks - Alternate Board of Adjustments.pdf
	Cover Letter - Brian Wilks - Alternate Board of Adjustment Position
	Resume - Brian Wilks - Alternate Board of Adjustment Position


	Agenda Item 4.7 Tab 14 HVCEFFC Applications
	Agenda Item 7.1 Tab 15 Village Fire Department
	Agenda Item 7.3 Tab 16 Complaint Log
	Agenda Item 8.1 Tab 18 Disbursements
	ADPC654.tmp
	Sheet1


	Agenda Item 8.2 Tab 19 Minutes 9-15-20 Regular Council Meeting
	Agenda Item 8.3 Tab 20 Minutes 9-21-20 Special Council Meeting
	Agenda Item 8.4 Tab 21 Minutes 9-21-20 4.50 PM Special Council Meeting
	Agenda Item 8.5 Tab 22 Check Registers 09-30-20
	AT&T Franchise letter



